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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFO RMATION  

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements included or incorporated by reference in this Form 10-K other than 
statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Investors can identify these and other forward-looking statements by the use of 
words such as “estimate,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “ anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe,” “contin ue” or the negative of such terms, or 
other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements also include the assumptions underlying or relating to such statements.  

Our actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements included herein as a result of a number 
of factors, risks and uncertainties, including, among others, the risk factors set forth in “Item 1A—Risk Factors ,”and Item 7—“Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Form 10-K and the risks 
detailed from time to time in Silicon Graphics International Corp.’s future U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission reports. The information 
included in this Form 10-K is as of the filing date with the Securities and Exchange Commission and future events or circumstances could 
differ materially from the forward-looking statements included herein. We assume no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements 
after the date of this report or to conform these statements to actual results except as required by law. Accordingly, we caution readers not to 
place undue reliance on such statements.  

“Silicon Graphics,” “SGI,” “Eco-Logical,” “RapidScale,” “Roamer,” “CloudRack,” “ICE Cube,” “MobiRack,”  “Rackable,” “Altix,” 
“CXFS,” “NUMAlink,” “Octane,” “Origin,” “REACT,” “S GI FullCare,” “SGI FullExpress,” “SGI Global Developer Program,” “SGI 
ProPack,” “COPAN” and the “Silicon Graphics” logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Silicon Graphics International Corp. or its 
subsidiaries in the U.S. and/or other countries. Other trademarks or service marks appearing in this report may be trademarks or service 
marks of other owners.  
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PART I  

Item 1. Business  

Overview  

We are a global leader in large-scale clustered computing and storage, high-performance compute and storage, and data center 
technologies integrated with a choice of software, customer support services and professional services. We are dedicated to solving the IT 
industry’s most demanding business and technology challenges by delivering clustered computing and storage solutions, high performance 
computing and storage solutions, Eco-Logical™ data center solutions, software and services. We develop, market, and sell a broad line of low 
cost, mid-range and high-end computing servers and data storage as well as differentiating software. We sell data center infrastructure products 
purpose-built for large-scale data center deployments. In addition, we provide global customer support and professional services related to our 
products. We enable enterprises to meet their computing and storage requirements at a lower total cost of ownership and provide them greater 
flexibility and scalability. We are also a leading developer of enterprise class, high-performance features for the Linux operating system that 
provide our customers with a standard Linux operating environment combined with our differentiated yet un-intrusive Linux capabilities that 
are designed to improve performance, simplify system management, and provide a more robust development environment.  

We pioneered Eco-Logical data center design with innovative technologies in the areas of chassis and cabinet design, power distribution 
techniques, cooling techniques, and hardware-based remote management capabilities. We refer to these advantages as “Eco-Logical,” a term 
we trademarked to best describe our environmentally-friendly, efficient products. The term “eco” refers to the fact that our products are 
environmentally-friendly and efficient, while the term “logical” describes the ability of these products to enable smart, practical solutions for 
our end users. We offer compute servers using our Rackable™ half-depth rackmount design, enabling back-to-back mounting for higher server 
density and improved thermal management. We also offer compute servers using our CloudRack™ tray-based design that deliver similar 
advantages in a front-to-back cooling model. Data center products include ICE Cube™, a modular data center which augments or replaces 
traditional brick-and-mortar facilities and MobiRack™ for mobile, all-in-one data center capabilities for field deployments.  

Our products and services are used by the scientific, technical, and business communities to solve challenging data-intensive computing, 
data storage and management problems. These problems typically require large amounts of computing power and fast and efficient data 
movement both within the computing system and to and from large-scale data storage installations. Enterprises have also begun to deploy 
large-scale computing and storage installations by aggregating large numbers of relatively inexpensive, open-standard modular computing and 
storage systems. Our end-users employ our systems to access, analyze, transform, manage, visualize and store very large amounts of data in 
real time or near real time by running low-cost operating systems such as Linux and Microsoft Windows and, we believe, enable 
enterprises to meet their computing and storage requirements at a lower total cost of ownership and provide enterprises with greater flexibility 
and scalability. The vertical markets we serve include defense and strategic systems, weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, 
energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and automotive, media and entertainment, semiconductor design, manufacturing, financial services, 
data centers, and business intelligence and data analytics.  

Applications for our systems within these vertical markets include simulating global climate changes, accelerating engineering of new 
automotive designs, supporting homeland security initiatives, providing real-time fraud detection, streaming media from Internet-video to film 
and gaining business intelligence through data-mining. Our global services organization facilitates rapid installation and implementation of our 
products, assists in optimizing the use of our products, maintains their availability to serve our customers and educates customers to increase 
productivity.  

From developing custom semi-conductors to data center solutions, we differentiate by scaling for compute and data intensive workloads 
of our customers’ most demanding applications. We have 1,325 employees  
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worldwide, which consist of 1,264 full time employees and 61 temporary or contract employees. We sell and market our systems, technologies, 
software, and services, to enterprises in 26 countries through our direct and indirect sales force including original equipment manufacturers, 
system integrators and value added resellers. In the year ended June 25, 2010, six-months ended June 26, 2009, and the year ended January 3, 
2009, international sales were approximately 25%, 25% and 8%, respectively, of our total revenue.  

Acquisition of Silicon Graphics, Inc.  

On May 8, 2009 (the “Closing Date”), we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Silicon Graphics, Inc. (“Legacy 
SGI”), excluding certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business, including certain of Legacy SGI’s non-U.S. subsidiaries and operations and 
assumed certain liabilities (together, the “Net Assets”). The acquisition was consummated pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase 
Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009 and as amended on April 30, 2009 (as amended, the “Agreement”). As Legacy SGI and certain of its 
affiliates had filed bankruptcy petitions and motions for voluntary Chapter 11 reorganization, the Agreement was subject to the approval of the 
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the “Bankruptcy Court”). On April 30, 2009, the Agreement and the 
transactions contemplated thereby were approved by the Bankruptcy Court, allowing us to complete the acquisition under Section 363 of the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Under the terms of the Agreement, we acquired the Net Assets for a purchase price of approximately $42.5 million in 
cash.  

Change in Corporate Name and Trading Symbol  

We were originally incorporated as Rackable Corporation and later changed to Rackable Systems, Inc. On May 18, 2009, we changed our 
name to Silicon Graphics International Corp. (“SGI”) and changed our NASDAQ stock ticker symbol from “RACK” to “SGI.”  

Change in fiscal year  

On June 19, 2009, the Board of Directors approved a change in our fiscal year end from the Saturday closest to December 31 of each 
year to the last Friday in June of each year. As a result of this change, we had a six month transition period beginning on January 4, 2009 and 
ending on June 26, 2009, consisting of 25 weeks. Accordingly, our fiscal year 2010 began on June 27, 2009 and ended on June 25, 2010.  

Included in this report are our consolidated balance sheets as of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, the consolidated statements of 
operations, statements of stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the 52-week fiscal year ended June 25, 2010 (“2010”), 53-week fiscal year 
ended January 3, 2009 (“2008”), and 52-week fiscal year ended December 29, 2007 (“2007”), and the 25-week, six month transition period 
ended June 26, 2009.  

Segment Information  

Our operating segments are determined based upon several criteria including: our internal organizational structure; the manner in which 
our operations are managed; the criteria used by our Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), to evaluate 
segment performance; and the availability of separate financial information. Our business is organized as two operating segments, products and 
services. Due to their similar economic characteristics, production processes, and distribution methods, we group the product lines as the 
product operating segment and service offerings as the service operating segment. Our CODM reviews financial information presented on a 
consolidated basis, accompanied by disaggregated information about revenue by product and service for purposes of allocating resources and 
evaluating financial performance. The products and services metrics are derived on a contractual basis.  

Our product revenue is comprised of sales of our broad line of low-cost, mid-range and high-end scale-out and scale-up servers and data 
storage solutions, as well as sales of a variety of software products that increase the efficiency, performance, and manageability of the systems 
or software applications for server and storage management. Our servers and data storage solutions are based on the Intel Xeon processors, 
industry standard graphics processors, and the Linux or Microsoft Windows operating systems. Our servers include products  
   

3  

st 

® ® 

® ® 



Table of Contents  

sold under the Altix Supercomputer, Altix ICE Clusters, CloudRack, and Rackable Rackmount server brand names. Our data storage 
solutions are sold under the SGI InfiniteStorage and COPAN™ brand names.  

Our service revenue is comprised of sales from two types of services: customer support services and professional services. Our customer 
support organization provides ongoing maintenance and technical support for our products and some third party products, as well as contracted 
maintenance services, hardware deployment services (install and de-install), time and materials-based services and spare parts. Our 
professional services organization provides technology consulting, project management, managed services, customer education, and third-party 
products needed to complete customer installations, all of which help our customers realize the full value of their information technology 
investments.  

During the year ended June 25, 2010 and the six months ended June 26, 2009, product revenue represented approximately 63% and 76% 
of total revenue, respectively, and service revenue represented approximately 37% and 24% of total revenue, respectively. Prior to the 
acquisition of Legacy SGI, service revenue was immaterial; therefore, the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 have not been 
presented to reflect the new operating segments.  

Customers  

For the year ended June 25, 2010, Amazon accounted for approximately 20% of our revenue. For the year ended January 3, 2009, 
Amazon and Microsoft accounted for approximately 35% and 14% of our revenue, respectively. For the six months ended June 26, 2009, 
Amazon and Microsoft accounted for 30% and 13% of our revenue, respectively. No other customers accounted for more than 10% of our 
revenue for years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2008 and the six months ended June 26, 2009. Our sales to the U.S. 
government, which have been historically less than 10% of our revenues, are made to and through numerous government agencies and to 
integrators and resellers that work with those agencies.  

Information regarding revenue and operating profit by reportable segments and revenue from our customers and long-lived assets by 
geographic region is presented in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Report and in 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Part II, Item 7 of this Report.  

Products  

We provide a broad line of products designed to address the demands of technical computing and data management applications. These 
products allow our customers to run data-intensive applications rapidly and to store their data. Our core products are computing systems and 
storage products based on the Intel Xeon processors and the Linux or Windows operating system. Our storage product lines integrate disk 
systems, ranging from entry-level disk arrays to complex storage systems.  

Our products predominantly utilize a software environment that is based on the industry-standard Linux operating system and 
comprehensive data management tools, as well as open source software and our own execution, development and administrative tools and 
utilities. We believe that our integrated software stack and the features of our architecture and hardware differentiate our product offerings in 
performance and ease of use. Our products can be customized to meet end-user requirements and were developed to permit easy hardware and 
software installation, both to add capacity and to take advantage of future technology advances.  

We design our products for performance, quick deployment, efficient operation, high system availability and efficient serviceability. Our 
servers incorporate premium quality components, selected for superior functionality and reliability. In addition, we design our systems to 
minimize the number and complexity of interconnects for power and data transfer in order to improve reliability, speed of implementation and 
serviceability.  
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We group our products into six categories: Scale Up Servers, Scale Out Servers, Workgroup Servers, Data Storage Systems, Software, 
and Data Center Infrastructure:  

Scale Up Servers:  
   

   

Scale Out Servers:  
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•   Altix UV: SGI Altix UV targets high-end supercomputing, large-scale databases and data analytic environments. SGI Altix UV 
leverages next generation Intel Xeon x86 processors to deliver the fastest and most scalable shared memory supercomputer in the 
world. Altix UV enables scaling from 32 to 2,048 processing cores with architectural provisioning for up to 262,144 cores, while 
supporting up to 16 terabytes of global shared memory in a single system image (SSI). Superior performance is built into every SGI 
Altix UV system, leveraging our high speed 15 gigabytes per second interconnect NUMAlink 5 and MPI Offload Engine (MOE) 
acceleration. Based on open standards, the system’s x86 architecture leverages quad-, six- or eight-core Intel Xeon 7500 series 
processors. This allows for the use of completely unmodified Novell SLES or Red Hat Enterprise Linux server operating 
systems. Altix UV is ideal for open source, custom and commercial applications, ranging from technical computing applications like 
ANSYS FLUENT to enterprise applications like Oracle.  

  

•   Altix 450/4700: Altix 450 and 4700 are our prior-generation Intel Itanium processor based scale-up supercomputing systems. 
Altix 450 scales from 2 to 38 processors (4 to 76 cores) and up to 864 gigabytes of globally addressable memory. Altix 4700 scales 
from 2 to 512 sockets (4 to 1024 cores) and up to 128 gigabytes of globally addressable memory. Both models are supported by a 
complete technical computing solution stack running on industry-standard Linux operating systems with the choice of Novell 
SUSE LINUX Enterprise Server or Red Hat Enterprise Linux Advanced Server operating systems.  

  

•   Rackable (including Altix XE servers): Rackable servers are comprised of industry-standard rackmount compatible form factors 
and are available in both half-depth and standard-depth form factors. Our flagship half-depth servers are high-density, rack-mounted 
systems designed specifically for large-scale data center environments. This line of servers utilizes our half-depth, back-to-back 
chassis design to increase physical server density, reducing floor space requirements. When deployed in our cabinets, we are 
generally able to offer approximately twice the server or processor density of traditional rack-mount solutions. We provide a range of 
power and heat management techniques that enable our servers to operate effectively at these density levels. These servers also 
provide configurable components, front-facing cable connections for enhanced serviceability and remote management functionality 
either based on our proprietary Roamer™ or industry-standard IPMI-based technologies. Our standard-depth servers consist of 
several models marketed under the Rackable and Altix XE brands. These models leverage reseller and OEM relationships from 
companies such as SuperMicro Computer, Inc. Standard-depth servers are generally deployed in situations requiring redundant 
power supplies and/or installation into existing third-party racks with front-to-back cooling (also known as “hot-aisle/cold-aisle” 
deployments). The standard-depth servers offer a broader range of add-in card or disk drive expansion options than what can be 
accommodated in our half-depth offerings. They are also used in conjunction with our other scale-up and scale-out computing 
systems as management nodes.  

  

•   CloudRack™: Sold as a rack-level solution, CloudRack C2 cabinets support up to 38 trays—a proprietary, coverless form factor that 
yields a high degree of flexibility and server density while conforming to industry-standard hot-aisle/cold-aisle data center 
environments. In addition to improved serviceability due to easy access to server components, the tray form factor enables 
CloudRack to be optimized for use of open-standard components at the motherboard, processor, Dynamic Random Access Memory 
(“DRAM”) and disk drive level. CloudRack’s advanced thermal design eliminates all cooling fans at the server level, instead relying 
on larger cabinet-level cooling technology. This increases reliability while reducing power consumption. This design offers 
advantages for many data  
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Workgroup Servers:  
   

   

Data Storage Systems:  

Our InfiniteStorage product line is comprised of direct attached storage (DAS), SAN, and network-attached storage (NAS), solutions 
designed to meet the needs of technical and cloud computing and persistent data.  
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center environments, especially those focused on cloud computing. We also offer CloudRack X2 which supports up to nine trays in 
an industry-standard rackmount enclosure.  

  

•   Altix ICE: Altix ICE 8400, with its innovative blade design and quad data rate InfiniBand interconnect, is our primary scale-out 
solution for large technical computing clusters. Altix ICE makes it easy to affordably scale up to 65,536 compute nodes. Its open x86 
architecture makes it equally simple to deploy commercial, open source or custom applications on completely unmodified Novell 
SLES or Red Hat Enterprise Linux operating systems. In addition to support for Intel Xeon 5500 and 5600 series processors, 
we also announced our intention to release blades supporting AMD Opteron™ processors starting the first quarter of fiscal year 
2011.  

  

•   Origin 400: First introduced in March 2010, Origin 400 is an integrated workgroup blade system that features compute and storage 
area network (SAN) storage functionality, making it ideal for remote offices and small to medium-sized enterprises. Origin 400 
delivers highly differentiated enterprise features, such as virtualization capabilities that provide maximum flexibility and eliminate 
the need to over invest in hardware. Extensive software certifications, including VMware , Linux , SAP , Microsoft Windows 

, Microsoft Exchange and Microsoft SQL Server , ensure suitability for a large number of applications. Origin 400 is a single 
platform that functions seamlessly as a web server, applications server, email server and backend database server. It addresses a 
variety of enterprise verticals, including regional healthcare, education, local government, retail, software development, call centers, 
community banking, accounting and legal.  

  

•   Octane™ III: Octane III is our first personal supercomputer, taking high-performance computing to a new level by combining the 
immense power and performance capabilities of a high-performance desk side cluster with the portability and usability of a 
workstation. Octane III is uniquely suited for workplace environments and supports a vast range of distributed technical computing 
applications. Octane III is office-ready with a pedestal, one-by-two foot form factor, whisper-quiet operation, easy-to-use features, 
low maintenance requirements and support for standard office power outlets. While a typical workstation has only eight cores and 
moderate memory capacity, the superior design of the Octane III permits up to 120 high-performance cores and nearly 1 terabyte of 
memory for unparalleled performance.  

  
•   EBOD: Our expansion bunch of disk (EBOD) products are available in both half-depth and full depth configurations in order to 

maximize density, performance and capacity, depending on our customer needs.  

  

•   Storage Servers: Leveraging our unique server expertise and adding high performance input/output (“I/O”) capabilities, the Storage 
Server line-up is composed of both half-depth and full-depth servers. Scaling from 8 to 36 drives per server, and with a wide variety 
of network interfaces, this product line is the foundation for many of our storage solutions, which combines hardware and software to 
offer differentiated solutions that address core customer needs.  

  

•   Entry Level RAID: Our Entry Level redundant array of independent disk (RAID) products are focused on delivering a high 
price/performance ratio. Easily deployable, this line of products works equally well for small work groups, small to medium size 
enterprises and small data centers. With a wide range of host interfaces and feature functionality, this product line offers customers 
flexibility to tune their storage array to their exact requirements.  
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Software:  

Our software stack for technical computing runs on standard, unmodified distributions of Novell SLES or Red Hat Enterprise Linux 
server operating systems. We also sell and support Novell SLED , Red Hat Enterprise Linux Desktop, Microsoft Windows Server 2008 

and 2008 R2, Microsoft HPC Server 2008, and Microsoft Windows 7 on selected systems. We also certify selected servers for use with 
VMware ESX.  
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•   Enterprise RAID: Our InfiniteStorage 4000 series of RAID systems meets the reliability, availability and serviceability 

requirements for Enterprise data storage needs. Scalable up to 480 disk drives, this family of products features both robust hardware 
and copy feature services such as Snap Shot and Remote Mirroring, enabling data protection and disaster recovery strategies.  

  

•   InfiniteStorage SP Line: Introduced in May 2010, the InfiniteStorage Select Product (“SP”) line was specifically introduced to meet 
the need of heterogeneous environments and the need to integrate tightly with common enterprise applications. With plug-ins for 
applications like Oracle, VMware and Microsoft Exchange, the InfiniteStorage SP line seamlessly integrates into a wide variety of 
environments.  

  

•   HPC RAID: Our InfiniteStorage 6120 and 15000 are designed to meet the high performance and capacity requirements found in 
typical high performance compute (“HPC”) workloads. Offering scalability to 1,200 disk drives, guaranteed latency and extremely 
high bandwidth, our HPC RAID systems are suitable for the requirements of digital media, supercomputing, life sciences and remote 
sensor acquisition.  

  

•   NAS products: We offer two distinct NAS solutions. First is our File Serving solution, which is a scalable high performance file 
serving solution focused on low cost performance and serving over high performance networks such as InfiniBand. Second is our 
NAS line of network file solutions which is focused equally on high performance and enterprise data protection requirements. Both 
of these solutions serve as gateways in front of the SGI InfiniteStorage RAID systems mentioned above.  

  

•   MAID Systems: In February 2010, we acquired COPAN Systems, Inc. (“COPAN”) and its massive array of idle disks (“MAID”) 
storage platform. Intended to address the needs of long-term data storage in organizations, the COPAN platform is purpose built to 
meet persistent data handling requirements. Key to this is the ability to take disk drives completely off-line, thereby providing 
significant cost savings on power and cooling. In addition, COPAN’s unique packaging enables density levels unseen in typical 
RAID systems. The COPAN systems are available in both VTL (virtual tape library) and native MAID (disk target) configurations. 
In June 2010, we announced plans to deliver the next generation of COPAN platforms, significantly improving performance and 
increasing the number of drives that can be initiated at any one time to 50% of the array.  

  

•   SGI Management Center: SGI Management Center is the current generation of our system management software drawing on our 
expertise in providing the highest performance and ease of use on cluster and single system image systems. It provides a consistent 
management interface and workflow for all SGI systems, with support for Altix ICE systems expected to be introduced in Fall 2010. 
SGI Management Center is a full remote system management console with an advanced graphical user interface (GUI) which 
monitors essential system metrics and initiates management actions from a single point of control. SGI Management Center is 
designed to reduce the time and resources spent by customers administering their systems by streamlining software maintenance 
procedures and automating repetitive tasks. The comprehensive features of SGI Management Center are designed to lower 
customer’s cost of operation, increase productivity, and provide for optimal use of our systems.  

  

•   SGI ProPack™: SGI ProPack for Linux improves performance and provides key additional capabilities for developers of technical 
computing applications on all of our systems supported on standard Linux distributions. SGI ProPack for Linux provides features that 
accelerate applications, enable development of parallel and real-time applications, and manage system resources for SGI’s large 
scalable servers,  
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Data Center Infrastructure:  
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clusters and storage. SGI ProPack includes such components as the SGI Message Passing Toolkit (MPT) for very high levels of 
scalability and performance of MPI applications on our systems, the SGI MPI PerfBoost which accelerates applications written for 
third-party MPI libraries on SGI systems, the SGI REACT™ for Linux hard real-time performance, and many other run-time and 
compile-time tools in a single software library.  

  

•   SGI Tempo: SGI Tempo is cluster management software which enables administrators to install, configure, provision, and manage 
an SGI Altix ICE from a single rack to thousands of nodes. SGI Tempo cluster management software is designed for rapid 
deployment, efficient scaling, and reliable operations in the most demanding technical computing data centers. While leveraging 
available open source tools for familiar cluster operations, it also provides a scalable and reliable hierarchical management 
framework (HMF) which speeds deployment while improving performance and resiliency of the management functions. In addition, 
SGI Tempo provides an innovative approach to diskless boot operations which reduces overall memory capacity requirements for 
diskless servers and increases reliability of the compute node by alleviating the need for a local hard drive which is a common failure 
component.  

  

•   SGI Foundation Software: SGI Foundation Software is our suite of support tools and utilities that enable our servers to run more 
reliably, with improved support, and enable new server capabilities. SGI Foundation software includes key capabilities to monitor 
and proactively manage memory component failures in our servers, which minimizes or eliminates impact of these failures on system 
users. SGI Foundation Software also includes customized simple network management protocol (“SNMP”) interfaces for many of 
our systems, allowing them to interface easily to Enterprise Management Systems.  

  

•   DMF: Our Data Migration Facility (DMF) creates and automatically manages a tiered virtual storage environment that significantly 
reduces customer equipment and operating costs, improves service levels and lowers customer data risks. DMF incorporates industry 
leading features such as automatic data migration, automatic data recall, file and volume level migration policies, custom migration 
policies through user-defined plug-ins, accelerated data access, partial file migration and recall, Active Backup, GUI-based 
administration and tape library management. Currently, DMF is deployed at customer sites managing multiple petabytes of data, 
nearly one billion files, and runs storage devices at their maximum rated speed. DMF operates in the background so there is no 
interruption or degradation of service to end users and applications.  

  

•   CXFS™: Our CXFS software provides no-compromise data sharing, enhanced workflow, and reduced costs in data-intensive 
environments. It eliminates file duplication and the time it takes to move large files over networks. CXFS significantly boosts 
productivity where large files are shared by multiple processes in a workflow. Because it uses a SAN infrastructure, CXFS delivers 
much greater I/O performance and bandwidth than any network data-sharing mechanism, such as network file system (“NFS”) or 
common internet file system (“CIFS”).  

  

•   ICE Cube: In March 2007, we launched and sold our first modular data center, which is a self-contained, portable data center 
featuring extreme server and storage density with highly efficient cooling and serviceability. Later that year, we released the newest 
generation of the product, known as “ICE Cube.” Designed to augment or replace traditional brick-and-mortar data centers of any 
size, ICE Cube features density levels of up to 46,080 processing cores in a forty feet-by-eight feet container, or up to 29.8 petabytes 
of storage and is ideal for data centers facing power and space limitations. Our introduction marked the first-ever known deployment 
of a modular data center, and we are seeing strong interest in this model given the growing challenges many large-scale data centers 
face today around power, cooling and space. In May 2010, we introduced six new models, including universal models that support all 
of our server and storage products in addition to wide support for rackmount systems from other vendors.  

® 



Table of Contents  

In addition to selling these products to customers, we also make select products available through Cyclone™, our Cloud Computing 
offering. A customer using Cyclone pays for access over the Internet to our high performance computing servers and attached storage systems 
on a per core hour basis.  

Global Services  

Our global services organization is comprised of customer support services and professional services which function as a single business 
unit. Both customer support services and professional services develop and implement complete services solutions for our customers, as well as 
provide a complete suite of support and maintenance offerings to address the requirements and business strategies of our customers, 
distributors and resellers.  

Our global services organization offers market competitive warranties, from one (1) to three (3) years and warranty upgrade options for 
products sold by our internal direct sales team and approved distributors and resellers. The global services organizations use existing processes, 
tools and services in order to leverage our existing investments and capabilities that work within our current environment. We are committed to 
fulfilling all contractual service level agreements to meet our customer’s maintenance and support requirements ranging from SGI FullCare 
8x5™ support to the SGI FullExpress™ 24X7 for the most mission critical environments. Our support services may include hardware and 
software maintenance in support of our systems, installation project management, system installation, spares management, site preparation and 
technical training for our systems as well as all software upgrades and updates. Delivery of services may also be provided using our approved 
distributors and resellers or other approved third-party providers.  

Customer Support. Our customers may purchase customer support services that include various levels of support. We offer several levels 
of support that vary depending on specific services, response times, coverage hours and duration. In addition to our standard offerings, our 
customer support services provide a potential competitive advantage due to our long term relationships with our customer base as well as the 
expertise of our systems engineers. This enables us to leverage our high quality service personnel and strong customer relationships to also 
offer multi-vendor support as part of our standard service offerings. Upon the acquisition of Legacy SGI, we consolidated the support programs 
to now offer a single comprehensive suite of support programs for all of our customers.  

Professional Services. Our professional services group provides fee-based consultative services to our customers and system integrators. 
We architect, design, implement, and manage or assist with the management of complex, complete solutions for our customers’ information 
technology infrastructure. Our engagements are used to ensure customer success with our product and technology. This is done with custom 
time and materials or fixed price contract consulting services, through standard installation and value-add services offerings, and through long-
term on-site staff augmentation services. We also obtain and integrate third party hardware and software products into solutions we sell and 
implement for our customers and system integrators. Through our on-site staff augmentation services, we develop and maintain long-term 
relationships with our customers which allow us to more closely understand their IT requirements.  

Sales and Distribution  

We sell our systems and services primarily through our direct sales force and distributors, system integrators, value-added resellers, 
OEMs and channel partners. Our sales teams consist of sales representatives and sales engineers, who are supported by channel, inside sales, 
sales support and professional services personnel. Our professional services and engineering personnel collaborate with our sales teams in all 
stages of the sales and integration process, including developing proposals that address the technical requirements of our customers, performing 
proofs of concept and benchmarking system performance.  
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By selling our products through our direct sales team, we are able to maintain close client contact and feedback throughout the entire 
sales process. Our sales process begins with leads generated through targeted marketing programs and by our inside sales team, which are then 
logged, qualified and assigned to an account executive. After an initial lead qualification, our sales executives and sales engineers collect 
information regarding the customer’s data center environment and application requirements. We then collaborate with the customer’s technical 
point of contact and our own internal technical resources to agree upon a particular system configuration for the customer. For larger 
customers, we allow evaluation of one or more hardware configurations to enable the customer to conduct their own benchmarking analyses. 
While we tailor solutions for most customers, there is substantial commonality in underlying components, so we are able to mitigate the impact 
on our manufacturing and sourcing operations.  

We currently have direct sales personnel in 19 countries—the United States, United Kingdom, Germany, Australia, France, China, India, 
Czech Republic, Canada, Spain, Israel, Netherlands, Brazil, Italy, Sweden, Singapore, Switzerland, Malaysia and Austria. We augment our 
sales coverage with indirect coverage via distributor and channel partner arrangements in countries in which we have a presence. We are 
engaged in a multi-year program to further develop additional channel partner relationships in order to improve our indirect sales efforts, 
expand our customer base and enter new markets. Our direct sales personnel are responsible for managing all direct or indirect sales with 
specific named accounts and our channel sales personnel are responsible for managing all sales that are not with specific named accounts.  

In our largest markets, our sales representatives have a vertical market focus to more effectively leverage their domain expertise. We 
establish direct sales groups focused on different segments. One group concentrates on the defense and intelligence, scientific research and 
higher education markets while the second focuses on the commercial business intelligence and data analytics market. We have developed 
expertise in a number of vertical market segments, including weather and climate; physical sciences; life sciences; energy, aerospace and 
automotive; financial services; internet and media and entertainment. In support of this increased vertical market segment sales focus, we have 
begun a program to identify typical customer workflows in each vertical market segment in order to configure standard solutions offerings that 
include our hardware, software, storage and professional services.  

We have increased our sales and marketing efforts recently in the commercial business intelligence and data analytics markets in an effort 
to expand our penetration of these markets. We also intend to expand our targeted customer base to include all organizations with technical 
computing requirements, the largest firms through our direct selling force and the more modest sized regional firms through our channel 
partners. Our channel program is designed to work with those partners who provide additional geographic and vertical market coverage for 
SGI-based solutions. We have created a channel council to increase communication between channel partners and our executive team in order 
to guide this program.  

We will work with customers to arrange financing options through lease transactions with third-party financial institutions and assist in 
the remarketing of off-lease systems.  

Marketing  

Our marketing organization is active in all markets in which we sell products and services and continuously executes on programs that 
encompass sales tools, brand awareness, and demand generation. The marketing team consists of product marketing, field marketing, corporate 
marketing, and channel marketing. In order to drive market demand, we create and deliver on a number of marketing vehicles including 
industry and customer events, webinars, case studies, advertisements and white papers to showcase and demonstrate the capabilities of our 
systems. Our marketing channels include a mix of product-based marketing activities which leverage our hardware and software expertise and 
our industry-based activities which leverage our deep understanding of customer challenges and applications. Our marketing team also works 
with industry experts, analysts and members of the press to generate awareness about our products and services. Using our history and 
experience in  
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the technical computing community, we issue white papers on technology trends such as performance ratings, benchmark results, power, 
cooling and system management. As both exhibitors and speakers, we participate in over 50 events worldwide on an annual basis, thereby 
maintaining a constant presence with our customers, prospects, and industry influencers.  

We maintain active programs to encourage independent software development on our differentiated platforms. Through our Solution 
Network Program™, we provide software, marketing support and access to hardware to attract and enable software developers to leverage the 
differentiations in our hardware and software products in their applications and hence add value to our customers. This program includes the 
key Independent Software Vendor’s (“ISV”) covering all our target market segments and provides technical information to ISVs for 
developing, porting, tuning and differentiating their applications and opportunities for promoting their SGI-based solutions. We also engage in 
co-marketing activities with many of our ISVs.  

We also develop co-marketing partnerships with our major customers and suppliers. We provide and maintain a comprehensive channel 
portal and marketing program, which provides significant marketing support to an active and established base of channel partners worldwide.  

Research and Development  

Our research and development organization includes hardware design engineers, software architects and developers, and storage 
engineers. We focus our research and development efforts where we believe differentiation from a standard component, product or technology 
holds the highest potential for increasing our market share. These include shared memory computing system architecture; integrated system 
implementation optimized for space, power, performance, reliability and usability; the Linux development and operating environment; software 
to exploit the differentiated features of our computing platforms; and storage software to enable better performance, scalability and ease of 
management of large amounts of data. We have developed cooperative working relationships with many of the world’s most advanced 
technology companies, such as AMD and Intel, to leverage their research and development capabilities. Additionally, we work closely with our 
customers to develop product innovations and incorporate these into subsequent product design. This cooperative approach allows us to 
develop products that meet our customers’ needs in a cost-effective manner. We monitor new technology developments, new component 
availability, and the impact of evolving standards through customer and supplier collaboration. From time to time, we accept third-party 
funding, provided the work being funded is consistent with and contributes to our strategic roadmap.  

UV System development. We have invested significantly in the development of application-specific integrated circuits (ASICs) and 
interconnect technology in order to create next-generation shared-memory systems. We have recently completed the introduction of the 
Altix UV shared-memory system based on the fifth-generation of our NUMAlink interconnect and NUMAflex architecture. This 
architecture is intended to increase substantially the performance and scalability of our single system image shared-memory products, as 
well as to incorporate hybrid processing elements and provide optimized features to enhance application performance on a cluster 
computing system. We are currently developing the sixth-generation of this same architecture.  

System architecture and hardware design. We also recently introduced the Altix ICE 8400, which offers superior system configuration 
flexibility and is based on InfiniBand interconnect. We continue to emphasize scalability, extremely dense packaging, dramatic power 
and thermal efficiency, enterprise-class reliability, availability and serviceability features, impressive configurability, and strong 
interoperability in our designs. We expect these design efforts to enable us to introduce products that reach broader market segments.  

Software. Our research and development efforts include the development of software tools and utilities that facilitate more efficient 
management and operation of our systems as well as enable software applications to run faster on our systems. In addition, we continue to 
enhance our software development and operating environments. Our experience in creating and implementing complex systems benefits 
our development of  
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new tools. Leveraging this experience, we have developed the SGI Management Center as a means for accelerating results. SGI 
Management Center is a premier software environment for high performance technical computing. It is a complete, integrated 
environment from desk side to supercomputer. It consists of extensible SGI software based on open standards and services that improve 
the productivity of users, developers, and system administrators.  

Storage. We develop software for file serving, data management and energy efficient data archival for petascale environments. We select 
“best-in-class” storage hardware, including disk arrays and controllers from OEM suppliers that meet the particular needs of our 
customers’ applications and environments. Our engineers design software for efficient data access and management of these storage 
systems and we qualify storage systems ranging from small appliances to enterprise-class storage systems. We strive to tightly integrate 
the storage software and the hardware systems. We optimize the software that we include in our storage solutions for capacity-driven and 
performance-driven applications and environments.  

Modular Data Center. We have revolutionized data center design principles through the development of ICE Cube. ICE Cube meets the 
need for data center facility capacity with a just-in-time approach, minimizing up-front costs. Our engineers have designed multiple 
container models to provide the configurability to address varying IT and site requirements—all while delivering extraordinary density 
levels of up to 46,080 computational cores or 29.8 petabytes of data storage per container. We have designed ICE Cube models to 
accommodate varying types of IT equipment with ease, including third-party equipment as well as SGI server and storage systems. These 
many advantages make ICE Cube the ideal data center solution for a wide range of deployment scenarios, augmenting or replacing 
traditional data centers of any size.  

Through our global benchmarking center and our solutions center, we provide access to a full range of our server, storage hardware and 
software, integrated in a wide variety of configurations, for application testing, benchmarking and performance tuning by end-users. At these 
centers, our personnel, including our application benchmarking team and domain, algorithm, technical computing and facility experts, work 
with end-users to build and optimize large-scale cluster computing systems, conduct proof-of-concept testing and simulate end-user 
environments. Through these centers, we also provide demonstrations of the standardized SGI workflow solutions that we have developed and 
are developing for their vertical markets. In addition, our global developer program provides ISVs, systems integrators and consultants 
technical information for developing and porting their applications, as well as access to our online systems to streamline the implementation.  

During the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007, and the six months ended June 26, 2009, our research 
and development expenses were $56.9 million, $14.9 million, $13.8 million, and $10.7 million, respectively, representing 14%, 6%, 4%, and 
10% of total revenue in each respective period. During the year ended June 25, 2010 and the six months ended June 26, 2009, we received $2.0 
million and $0.9 million, respectively, in third-party funding which offset a portion of our research and development expenses. During the 
years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, we did not receive any third-party funding.  

We believe that focused investments in research and development are critical to our future performance and competitiveness in the 
marketplace. Our investments in this area will directly relate to enhancement of our current product line, development of new products that 
achieve market acceptance, and our ability to meet an expanding range of customer requirements. As such, we expect to continue to spend on 
current and future product development efforts.  

Manufacturing and Operations  

Our sole manufacturing facility, located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin, is responsible for worldwide production, supply-chain 
management and order fulfillment. Our manufacturing operations involve the on-site assembly and testing of high-level subassemblies, 
subsystems and complete systems, configured to customer  
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specifications. We subject complete systems to environmental and functional testing prior to shipment. Our consolidated worldwide 
manufacturing operations increase our control over our supply chain and our inventories.  

Our supply base is composed of suppliers that meet our rigorous quality and technology standards. We maximize the use of industry-
standard components in our products to reduce cost, and we custom design components where we believe that doing so adds value to the 
customer. We have established close relationships with key suppliers and work closely with them on new product introduction plans, strategic 
inventories, and internal and external manufacturing schedules and levels. Consistent with industry practice, we acquire components through a 
combination of formal purchase orders, supplier contracts and open orders based on projected demand information. These purchase 
commitments typically cover our requirements for periods ranging from 30 to 120 days.  

Competition  

The server and storage markets are highly competitive, with rapid technological advances and constantly improving price/performance 
ratios. These advances and pricing pressures result in frequent product introductions and short product life cycles. We believe that purchasers 
make buying decisions based on many factors, including: product quality and reliability, ease of system management, application availability, 
price/performance ratios, software functionality, product features, total cost of ownership, and quality customer service and support. We 
believe we compete effectively in each of these areas by providing differentiated products and services that address the needs of our customers. 

The market for our products is highly competitive, rapidly evolving and subject to changing technology, customer needs and new product 
introductions. In the server market, we compete primarily with large and build-to-order vendors of x86 servers based in the United States, such 
as Dell Inc. (“Dell”), Hewlett-Packard Company (“HP”), International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”), and Oracle Corporation 
(“Oracle”). In the storage market, we compete primarily with EMC Corporation (“EMC”), NetApp Inc. (“NetApp”) and Hitachi Data Systems, 
Inc. (“HDS”). In all of our markets we compete principally on the basis of product features and performance, build-to-order capabilities, total 
cost of ownership, customer service, configurability and manageability and the ability to deliver environmentally friendly solutions. The ability 
of competitors to leverage multiple business lines, which we do not offer, allows them to target customers with benefits and deeper discounted 
pricing. Also, as we continue to enter international markets, we anticipate facing additional competition from foreign vendors.  

Our largest competitors have far greater resources, greater name recognition, larger customer bases and greater financial, technical, sales 
and marketing resources. For the largest systems in the supercomputing category, our principal competitor is IBM. We also compete with other 
systems manufacturers and resellers of systems based on x86 class processors with our CloudRack, Rackable and Altix ICE product lines. 
Because a computing system is a substantial investment that can require extensive service and support commitments, our smaller size can have 
a significant competitive impact. In some instances, the diversified business of our competitors can support deep discounting to gain market 
share in the technical computing market. In addition, particularly in the storage market, there are many new companies that are competing with 
us and rapidly introducing new products and technology.  

Proprietary Rights and Licenses  

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws and disclosure restrictions to protect our intellectual 
property rights. We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with our employees, consultants and other third parties. We 
currently have issued and have pending approximately 600 U.S. patents in the United States and abroad, and we intend to continue to protect 
our intellectual property with patents. We also hold various U.S. and foreign trademarks as well as copyrights in our original software. 
Although we believe the ownership of patents, copyrights, trademarks and service marks, and trade secrets is an  
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important factor in our business and that our success depends in part on ownership rights, we rely primarily on the innovative skills, technical 
competence, and marketing abilities of our personnel to differentiate our products and services within the marketplace.  

As is customary in our industry, we license from third parties a wide range of software, including the Linux, Microsoft CCS and UNIX 
operating systems, for internal use and use by our customers. We also license various patents and trade secrets of third parties through 
agreements such as patent or technology licenses or cross-licenses. In some cases, our intellectual property is licensed to third parties.  

Our success will depend in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property portfolio and proprietary information. From time to time, 
we may need to enforce our intellectual property rights through litigation. If a claim is asserted that we have infringed the intellectual property 
rights of a third party, we may be required to seek licenses under those intellectual property rights, if available, pay damages and/or redesign 
our products. If we were to litigate, we would incur significant costs, litigation may be a significant distraction for our management team, and 
we might not ultimately prevail. Litigation or changes in the interpretation of intellectual property laws could expand or reduce the extent to 
which we or our competitors are able to protect intellectual property and could require significant changes in product design. Because of 
technological changes and the extent of issued patents in our industry, it is possible certain components of our products and business methods 
may unknowingly infringe existing patents of others. Our industry has seen a substantial increase in litigation with respect to intellectual 
property matters, and we have been engaged in intellectual property disputes as a defendant as well as in an effort to protect our rights. We 
expect that we will engage in patent infringement litigation from time to time. See Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K.  

Backlog  

We manufacture products based on a combination of specific order requirements and forecasts of our customers’ demand. Orders are 
generally placed by customers on an as-needed basis. An accepted order can be canceled only with our written consent, and only on terms that 
will indemnify us against resulting losses, including, but not limited to, any costs already incurred in performing the order. In certain 
circumstances, purchase orders are subject to change with respect to quantity of product or timing of delivery resulting from changes in 
customer requirements. Our business is characterized by seasonal and intra-quarter variability in demand, as well as short lead-times and 
product delivery schedules. Accordingly, backlog at any given time may not be a meaningful indicator of future revenue.  

Environmental Laws  

Certain of our products and operations are regulated under various laws in the U.S., Europe and other parts of the world relating to the 
environment, including laws and regulations that can limit the use of certain substances in our products or require us to recycle our products 
when they become waste. It is our policy to ensure that our operations and products comply with environmental laws at all times. We track 
regulatory developments that may impact our business and devote resources toward developing strategies for compliance with new 
requirements as they are enacted.  

Employees  

As of June 25, 2010, we had 1,325 employees which consist of 1,264 full time employees and 61 temporary or contract employees. Our 
future success will require that we continue to retain and motivate highly qualified technical, sales, marketing, finance and management 
personnel. We have never had a work stoppage, and no employees are represented by a labor union. We have workers’ councils where required 
by the European Union or other applicable laws.  
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Corporate Data  

We were originally incorporated as Rackable Corporation and later changed our name to Rackable Systems, Inc. (“Rackable Systems”). 
Rackable Systems was incorporated in the state of Delaware in December 2002 in connection with the acquisition of substantially all of the 
assets and liabilities of Rackable Systems’ predecessor company. On May 8, 2009, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the 
assets, excluding certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business, and assumed certain liabilities of Silicon Graphics, Inc. Effective May 18, 
2009, Rackable Systems changed its name to Silicon Graphics International Corp.  

Our website address is www.sgi.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and 10-QT, current reports on 
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports are available, without charge, on the investor relations section of our website, www.sgi.com, as 
soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics and the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Strategic Planning Committee and 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of our Board of Directors are also posted on our website at http://investors.sgi.com/. Copies 
are also available, without charge, from the Corporate Secretary, Silicon Graphics International Corp., 46600 Landing Parkway, Fremont, CA 
94538. The information contained in, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference herein.  

Executive Officers of the Registrant  

Our executive officers, their ages and positions as of September 1, 2010, are as follows:  
   

Mark Barrenechea joined SGI in November 2006 as a member of our board of directors, and in April 2007 became our President and 
Chief Executive Officer. Previously, Mr. Barrenechea served as Executive Vice President and CTO for CA, Inc. (“CA”), (formerly Computer 
Associates International, Inc.), a software company, from 2003 to 2006 and was a member of the executive management team. Prior to CA, 
Mr. Barrenechea served as Senior Vice President of Applications Development at Oracle Corporation, an enterprise software company, from 
1997 to 2003, managing a multi-thousand person global team while serving as a member of the executive management team. From 1994 to 
1997, Mr. Barrenechea served as Vice President of Development at Scopus, an applications company. Prior to Scopus, Mr. Barrenechea was 
with Tesseract, an applications company, where he was responsible for reshaping the company’s line of human capital management software as 
Vice President of Development. Mr. Barrenechea holds a Bachelor of Science degree in computer science from Saint Michael’s College.  

James Wheat joined SGI in April 2008 and in May 2008 was named as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. From 2006 
to 2008, Mr. Wheat served as the Vice President and Corporate Controller at Lam Research, a publicly traded company engaged in designing, 
manufacturing, marketing and servicing semiconductor processing equipment. Mr. Wheat served as Corporate Controller at Asyst 
Technologies, Inc. from 2005 to 2006, a publicly traded company that develops, manufactures, sells and supports integrated hardware and 
software automation systems and he also served as acting principal financial officer in 2006. From 2003 to 2004, Mr. Wheat served as Senior 
Director of Finance for Sybase, Inc., an enterprise software company. Prior to 2003, Mr. Wheat held senior financial management positions at 
various public and private companies  
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Name    Age    Position 

Mark J. Barrenechea     45    Chief Executive Officer, President and Director 
James Wheat     52    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Anthony Carrozza     55    Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales 
Maurice Leibenstern     49    General Counsel, SVP and Corporate Secretary 
Timothy Pebworth     44    Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer 
Jennifer Pratt     49    Senior Vice President of Human Resources 
Rick Rinehart     51    Senior Vice President of Services 
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including Tele-Video, Sunterra Corporation, Raychem, Core-Mark International, Spectra Physics and Honeywell. Mr. Wheat holds a B.B.A. in 
Accounting and Business from the University of Michigan and a Masters of Business Administration from the Wharton School of the 
University of Pennsylvania and is a Certified Public Accountant in California.  

Anthony Carrozza joined SGI in March 2008. In his role as Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales, Mr. Carrozza is responsible for 
SGI’s product sales for both direct and indirect customers on a worldwide basis. Mr. Carrozza brings more than twenty five years of worldwide 
sales experience in the technology sector. Prior to joining SGI, Mr. Carrozza was with Neterion, Inc. from 2006 to 2008, a company that 
designed and manufactured 10 gigabyte Ethernet ASICs, where he was vice president, sales. Mr. Carrozza was with Quantum Corporation, a 
manufacturer of storage systems, from 1987 to 2006. When Mr. Carrozza left Quantum, he held the title of senior vice president, worldwide 
sales and was a member of the executive management team. Mr. Carrozza holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in political science from Iona 
College.  

Maurice Leibenstern joined SGI in September 2007 as General Counsel and Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary. 
Mr. Leibenstern brings more than 20 years of high tech legal experience to SGI. Most recently, he was at CA, Inc. from 1998 to 2007, as the 
Chief Legal Counsel for Worldwide Sales, while serving as a Senior Vice President and member of the company’s Senior Leadership Team. 
Prior to CA, Mr. Leibenstern worked at IBM, a computer hardware and software company, from 1992 to 1997. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in 
History from Brooklyn College of the City University of New York and a J.D. from New York University School of Law.  

Timothy Pebworth became the Vice President, Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer of SGI in May 2008. Prior to joining 
the Company, Mr. Pebworth served as the Chief Financial Officer of 24/7 Customer, Inc. from April 2007 to April 2008 and as the Corporate 
Controller from April 2005 to March 2007. From December 2002 to March 2005, Mr. Pebworth was a Senior Finance Manager at Intel 
Corporation serving in the Technology Manufacturing Group overseeing microprocessor, chipset and flash costing and inventory. Prior to 
leaving Intel in April 2005, and while still serving in his capacity in the Technology Manufacturing Group, Mr. Pebworth was promoted to a 
Controller position. Mr. Pebworth holds a M.B.A. from the Peter F. Drucker Graduate School of Management and a B.A. from Ambassador 
College in Pasadena, California. He is a Certified Public Accountant and Certified Management Accountant.  

Jennifer Pratt joined SGI in March 2005 and moved into her current role as Senior Vice President of Human Resources in May 2009. Ms 
Pratt brings more than twenty five years of human resources experience. Prior to joining SGI, Ms. Pratt was the senior director of human 
resources at New Wave Research, a manufacturer of laser based systems, from 2003 to 2005. Ms. Pratt served as the vice president of human 
resources of Appiant Technologies, Inc., a unified communications, software applications company, from 2000 to 2003. Prior to 2000, Ms Pratt 
held senior human resource positions in a variety of industries including technology, manufacturing and healthcare. Ms. Pratt holds a Bachelor 
of Science degree in Business Administration from Morningside College, Sioux City, Iowa.  

Rick Rinehart joined SGI in May 2010 as the Senior Vice President of Services and is responsible for SGI’s services on a worldwide 
basis. Mr. Rinehart has over 20 years of experience in the service business, and most recently came from Oracle (Sun Microsystems), where he 
held the position of Vice President, Global Customer Services for North America. Prior to that he held positions as Senior Director, Sun 
Federal Services with Sun Microsystems from 2006 to 2007, and from 2005 to 2006, he served as Director of Services for Storagetek for the 
federal business, which was acquired by Sun Microsystems. Prior to that, Mr. Rinehart worked as General Manager for NCR Corporation from 
2001 to 2005. He holds a BS in Information Systems Management from the University of Maryland, and Master of Science degree in Business 
Administration through Central Michigan University.  
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Item 1A. Risk Factors  

Risks Related To Our Business and Industry  

Our periodic operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and will continue to fluctuate in the future, which could cause 
our stock price to decline.  

Our quarterly and annual periodic operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past, and we believe that they will continue to 
fluctuate in the future, due to a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. We expect that our revenue, gross margin, and 
earnings per share will fluctuate on a periodic basis in future periods. If in future periods our operating results do not meet the expectations of 
investors or analysts who choose to follow our company, our stock price may fall. Factors that may affect our periodic operating results include 
the following:  
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  •   fluctuations in the buying patterns and sizes of customer orders from one quarter to the next;  
  •   increased competition causing us to sell our products or services at decreasing margins;  
  •   location and timing requirements for the delivery of our products and services;  
  •   longer acceptance cycles of our products by certain customers;  
  •   addition of new customers or loss of existing customers, especially involving our largest customers;  
  •   gross margin obtained on the sales of products and services, especially to our largest customers;  
  •   write-off of excess and obsolete inventory;  
  •   impairment and shortening of the useful life of components from our suppliers;  
  •   unexpected changes in the price for, and the availability of, components from our suppliers;  
  •   our ability to enhance our products with new and better designs and functionality;  
  •   costs associated with obtaining components to satisfy customer demand;  
  •   productivity and growth of our sales force;  
  •   actions taken by our competitors, such as new product announcements or introductions or changes in pricing;  
  •   revenue and gross margin disparity among our lines of server product and storage product lines;  
  •   market acceptance of our newer products, such as ICE Cube and CloudRack, or our future products, such as Altix UV;  
  •   technology regulatory compliance, certification and intellectual property issues associated with our products;  

  
•   the payment of unexpected legal fees and potential damages or settlements resulting from protecting or defending our intellectual 

property or other matters;  

  
•   the payment of significant damages or settlements resulting from faulty or malfunctioning products or the provision of services 

unsatisfactory to our customers;  
  •   the market downturn and delay in orders of our products;  
  •   the departure and acquisition of key management and other personnel; and  

  
•   general economic trends, including changes in information technology spending or geopolitical events such as war or incidents of 

terrorism.  
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We face intense competition from the leading enterprise computing companies in the world as well as from emerging companies. If we 
are unable to compete effectively, we might not be able to achieve sufficient market penetration, revenue growth or profitability.  

The markets for compute server products and storage products are highly competitive. In addition to intensely competitive smaller 
companies, we face challenges from some of the most established companies in the computer industry, such as Dell Inc., Hewlett-Packard 
Company (“HP”), International Business Machines Corporation and Oracle Corporation in the computer server market. In the storage market, 
we compete primarily with EMC Corporation, HP, Hitachi Data Systems, Inc, and NetApp, Inc. These larger competitors have at least the 
following advantages over us:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

Because these competitors may have greater financial strength than we do and are able to offer a more diversified bundle of products and 
services, they may have the ability to severely undercut the pricing of our products or provide additional products or servicing at little or no 
cost, which would make us less competitive or force us to reduce our average selling prices, negatively impacting our margins. In the past, we 
have had transactions where one or more competitors undercut our prices causing us to reduce our price, which negatively impacted our gross 
margin on that transaction and our overall gross margin. In addition, we have on occasion lost sales opportunities due to a competitor 
undercutting the pricing of our products or maintaining superior brand recognition. These competitors may be able to develop products that are 
superior to the commercially available components that we incorporate into our products, or may be able to offer products that provide 
significant price advantages over those we offer. For instance, a competitor could use its resources to develop proprietary motherboards with 
specifications and performance that are superior in comparison with the platforms that are currently available to the marketplace, which could 
give that competitor a distinct technological advantage. In addition, if our competitors’ products become more accepted than our products, our 
competitive position will be impaired.  

The intense competition we face in the sales of our products and services and general economic and business conditions can put pressure 
on us to change our prices. If our competitors offer deep discounts on certain products or services or develop products that the marketplace 
considers more valuable, we may need to lower prices or offer other favorable terms in order to compete successfully. Any such changes may 
reduce margins and could adversely affect operating results.  

As the enterprise computing industry evolves, we expect to encounter additional competitors, including companies in adjacent technology 
businesses such as storage and networking infrastructure and management, companies providing technology that is complementary to ours in 
functionality, such as data center management software, contract manufacturers, and other emerging companies that may announce server 
product offerings. Moreover, our current and potential competitors, including companies with whom we currently have strategic alliances, may 
establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with other third parties. If this occurs, new competitors or alliances may emerge that 
could negatively impact our competitive position.  
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  •   substantially greater market presence and greater name recognition;  

  
•   substantially greater financial, technical, research and development, sales and marketing, manufacturing, distribution and other 

resources;  
  •   longer operating histories;  
  •   a broader offering of products and services;  
  •   more established relationships with customers, suppliers and other technology companies; and  
  •   the ability to acquire technologies or consolidate with other companies in the industry to compete more effectively.  
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We intend to expand our operations and increase our expenditures in an effort to grow our business. If we are not able to manage this 
growth and expansion, or if our business does not grow as we expect, our operating results may suffer.  

We intend to continue to grow our business by entering new markets, acquisitions, developing new product and service offerings and 
pursuing new customers. In connection with this growth, we expect that our annual operating expenses may increase over the next several years 
to the extent we expand our sales and marketing, research and development, manufacturing and production infrastructure, and our customer 
service and support efforts. Our failure to timely or efficiently expand operational and financial systems and to implement or maintain effective 
internal controls and procedures could result in additional operating inefficiencies that could increase our costs and expenses more than we had 
planned and might cause us to lose the ability to take advantage of market opportunities, enhance existing products, develop new products, 
satisfy customer requirements, respond to competitive pressures or otherwise execute our business plan. Additionally, if we do increase our 
operating expenses in anticipation of the growth of our business and this growth does not meet our expectations, our financial results could be 
negatively impacted.  

If we acquire or invest in other companies, assets or technologies and we are not able to integrate them with our business, or we do not 
realize the anticipated financial and strategic goals for any of these existing or future transactions, our financial performance may be impaired.  

If appropriate opportunities present themselves, as they have in the past, we may consider acquiring or making investments in companies, 
assets or technologies that we believe are strategic. We only have limited experience in doing so, and for any such company, asset or 
technology which we successfully acquire or invest in, we will be exposed to a number of risks, including:  
   

   

   

   

   

For example, in connection with our acquisition of Terrascale Technologies, Inc., we expended a great deal of effort and resources, but 
were unable to generate revenue, increase gross profit or contribute positive cash flow into our business, sufficient to realize our investment, 
causing us to exit this product line. This resulted in an impairment charge of $17.5 million during the year ended January 3, 2009. We have 
presented the results of this product line as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements.  

If we were to proceed with one or more significant acquisitions or investments in which the consideration included cash, we could be 
required to use a substantial portion of our available cash. To the extent we issue shares of capital stock or other rights to purchase capital 
stock, including options and warrants, existing stockholders might be diluted and earnings per share might decrease. In addition, acquisitions 
and investments may result in the incurrence of debt, large one-time write-offs, such as acquired in-process research and development costs and 
restructuring charges.  
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•   we may find that the acquired company, asset or technology does not further our business strategy, that we overpaid for the company, 

asset or technology or that the economic conditions underlying our acquisition decision have changed;  

  
•   we may have difficulty integrating the assets, technologies, operations or personnel of an acquired company, or retaining the key 

personnel of the acquired company;  

  
•   our ongoing business and management’s attention may be disrupted or diverted by transition or integration issues and the complexity 

of managing geographically or culturally diverse enterprises;  

  
•   we may encounter difficulty entering and competing in new product or geographic markets or increased competition, including price 

competition or intellectual property litigation; and  

  
•   we may experience significant problems or liabilities associated with product quality, technology and legal contingencies relating to 

the acquired business or technology, such as intellectual property or employment matters.  



Table of Contents  

We rely on sales to U.S. government entities. A loss of contracts, a failure to obtain new contracts or a reduction of sales under existing 
contracts with the U.S. government could adversely affect our operating performance.  

We expect to derive a significant portion of our revenue directly from U.S. government entities, research institutions funded by the U.S. 
government and third-parties that sell directly to the U.S. government. In addition, many of our scientific and research customers depend on 
U.S. government funding for their information technology budgets. As a result, a significant portion of our revenue depends on sales to or 
funded by the U.S. government such that a loss of a U.S. government contract or the failure to obtain new contracts could adversely affect our 
operating performance. Sales to or funded by the government present risks in addition to those involved in sales to commercial customers, 
including potential disruptions and delays due to changes in appropriation and spending patterns. Our government business is also highly 
sensitive to changes in the U.S. government’s national and international priorities and budgeting. Changes in the continuing war on terrorism 
may affect funding for our programs or result in changes in government programs or spending priorities that may harm our business. In 
addition, the U.S. government can typically terminate or modify its contracts with us at any time for its convenience. Our U.S. government 
business is also subject to specific procurement regulations and a variety of other requirements. Failure to comply with these or other applicable 
regulations and requirements could lead to suspension or debarment from government contracting or subcontracting for a period of time. Any 
disruption or limitation in our ability to do business with the U.S. government or entities funded by the U.S. government would materially and 
adversely affect our revenue and operating results.  

Prior to our acquisition of the Legacy SGI assets, sales to U.S. Government entities were not a significant part of our business, and we 
have limited experience in dealing with the U.S. government as a customer. In addition, we have not historically required government security 
clearances which are necessary in some cases to do business with the U.S. government, and have limited experience in obtaining or maintaining 
these security clearances for us or our employees. Failure to retain necessary security clearances could negatively impact our business with the 
U.S. Government.  

We have extensive international operations, which subject us to additional business risks.  

A significant portion of our sales occur and are expected to occur in international jurisdictions, including countries outside of Europe, 
Middle East, and Africa where we have limited operating experience. International operations involve inherent risks that we may not be able to 
control, and risks of which we may not be aware, including:  
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  •   supporting multiple languages;  
  •   recruiting sales and technical support personnel internationally with the skills to design, manufacture, sell and support our products;  

  
•   complying with governmental regulation of encryption technology and regulation of imports and exports, including obtaining 

required import or export approval for our products;  
  •   increased complexity and costs of managing international operations;  
  •   increased exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations;  
  •   commercial laws and business practices that favor local competition;  

  
•   multiple, potentially conflicting, and changing governmental laws, regulations and practices, including differing export, import, tax, 

labor, anti-bribery and employment laws;  
  •   longer sales cycles and manufacturing lead times;  
  •   difficulties in collecting accounts receivable;  
  •   reduced or limited protection of intellectual property rights;  
  •   more complicated logistics and distribution arrangements; and  
  •   political and economic instability.  
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International political instability may halt or hinder our ability to do business and may increase our costs. Various events, including the 
occurrence or threat of terrorist attacks, increased national security measures in the United States and other countries, and military action and 
armed conflicts, may suddenly increase international tensions. In addition, concerns about other international crises, such as potential 
pandemics, may have an adverse effect on the world economy and could adversely affect our business operations or the operations of our 
contract manufacturers and suppliers.  

We maintain a program of insurance coverage for various types of property, casualty, and other risks. We place our insurance coverage 
with various carriers in numerous jurisdictions. However, there is a risk that one or more of our insurance providers may be unable to pay a 
claim. The types and amounts of insurance that we obtain vary from time to time and from location to location, depending on availability, cost, 
and our decisions with respect to risk retention. The policies are subject to deductibles and exclusions that result in our retention of a level of 
risk on a self-insurance basis. Losses not covered by insurance may be substantial and may increase our expenses, which could harm our results 
of operations and financial condition.  

We may experience foreign currency gains and losses.  

We conduct a significant number of transactions in currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Changes in the value of major foreign 
currencies, particularly the Euro and British Pound relative to the U.S. Dollar can significantly affect revenues and our operating results. Our 
revenues and operating results are adversely affected when the dollar strengthens relative to other currencies and are positively affected when 
the dollar weakens. Our revenues and operating results in fiscal 2010 have been unfavorably affected by the recent strengthening U.S. Dollar 
relative to other major foreign currencies.  

For the year ended June 25, 2010, our international revenue was $101.9 million and as of June 25, 2010, the balance in our foreign 
currency cash accounts is $28.6 million. At June 25, 2010, we had no foreign currency forward contracts or option contracts. As a result, an 
increase in the value of the United States dollar relative to foreign currencies could make our products more expensive and, thus, not 
competitively priced in foreign markets. Additionally, a decrease in the value of the United States dollar relative to foreign currencies could 
increase our operating costs in foreign locations. In the future, a larger portion of our international revenue may be denominated in foreign 
currencies, which will subject us to additional risks associated with fluctuations in those foreign currencies. In addition, we may be unable to 
successfully hedge against any such fluctuations.  

Our international sales may require export licenses and expose us to additional risks.  

Our sales to customers outside the United States are subject to U.S. export regulations. Under these regulations, sales of many of our 
high-end products require clearance and export licenses from the U.S. Department of Commerce. Our international sales would be adversely 
affected if these regulations were tightened, or if they are not modified over time to reflect the increasing performance of our products. Delay 
or denial in the granting of any required licenses could make it more difficult to make sales to non-U.S. customers. In addition, we could be 
subject to regulations, fines and penalties for violations of import and export regulations if we were found in violation of these regulations. End 
users could circumvent end-user documentation requirements that are intended to aid in our compliance with export regulations, potentially 
causing us to violate these regulations. These violations could result in penalties, including prohibitions on us from exporting our products to 
one or more countries, and could materially harm our business, including our sales to the U.S. government.  
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Our sales cycle requires us to expend a significant amount of resources, and could have an adverse effect on the amount, timing and 
predictability of future revenue.  

The sales cycle of our products, beginning from our first customer contact to closing of the sale, often ranges from three to six months. 
We may expend significant resources during the sales cycle and ultimately fail to close the sale. The success of our product sales process is 
subject to factors, over which we have little or no control, including:  
   

   

   

   

We expend substantial time, effort and money educating our current and prospective customers as to the value of our products. Even if 
we are successful in persuading lower-level decision makers within our customers’ organizations of the benefits of our products, senior 
management might nonetheless elect not to buy our products after months of sales efforts by our employees or resellers. If we were 
unsuccessful in closing sales, after expending significant resources, our revenue and operating expenses will be adversely affected.  

We rely primarily on our direct sales force to generate revenue, and may be unable to hire additional qualified sales personnel in a 
timely manner or retain our existing sales representatives.  

To date, we have relied primarily on our direct sales force to sell our products in the United States. Because we are looking to expand our 
customer base and grow our sales to existing customers, we will need to continue to hire qualified sales personnel, both in the United States 
and abroad, if we are to achieve our business objectives. The competition for qualified sales personnel in our industry is very intense. If we are 
unable to hire, train, deploy and manage qualified sales personnel in a timely manner, our ability to grow our business will be impaired. For 
example, in the past it has taken us up to six months to hire a qualified sales executive and it may take a newly-hired sales executive up to nine 
months after hiring to become productive, resulting in aggregate lag time between the commencements of the search to productivity, in excess 
of one year. In addition, if we are unable to retain our existing sales personnel, or if our sales personal are ineffective, our ability to maintain or 
grow our current level of revenue will be adversely affected. In addition, a large percentage of our revenue has been historically generated from 
a small number of customers. If we are unable to retain the sales personnel who are responsible for those customer accounts, our business could 
be negatively impacted.  

We are continuing to develop and execute upon a channel strategy to generate additional sales and revenue, and the failure to 
successfully expand channel sales might affect our ability to sustain revenue growth and may harm our business and operations.  

An increasing portion of our sales strategy is to develop our sales efforts through the use of resellers and other third parties to sell our 
systems. We may not be successful in building or expanding relationships with these third parties. Further, even if we do develop and expand 
these relationships, they may conflict with our direct sales efforts in some territories. Ineffective marketing of our products by our resellers or 
disruptions in our distribution channels could lead to decreased sales or slower than expected growth in revenue and might harm our business 
and operations.  
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  •   the timing of our customers’  budget cycles and approval processes;  

  
•   our customers’ existing use of, or willingness to adopt, open standard server products, or to replace their existing servers or expand 

their processing capacity with our products;  
  •   the announcement or introduction of competing products; and  
  •   established relationships between our competitors and our potential customers.  
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We have been substantially dependent on a concentrated number of customers that purchase in large quantities. If we are unable to 
maintain or replace our relationships with concentrated customers and/or diversify our customer base, our revenue may fluctuate and 
our growth may be limited.  

Historically, a significant portion of our revenue has come from a limited number of customers. There can be no guarantee that we will be 
able to sustain our revenue levels from this type of customer. For the year ended June 25, 2010, our top five customers accounted for 
approximately 32% of our total revenues, with Amazon accounting for 20% of our total revenues. We expect a limited number of customers to 
continue to account for a significant portion of our revenues for the foreseeable future. This customer concentration increases the risk of 
quarterly fluctuations in our revenues and operating results. The loss or reduction of business from one or a combination of our significant 
customers could materially adversely affect our revenues, financial condition and results of operations.  

Our customers require a high degree of reliability in our products and services, and if we cannot meet their expectations our 
relationships with our customers could be damaged and demand for our products and services will decline.  

Because our customers rely on our products and services for their enterprise or mission critical applications, any failure to provide high 
quality products and reliable services, whether caused by our own failure or failures by our suppliers or contract manufacturers, could damage 
our reputation and reduce demand for our products and services. Some of our products, such as our ICE cube line, are particularly complex and 
carry a higher per unit price. A failure of products in our ICE cube line would therefore potentially be more costly to us, with the risk and 
potential cost to us increasing proportionately with the number of products we sell in this line. Most of our customers use our systems for 
applications that are critical to their organization; as a result system reliability is critical to the success of our products. In addition, delays in 
our ability to fill product orders as a result of quality control issues, such as an increase in failure rates or the rate of product returns, may 
negatively impact our relationships with our customers and harm our revenue and growth.  

Our business depends on decisions by potential customers to adopt our modular, open standard-based products and to replace their 
legacy server systems with our products, and they may be reluctant to do so, which would limit our growth.  

Our business depends on companies moving away from large proprietary RISC/UNIX servers to standardized servers that utilize 
commercially available x86 processor architectures and can deploy a variety of operating systems, including Linux and Microsoft Windows. 
Excluding sales to Microsoft Corporation, we believe that a majority of the server systems that we sold in 2009, 2008, and 2007 ran on the 
Linux operating system. Products based on the Linux operating system and sold by other software vendors have been the subject of 
intellectual property infringement litigation.  

Legal actions taken by The SCO Group, Inc. (“SCO”) against IBM in 2003 and Novell, Inc. (“Novell”) in 2004 alleging intellectual 
property infringement and disputing the ownership of core UNIX copyrights in code that allegedly is used in Linux are ongoing. The 
litigation involving SCO’s claim against IBM that Linux is an unauthorized derivative work of the UNIX operating system has been stayed due 
to SCO’s bankruptcy filing. On March 30, 2010 in the Novell litigation, a jury returned a verdict in favor of Novell finding that Novell owns 
the UNIX copyrights. SCO has appealed the verdict to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit. If SCO’s appeal is ultimately 
successful, SCO could obtain a ruling that users or distributors of Linux must pay royalties to SCO or others, which could impede broader 
Linux adoption and could materially harm our ability to sell our products based on the Linux operating system.  

In addition, Microsoft has publicly claimed that Linux infringes 235 or more of Microsoft’s patents and has entered into transactions with 
Novell, Inc. and other Linux distributors under which the parties reportedly agree, among other things, not to sue each other’s customers for 
potential patent infringements related to Linux. It is  
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possible that a party (including Microsoft) could prove a claim for proprietary rights in the Linux operating system or other programs 
developed and distributed under the GNU General Public License or other open source software licenses. In addition, the GNU General Public 
License has been, and may be in the future, a subject of litigation, and it is possible that a court could hold these licenses to be unenforceable in 
that litigation. Any ruling by a court that the Linux operating system or significant portions of it may not be copied, modified or distributed 
subject only to the minimal restrictions contained in these licenses, that users or distributors of Linux must pay royalties to Microsoft or others 
or that these licenses are not enforceable could also impede broader Linux adoption and materially harm our ability to sell our products based 
on the Linux operating system. Further, because potential customers have often invested significant capital and other resources in existing 
systems, many of which run mission-critical applications, customers may be hesitant to make dramatic changes to their data center systems. 
The failure of our customers and potential customers to replace their legacy server systems and adopt open standard-based modular 
technologies could have a material adverse impact on our ability to maintain or generate additional revenue.  

Our products have incorporated or have been dependent upon, open standards, commoditized components and materials that we 
obtain in spot markets, and, as a result, our cost structure and our ability to respond in a timely manner to customer demand are 
sensitive to volatility of the market prices for these components and materials.  

A significant portion of our cost of revenue is directly related to the pricing of commoditized materials and components utilized in the 
manufacture of our products, such as memory, hard drives, central processing units (“CPUs”), or power supplies. As part of our procurement 
model, we generally do not enter into long-term supply contracts for these materials and components, but instead, purchase these materials and 
components in a competitive bid purchase order environment with suppliers or on the open market at spot prices. As a result, our cost structure 
is affected by the availability and price volatility in the marketplace for these components and materials, including new versions of hard drives 
and CPUs that are introduced by our suppliers. This volatility makes it difficult to predict expense levels and operating results and may cause 
them to fluctuate significantly. In addition, if we are successful in growing our business, we may not be able to continue to procure components 
solely on the spot market, which would require us to enter into contracts with component suppliers to obtain these components.  

In addition, because our procurement model involves our ability to maintain low inventory and to acquire materials and components as 
needed, and because we do not enter into long-term supply contracts for these materials and components, our ability to effectively and 
efficiently respond to customer orders may be constrained by the then-current availability or the terms and pricing of these materials and 
components. Our industry has experienced component shortages and delivery delays in the past, and in the future we may experience shortages 
or delays of critical components as a result of strong demand in the industry or other factors. For example, occasionally we may experience a 
shortage of, or a delay in receiving, certain components as a result of strong demand, capacity constraints, supplier financial weaknesses, 
inability of suppliers to borrow funds in the credit markets, disputes with suppliers (some of whom are also customers), disruptions in the 
operations of component suppliers, other problems experienced by suppliers or problems faced during the transition to new suppliers.  

If shortages or delays occur, the price of these components may increase, we may be exposed to quality issues or the components may not 
be available at all. We may therefore not be able to secure enough components at reasonable prices or of acceptable quality to build products or 
provide services in a timely manner in the quantities or according to the specifications needed. Accordingly, our revenue and gross margin 
could suffer as we could lose time-sensitive sales, incur additional freight costs or be unable to pass on price increases to our customers. If we 
cannot adequately address supply issues, we might have to reengineer some products or service offerings, resulting in further costs and delays.  

In order to secure components for the provision of products or services, at times we may enter into non-cancelable commitments with 
vendors. In addition, we may purchase components strategically in advance of  
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demand to take advantage of favorable pricing or to address concerns about the availability of future components. If we fail to anticipate 
customer demand properly, a temporary oversupply could result in excess or obsolete components, which could adversely affect our gross 
margin. This could increase our costs and decrease our gross margin. In addition, we compete in an industry that is characterized by rapid 
technological advances in hardware with frequent introduction of new products. New product introductions provide risks in predicting 
customer demand for the future products as well as the transition from existing products. If we do not make an effective transition from 
existing products to future products, an oversupply could result in excess components. For example, we recorded a $10.6 million expense 
related to the write down of excess and obsolete inventory during fiscal year 2010, due in large part to shifts in customer demand driven by 
transitions to new product offerings. As another example, DRAM can also represent a significant portion of our cost of revenue, and both the 
price and availability of various kinds of DRAM are subject to substantial volatility in the spot market. In addition, if any of our suppliers of 
CPUs, such as Intel or AMD, were to increase the costs to us for components we use, we would either pass these price increases on to our 
customers, which could cause us to lose business from these customers, or we would need to absorb these price increases, which would cause 
our margins to decrease, either of which could adversely affect our business and financial results.  

If we fail to maintain or expand our relationships with our suppliers, in some cases single-source suppliers, we may not have adequate 
access to new or key technology necessary for our products, and, as a result, our ability to deliver leading-edge products may be 
impaired.  

In addition to the technologies we develop, our suppliers develop product innovations at our direction that are requested by our 
customers. In many cases, we retain the ownership of the intellectual property developed by these suppliers. In addition, we rely heavily on our 
component suppliers, such as Intel and AMD, to provide us with leading-edge components. If we are not able to maintain or expand our 
relationships with our suppliers or continue to leverage their research and development capabilities to develop new technologies desired by our 
customers, our ability to deliver leading-edge products may be impaired and we could be required to incur additional research and development 
expenses.  

We have historically relied on contract manufacturers to manufacture our products, and our failure to successfully manage our 
relationships with these contract manufacturers could impair our ability to deliver our systems in a manner consistent with required 
volumes or delivery schedules, which could damage our relationships with our customers and decrease our revenue.  

We have historically relied on a very small number of contract manufacturers to assemble and test our products. None of these third-party 
contract manufacturers are obligated to perform services or supply products to us for any specific period, or in any specific quantities, except as 
may be provided in a particular purchase order. For example, we design custom silicon chips for application specific integrated circuits (ASIC), 
but rely on a third party to manufacture the ASICs for us. None of our contract manufacturers has provided contractual assurances to us that 
adequate capacity will be available to us to meet future demand for our products. If our contract manufacturers are not able to maintain our 
high standards of quality, are not able to increase capacity as needed, or are forced to shut down a factory, our ability to deliver quality products 
to our customers on a timely basis may decline, which would damage our relationships with customers, decrease our revenue and negatively 
impact our growth.  

If our cost cutting measures are not successful, we may become less competitive.  

A variety of factors could prevent us from achieving our goal of better aligning our product and service offerings and cost structure with 
customer needs in the current business environment. We are currently focused on reducing our operating expenses, reducing total costs in 
procurement, product design, transformation, and simplifying our structure. For example, we may experience delays in the anticipated timing 
of activities related to our cost savings plans and higher than expected or unanticipated costs to implement the plans. As a result, we  
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may not achieve our expected cost savings in the time anticipated, or at all. In such case, our results of operations and profitability may be 
negatively impacted, making us less competitive and potentially causing us to lose industry unit share.  

We may fail to achieve our financial forecasts.  

Our revenues are difficult to forecast and our quarterly and annual operating results can fluctuate substantially. We use a “pipeline” 
system, a common industry practice, to forecast sales and trends in our business. Our sales personnel monitor the status of all proposals and 
estimate when a customer will make a purchase decision and the dollar amount of the sale. These estimates are aggregated periodically to 
generate a sales pipeline. Our pipeline estimates can prove to be unreliable both in a particular quarter and over a longer period of time, in part 
because the “conversion rate” or “closure rate” of the pipeline into contracts can be very difficult to estimate. A contraction in the conversion 
rate, or in the pipeline itself, could cause us to plan or budget incorrectly and adversely affect our business or results of operations.  

In particular, a slowdown in IT spending or economic conditions generally can unexpectedly reduce the conversion rate in particular 
periods as purchasing decisions are delayed, reduced in amount or cancelled. The conversion rate can also be affected by the tendency of some 
of our customers to wait until the end of a fiscal period in the hope of obtaining more favorable terms, which can also impede our ability to 
negotiate and execute these contracts in a timely manner. In addition, for newly acquired companies, we have limited ability to predict how 
their pipelines will convert into sales or revenues for one or two quarters following the acquisition and their conversion rate post-acquisition 
may be quite different from their historical conversion rate.  

If we are not able to retain and attract adequate qualified personnel, including key executive, managerial, technical, finance, marketing 
and sales personnel, we may not be able to execute on our business strategy.  

Our future success depends in large part upon the continued service and enhancement of our executive, managerial, technical, finance, 
marketing and sales employees. Changes in management can be disruptive within a company, which could negatively affect our operations, our 
culture and our strategic direction. Our employees may terminate their employment with us at any time. Our U.S. employees are “at will,” 
while outside of the U.S., notice or severance may be required if we wish to terminate an employee. The failure of our management team to 
seamlessly manage employee transitions, or the loss of services of any of these executives or of one or more other members of our executive 
management or sales team or other key employees could seriously harm our business. Competition for qualified executives is intense and if we 
are unable to continue expanding our management team, or successfully integrate new additions to our management team in a manner that 
enables us to scale our business and operations effectively, our ability to operate effectively and efficiently could be limited or negatively 
impacted.  

Additionally, to help attract, retain, and motivate qualified employees, we use share-based incentive awards such as employee stock 
options and non-vested share units (restricted stock units). If the value of such stock awards does not appreciate as measured by the 
performance of the price of our common stock, or if our share-based compensation otherwise ceases to be viewed as a valuable benefit, our 
ability to attract, retain, and motivate employees could be weakened, which could harm our results of operations.  

We make estimates and assumptions in connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, and any changes to 
those estimates and assumptions could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.  

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements, we use certain estimates and assumptions based on historical 
experience and other factors. Our most critical accounting estimates are described in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations” in this report. In addition, as discussed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, we make 
certain estimates,  
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including decisions related to provisions for legal proceedings and other contingencies. While we believe that these estimates and assumptions 
are reasonable under the circumstances, they are subject to significant uncertainties, some of which are beyond our control. Should any of these 
estimates and assumptions change or prove to have been incorrect, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, and we 
may be required to restate our financial results for prior periods which could cause our stock price to decline.  

Maintaining and improving our financial controls, particularly in light of the requirements of being a public company, may strain our 
resources and divert management’s attention.  

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the rules and regulations promulgated 
thereunder (the “Exchange Act”) and The NASDAQ Stock Market Rules. The requirements of these rules and regulations have increased our 
legal and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time-consuming or costly and may also place undue strain on our 
personnel, systems and resources.  

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal 
control over financial reporting. This can be difficult to do. In particular, we acquired substantially all the assets of Legacy SGI and went 
through the process of integrating and harmonizing Legacy SGI financial reporting and information technology systems, including internal 
control over financial reporting, with our own. As a result of this and similar activities, management’s attention may be diverted from other 
business concerns, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We may not be 
able to meet the requirements needed to prevent additional material weaknesses. In addition, if we are unable to continue to meet these 
requirements, we may not be able to remain listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market.  

If we fail to remediate deficiencies in our control environment or are unable to implement and maintain effective internal control over 
financial reporting in the future, the accuracy and timeliness of our financial reporting may be adversely affected.  

Effective internal controls over financial reporting are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. 
As a publicly traded company we must maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. This 
can be difficult to do. A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:  
   

   

   

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on 
a timely basis.  
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•   pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company;  

  
•   provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  

  
•   provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 

company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Even after corrective actions are implemented, the effectiveness of our controls and procedures may be limited by a variety of risks 
including:  
   

   

   

   

A failure to have effective internal controls and procedures for financial reporting in place could result in a restatement of our financial 
statements, as it did in our Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 29, 2008, or impact our ability to accurately report financial 
information on a timely basis, which could adversely affect our stock price.  

Unanticipated changes in our tax provisions or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect our profitability.  

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Our tax liabilities are affected by the amounts we 
charge for inventory, services, funding and other items in intercompany transactions. We are subject to ongoing tax audits in various 
jurisdictions. Tax authorities may disagree with our intercompany charges, cross-jurisdictional transfer pricing or other matters and assess 
additional taxes. For example, we have been assessed tax and interest by the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) in connection with excess 
research credits claimed by our Canadian subsidiaries in prior periods. The assessment has not been paid because the CRA has not yet accepted 
our claim that the assessment should be reduced due to overstatement of taxable income of our Canadian subsidiaries during these periods. We 
regularly assess the likely outcomes of these audits in order to determine the appropriateness of our tax provision. However, there can be no 
assurance that we will accurately predict the outcomes of these audits, and the amounts ultimately paid upon resolution of audits could be 
materially different from the amounts previously included in our income tax expense and therefore could have a material impact on our tax 
provision, net income and cash flows.  

In addition, our effective tax rate in the future could be adversely affected by changes to our operating structure, changes in the mix of 
earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in tax laws and the 
discovery of new information in the course of our tax return preparation process.  

Unsuccessful deployment of new transaction processing applications and other systems integration issues could disrupt our internal 
operations and any such disruption could reduce our expected revenue, increase our expenses, and damage our reputation.  

Portions of our IT infrastructure may experience interruptions, delays or cessations of service or produce errors in connection with 
systems integration and implementation of new transaction processing applications, including accounting, manufacturing and sales system. We 
may not be successful in implementing new systems and transitioning data, which could cause business disruptions and be more expensive, 
time consuming, disruptive and resource-intensive to remediate. Such disruptions could adversely impact our ability to fulfill orders and 
negatively impact our business or interrupt other processes. Delayed sales, lower margins or lost customers resulting from these disruptions 
have adversely affected us in the past, and in the future could adversely affect our financial results, public disclosures and reputation.  

Business disruptions could affect our operating results.  

A significant portion of our research and development activities and certain other critical business operations is concentrated in a few 
geographic areas. We are a highly automated business and a disruption or failure of our systems could cause delays in completing sales and 
providing services. A major earthquake, fire or  
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  •   faulty human judgment and simple errors, omissions or mistakes;  
  •   collusion of two or more people;  
  •   inappropriate management override of procedures; and  
  •   the risk that enhanced controls and procedures may still not be adequate to assure timely and reliable financial information  
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other catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of any of our critical business or information technology systems could 
severely affect our ability to conduct normal business operations and, as a result, our future operating results could be materially and adversely 
affected.  

Unstable market and economic conditions may have serious adverse consequences on our business.  

Our general business strategy may be adversely affected by the current economic downturn and volatile business environment and 
continued unpredictable and unstable market conditions. If the current equity and credit markets deteriorate further, or do not continue to 
improve, it may make any necessary debt or equity financing more difficult, more costly, and more dilutive. We believe we are well positioned 
with significant capital resources to meet our current working capital and capital expenditure requirements. However, a further prolonged or 
profound economic downturn may result in adverse changes to demand for our products, or our customers’ ability to pay for our products, 
which would harm our operating results. There is also a risk that one or more of our current service providers, manufacturers and other partners 
may not survive these difficult economic times, which would directly affect our ability to attain our operating goals on schedule and on budget. 
Failure to secure any necessary financing in a timely manner and on favorable terms could have a material adverse effect on our financial 
performance and stock price and could require us to change our business plans.  

Uncertainty in the credit market may negatively affect the value of auction rate securities owned by us and our ability to liquidate 
these securities.  

Our long-term investments as of June 25, 2010 are comprised of various auction rate securities (“ARS”). ARS are variable-rate debt 
securities that have a long-term maturity. The interest rate on ARS resets through Dutch auctions that are held at pre-determined intervals, 
usually every 28 days, providing liquidity by allowing investors to roll over their holdings or obtain immediate liquidity by selling. Uncertainty 
in the credit market has negatively affected these auctions as they have not had sufficient bidders to allow investors to complete a sale. In 
February 2008, auctions of ARS that we continue to hold failed. Due to the uncertainty of liquidity, we have classified these investments as 
long-term and have included them in long-term investments. As of June 25, 2010 we have recorded an unrealized loss of $1.3 million on these 
investments in other comprehensive loss, reducing their value to $7.5 million. In the future, failed auctions may affect our ability to liquidate 
these ARS until a future auction is successful, a buyer is found outside of the auction process, the underlying securities have matured or the 
securities are recalled by the issuer. In addition, failed auctions may affect the fair value of our ARS and may result in an impairment charge.  

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property adequately, we may not be able to compete effectively.  

Our intellectual property is critical to our success and our ability to compete. If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights 
adequately, our competitors might gain access to our technology. Unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our 
proprietary technology despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property. In addition, we license our technology and intellectual property to 
third parties, including in some cases, our competitors, which could under some circumstances make our patent rights more difficult enforce. 
Third parties could also obtain licenses to some of our intellectual property as a consequence of a merger or acquisition. Also, our participation 
in standard setting organizations or industry initiatives may require us to license our patents to other companies that adopt certain standards or 
specifications. As a result of such licensing, our patents might not be enforceable against others who might otherwise be infringing those 
patents and the value of our intellectual property may be impaired.  

However, litigation is inherently uncertain, and there is no assurance that any litigation we initiate will have a successful outcome. 
Monitoring unauthorized use of our technology is difficult, and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken will prevent unauthorized use 
of our technology, particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as the laws of the United 
States. Any claims or litigation that we have initiated or that we may initiate in the future to protect our proprietary technology could be time  
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consuming and expensive and divert the attention of our technical and management resources whether or not the claims or litigation are 
decided in our favor. Enforcing our rights could subject us to claims that the intellectual property right is invalid, is otherwise not enforceable, 
or is licensed to the party against whom we are asserting a claim. Also, assertion of our intellectual property rights could result in the other 
party seeking to assert alleged intellectual property rights of its own or assert other claims against us, which could harm our business.  

We currently have numerous patents issued and a number of patent applications pending in the United States and other countries. These 
patents may be limited in value in asserting our intellectual property rights against more established companies in the computer technology 
sector that have sizeable patent portfolios and greater capital resources. In addition, patents may not be issued from these patent applications, 
and even if patents are issued, they may not benefit us or give us adequate protection from competing products. For example, issued patents 
might be circumvented or challenged, and could be declared invalid or unenforceable. Moreover, if other companies develop unpatented 
proprietary technology similar to ours or competing technologies, our competitive position will be weakened.  

If we are found to have violated the intellectual property rights of others, we could be required to indemnify our customers, resellers or 
suppliers, redesign our products, pay significant royalties and enter into license agreements with third parties.  

Our industry is characterized by a large number of patents, copyrights, trade secrets and trademarks and by frequent litigation based on 
allegations of infringement or other violation of intellectual property rights. As we continue our business, expand our product lines and our 
product functionality, and expand into new jurisdictions around the world, third parties may assert that our technology or products violate their 
intellectual property rights. Because of technological changes and the extent of issued patents in our industry, it is possible certain components 
of our products and business methods may unknowingly infringe existing patents of others. Any claim, regardless of its merits, could be 
expensive and time consuming to defend against. It would also divert the attention of our technical and management resources. Successful 
intellectual property claims against us could result in significant financial liability, impair our ability to compete effectively, or prevent us from 
operating our business or portions of our business. In addition, resolution of claims may require us to redesign our technology, to obtain 
licenses to use intellectual property belonging to third parties, which we may not be able to obtain on reasonable terms, to cease using the 
technology covered by those rights, and to indemnify our customers, resellers or suppliers. Any of these events could result in unexpected 
expenses, negatively affect our competitive position and materially harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.  

Our use of open source and third-party software could impose unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize 
our products.  

We incorporate open source software into our products. Open source software is made available to us and to the public by its authors or 
other third parties under licenses that impose certain obligations on licensees in the event those licensees re-distribute or make derivative works 
of the open source software. The terms of many open source licenses have not been interpreted by United States or other courts, and these 
licenses could be construed in a manner that imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our products. In 
this event, we could be required to seek licenses from third parties in order to continue offering our products, to make generally available, in 
source code form, proprietary code that links to certain open source modules, to re-engineer our products, or to discontinue the sale of our 
products if re-engineering could not be accomplished on a timely basis, any of which might harm our business, operating results and financial 
condition.  

Adverse litigation results could affect our business.  

We are subject to various legal proceedings. Litigation can be lengthy, expensive and disruptive to our operations, and results cannot be 
predicted with certainty. An adverse decision could result in monetary damages or injunctive relief that could affect our business, operating 
results or financial condition. Additional information regarding certain of the lawsuits we are involved in is discussed under Part 1—Item 3.  
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Risks Related to Owning Our Stock  

Our stock price in the past has been volatile, and may continue to be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance, 
and investors may not be able to resell shares at or above the price at which they purchased the shares.  

Our stock has been publicly traded for a relatively short period of time, having first begun trading in June 2005. During that time our 
stock price has fluctuated significantly, from a high of approximately $56.00 per share to a low of approximately $3.42 per share. At times the 
stock price has changed very quickly. During the year ended June 25, 2010, our stock price has fluctuated from a high of approximately $12.74 
to a low of approximately $4.16. If investors purchase shares of our common stock, they may not be able to resell those shares at or above the 
price at which they purchase them. The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, many of 
which are beyond our control including:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

In addition, the stock markets, and in particular the NASDAQ Stock Market, have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations 
that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many technology companies. Stock prices of many technology 
companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. In the past, stockholders 
have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market volatility. We are currently involved in securities litigation, and 
could become involved in additional securities litigation in the future, either of which could have substantial costs and divert resources and the 
attention of management from our business. For additional information regarding our securities litigation, please see the section of this report 
titled “Legal Proceedings.”  
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  •   price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market;  
  •   purchases of shares of our common stock pursuant to our share repurchase program;  
  •   the financial projections we may provide to the public, any changes in these projections or our failure to meet these projections;  
  •   actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;  

  
•   changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of other technology companies generally, or those that sell enterprise 

computing products in particular;  

  
•   changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts who follow our company, our failure to meet these estimates or failure of 

those analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of our stock;  
  •   ratings downgrades by any securities analysts who follow our company;  
  •   the public’s response to our press releases or other public announcements, including our filings with the SEC;  

  
•   announcements by us or our competitors of significant technical innovations, customer wins or losses, acquisitions, strategic 

partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;  
  •   introduction of technologies or product enhancements that reduce the need for our products;  
  •   market conditions or trends in our industry or the economy as a whole;  
  •   the loss of one or more key customers;  
  •   the loss of key personnel;  
  •   the development and sustainability of an active trading market for our common stock;  
  •   lawsuits threatened or filed against us;  
  •   future sales of our common stock by our officers, directors and significant stockholders; and  
  •   other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism or responses to these events.  
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Due to these factors, sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These 
sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our 
common stock.  

Some provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may deter third parties from acquiring us.  

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may make the acquisition of our company more difficult without the 
approval of our board of directors, including the following:  
   

   

   

   

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of our company. These 
provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors of their choosing and cause us to 
take other corporate actions they desire.  

We do not expect to pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future.  

We do not anticipate that we will pay any cash dividends to holders of our common stock in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, 
investors must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains 
on their investment. Investors seeking cash dividends in the foreseeable future should not purchase our common stock.  

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments  

Not applicable.  

Item 2. Properties  

Our properties consist of leased and owned facilities used for manufacturing, warehouse, sales and marketing, research and development, 
services and support and administrative purposes.  

We own and lease sales, service, manufacturing, research and development and administrative offices worldwide and have our principal 
facilities in California, Wisconsin, and Minnesota in the United States and abroad in Shanghai, China and in Reading, United Kingdom. At 
June 25, 2010, our worldwide facilities represented aggregate floor space of approximately 704,000 square feet, of which 700,000 square feet is 
used in our operations. Approximately 4,000 square feet is currently vacant. Because of the relationship between our segments, products and 
service, substantially all of our properties are used at least in part by both of these segments and we have the flexibility to use each of the 
properties in whole or in part for each of the segments. We currently anticipate our existing facilities are adequate for our needs through fiscal 
year 2011.  
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  •   limitations on persons authorized to call a special meeting of stockholders;  
  •   our stockholders may take action only at a meeting of stockholders and not by written consent;  

  
•   our certificate of incorporation authorizes undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be established and shares of which 

may be issued without stockholder approval; and  

  
•   advance notice procedures required for stockholders to nominate candidates for election as directors or to bring matters before an 

annual meeting of stockholders.  
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Information about our leased and owned facilities at June 25, 2010 is approximately as follows:  
   

Our leased facilities in Fremont, California include our corporate headquarters.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings  

We are involved in various legal proceedings and disputes that arise in the normal course of business. These matters include product 
liability actions, patent infringement actions, contract disputes, and other matters. We do not know whether we will prevail in these matters nor 
can we assure that any remedy could be reached on commercially viable terms, if at all. Based on currently available information, we believe 
that we have meritorious defenses to these actions and that the resolution of these cases is not likely to have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial position or future results of operations. We record a liability when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and 
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These provisions are reviewed at least quarterly and adjusted to reflect the impacts of 
negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and other information and events pertaining to a particular case.  

On May 1, 2007, Legacy SGI received a legal notice from counsel to Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. (“BHEL”), located in India, alleging 
delay in and failure to deliver products and technical problems with its hardware and software in relation to the establishment of a facility in 
Hyderabad. We assumed this claim in connection with our acquisition of Legacy SGI assets, and are currently engaged in arbitration. On 
January 21, 2008, BHEL filed its statement of claim against Silicon Graphics Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd. for a sum of Indian Rupee (“INR”) 
78,478,200 ($1.7 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010) plus interest and costs. On February 29, 2008, we filed our reply as 
well as a counter claim for a sum of INR 27,453,007 ($0.6 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010) plus interest and costs. The 
proceeding has commenced but the hearing, scheduled for June 2010 could not take place and the next rescheduled hearing date is awaited 
from the Arbitor. We cannot currently predict the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a reasonable range of potential loss, if 
any.  

On October 28, 2008, we were sued in a matter captioned Acceleron, LLC v. Egenera, Inc. et al., Case No. 10-128 (Del.) (formerly 6:08-
CV-00417 (E.D. Texas)). Acceleron brought the above captioned action against us, seeking monetary and injunctive relief for our alleged 
infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,948,021 (“the ‘021 Patent”). We answered the Complaint on January 23, 2009, asserting that the ‘021 Patent 
was not infringed and invalid. The lawsuit was transferred to the U.S. District Court, Delaware on January 26, 2010. A settlement agreement, 
effective June 18, 2010, was executed by the parties pursuant to which a Stipulated Order dismissing us from the lawsuit was entered on 
June 29, 2010.  
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     Square Feet    Lease  
Terms  
End 

   
Square Feet 

 
Not Used in 
Operations 

   

Primary Uses      Leased    Owned          

Fremont, California     158,000    —      2013    —      Research and development, sales, administration 
Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin     88,000    268,000    2013    —      Manufacturing, service, research and development 
Eagan, Minnesota     42,000    —      2014    —      Research and development, sales, administration 
Shanghai, China     13,000    —      2011    —      Research and Development 
Reading, United Kingdom     7,000    —      2010    —      Research and development, sales, administration 
Other international     88,000    —      various       Sales and Service 
Other domestic     40,000    —      various    4,000    Sales and Service 

                     

   436,000    268,000       4,000    
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On January 16, 2009, we and certain of our former officers were sued in the United States District Court for the Northern District of 
California, in a matter captioned In Re Rackable Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation, Case No. C-09-0222-CW . On April 16, 2009, the Court 
appointed Elroy Whittaker as Lead Plaintiff and the Law Firm of Glancy Binkow & Goldberg LLP as Lead Plaintiff’s Counsel. Lead Plaintiff 
filed a consolidated amended complaint (the “Amended Complaint”) on June 15, 2009. The Amended Complaint asserts claims for violations 
of (i) Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, and (ii) Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. The allegations 
relate to the drops in the Company’s share price in early 2007 relating to its earnings reports for 2006 and Q4 2006. On August 13, 2009, we 
and our former officers filed a Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint (the “Motion to Dismiss”), which Lead Plaintiff opposed. On 
January 13, 2010, the Court entered an order granting the Motion to Dismiss, which dismissed the Amended Complaint with leave to amend. 
On February 3, 2010, Lead Plaintiff filed a second amended complaint asserting the same claims as the amended complaint. On April 2, 2010, 
Lead Plaintiff filed a stipulated proposed order requesting leave to file a supplemental second amended complaint, which substituted new Lead 
Plaintiffs into the action but otherwise did not change the allegations of the second amended complaint. On April 5, 2010, the Court granted the 
stipulated order and entered the supplemental second amended complaint. On April 9, 2010, we and our former officers filed a Motion to 
Dismiss the Supplemental Second Amended Complaint. The Court granted the Motion to Dismiss with prejudice on August 27, 2010, and 
judgment was entered pursuant to the Court’s order on August 31, 2010. Plaintiffs have the right to appeal the order dismissing the action with 
prejudice until 30 days after the entry of judgment. We cannot currently predict the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a 
reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  

In March 2009, we and certain of our present and former directors and officers were sued in the Superior Court of the State of California 
for Alameda County, in a shareholder derivative lawsuit captioned Milo v. Barton, et al, Case No. R30944-0474 . The complaint alleges that 
the defendants engaged in various acts and omissions that resulted in the drops of our share price in early 2007, and asserts claims for alleged 
breaches of defendants’ fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment. The complaint seeks compensatory damages in an 
unspecified amount, unspecified equitable or injunctive relief, disgorgement of unspecified compensation earned by the defendants, and an 
award of an unspecified amount for plaintiff’s costs and attorneys fees. By stipulated order dated April 13, 2009, this action was stayed pending 
resolution of the pleadings in the federal class action. Because the federal class action was dismissed with prejudice, Plaintiff now has 60 days 
from the date of the dismissal to file an amended complaint or notify defendants that Plaintiff will not file an amended complaint. Defendants 
will then be required to move to dismiss or otherwise respond to the complaint or amended complaint, as applicable, within 40 days after an 
amended complaint is filed or notice is given that Plaintiff will not amend. We cannot currently predict the outcome of this dispute nor 
determine the amount or a reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  

On December 3, 2009, we initiated an arbitration proceeding captioned Silicon Graphics Intl. Corp., f/k/a Rackable Systems, Inc. v. 
Thomas Weisel Partners Group, Inc., et al., FINRA Arb. No. 09-06849 , against its former investment advisor Thomas Weisel Partners LLC 
(“TWP”), as well as TWP’s parent company Thomas Wiesel Partners Group, Inc., to remedy TWP’s alleged mismanagement and wrongful 
advice pertaining to our investments in allegedly unsuitable and illiquid investments called “auction rate securities” (“ARS”). Due to market 
conditions, the ARS at issue are still held by us, as described elsewhere herein. We filed our arbitration claim with the Financial Industry 
Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), and assert various causes of action including breach of fiduciary duty, unsuitability, and breach of contract. 
We seek remedies including rescission; restitution; disgorgement; and compensatory, consequential, and punitive damages, and requests a 
damages award in excess of $9.0 million, exclusive of punitive damages and other potential relief. TWP filed its Answer on February 4, 2010. 
The parties have commenced discovery and the arbitration is currently scheduled to commence in February 2011. We cannot currently predict 
the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  

Item 4. Reserved.  
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PART II  

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of Equity Securities  

Market Information  

Our common stock started trading on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “RACK” on June 10, 2005 and, commencing in 
2006, on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. On May 18, 2009, we changed our name to Silicon Graphics International Corp. (“SGI”) and 
changed our NASDAQ stock ticker symbol to “SGI”. Prior to June 10, 2005, there was no public market for our common stock. The following 
table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices of our common stock, as reported by the NASDAQ Markets.  
   

Holders  

As of September 1, 2010, there were 30,696,726 shares of our common stock outstanding held by 15 registered holders of record. A 
substantially greater number of holders of our outstanding common stock are “street name” or beneficial holders, whose shares are held of 
record by banks, brokers, and other financial institutions.  

Dividends  

We have never declared or paid any dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain any future earnings to fund the 
development and expansion of our business, and therefore we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable 
future. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors.  

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities  

None  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  

None  
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Year Ending June 25, 2010    High    Low 

Fourth Quarter     $ 11.34    $ 6.82 
Third Quarter       12.74      6.80 
Second Quarter       7.28      5.77 
First Quarter       7.16      4.16 

Six-month transition period ending June 26, 2009 (1)    High    Low 

Second Quarter     $ 5.85    $ 3.88 
First Quarter       5.24      3.42 

Year Ending January 3, 2009    High    Low 

Fourth Quarter     $ 10.33    $ 3.61 
Third Quarter       13.80      9.81 
Second Quarter       14.48      8.88 
First Quarter       10.17      7.76 

  
(1) There is no third or fourth quarter for the six-month transition period ending June 26, 2009 due to the change in our fiscal year end. 
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Performance Graph (2)  

The following graph shows the cumulative total stockholder return of an investment of $100 in cash on June 10, 2005, the date our 
common stock first started trading on the NASDAQ National Market through June 25, 2010, for (i) our common stock, (ii) the NASDAQ 
Composite Index and (iii) the RDG Technology Composite Index. Pursuant to applicable SEC rules, all values assume reinvestment of the full 
amount of all dividends, however no dividends have been declared on our common stock to date. The stockholder return shown on the graph 
below is not necessarily indicative of future performance, and we do not make or endorse any predictions as to future stockholder returns.  
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     6/10/05    12/31/05    12/30/06    12/29/07    1/3/09    6/26/09    6/25/10 

Silicon Graphics International Corp.     100.00    233.44    253.85    79.67    33.69    37.54    66.48 
NASDAQ Composite     100.00    106.77    119.92    130.77    77.57    90.10    104.74 
RDG Technology Composite     100.00    107.69    117.45    134.56    76.53    95.44    111.22 
  
(2) This Section is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing of 

Silicon Graphics International Corp. under the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of 
any general incorporation language in any such filing. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data  

The following selected summary consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with Part II, Item 8. “Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data,” and with Part II, Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  

On June 19, 2009, our Board of Directors approved a change in our fiscal year end from the Saturday closest to December 31st of each 
year to the last Friday in June of each year. As a result of this change, we had a six month transition period, which began on January 4, 2009 
and ended on June 26, 2009. Accordingly, our fiscal year 2010 began on June 27, 2009 following a transition period that ended June 26, 2009. 
Additionally, this change in year end resulted in the quarter ended June 26, 2009 containing 83 days versus a standard 91 day quarter. The 
change in fiscal year end was made to facilitate the integration and consolidated reporting of the businesses and other related assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed from the acquisition of Legacy SGI.  
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Year Ended  

June 25,  
2010 (1) (3) (4)   

  Six Months  
Ended  

June 26,  
2009 (1) (3) (4)   

  Year Ended 

      
January 3,  

2009 (1) (2) (3)     

December 29, 
 

2007 (1) (2)     

December 30, 
 

2006 (1) (2)     

December 31, 
 

2005 (1) 
    (in thousands, except per share amounts) 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 

Data:              

Revenue    $ 403,717      $ 102,777      $ 247,430      $ 350,684      $ 359,569      $ 214,985 
Gross profit      89,589        7,777        29,438        47,244        76,446        49,656 

Income (loss) from continuing operations 
before income taxes      (93,302 )      (16,433 )      (30,911 )      (29,049 )      24,506        18,420 

Income tax provision (benefit) from 
continuing operations      (4,441 )      (2,242 )      376        12,531        10,589        9,908 

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

Net income (loss) from continuing operations      (88,861 )      (14,191 )      (31,287 )      (41,580 )      13,917        8,512 
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

Income (loss) from discontinued operations      409        (20 )      (25,896 )      (33,941 )      (4,662 )      —   
Income tax benefit from discontinued 

operations      —          —          (2,955 )      (5,964 )      (2,217 )      —   
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 
net of tax      409        (20 )      (22,941 )      (27,977 )      (2,445 )      —   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

Net income (loss)    $ (88,452 )    $ (14,211 )    $ (54,228 )    $ (69,557 )    $ 11,472      $ 8,512 
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

Net income (loss) per share:              

Net income (loss) per share, basic              

Continuing operations    $ (2.95 )    $ (0.48 )    $ (1.06 )    $ (1.45 )    $ 0.52      $ 0.86 
Discontinued operations      0.01        —          (0.77 )      (0.97 )      (0.09 )      —   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

Net income (loss) per share, basic    $ (2.94 )    $ (0.48 )    $ (1.83 )    $ (2.42 )    $ 0.43      $ 0.86 
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

Net income (loss) per share, diluted              

Continuing operations    $ (2.95 )    $ (0.48 )    $ (1.06 )    $ (1.45 )    $ 0.49      $ 0.47 
Discontinued operations      0.01        —          (0.77 )      (0.97 )      (0.09 )      —   

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

      

Net income (loss) per share, diluted    $ (2.94 )    $ (0.48 )    $ (1.83 )    $ (2.42 )    $ 0.40      $ 0.47 
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

Shares used in computing net income (loss) 
per share:              

Basic      30,130        29,798        29,583        28,786        26,948        9,947 
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

Diluted      30,130        29,798        29,583        28,786        28,618        18,040 
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(1) Includes non-cash share-based compensation as follows: 

    
Year Ended 

 
June 25,  

2010   

  Six Months 
 

Ended  
June 26,  

2009   

  Year Ended 

        

January 3, 
 

2009   

December 29, 
 

2007    

December 30, 
 

2006   

December 31, 
 

2005 
    (in thousands) 
Cost of revenue    $ 691      $ 423      $ 1,120   $ 2,152    $ 3,583   $ 91 
Research and development      767        524        1,811     3,160      4,480     70 
Selling and marketing      445        579        1,568     5,040      6,087     261 
General and administrative      2,924        1,689        4,653     10,731      5,858     131 

      
  

      
  

                         

Total continuing operations      4,827        3,215        9,152     21,083      20,008     553 
Discontinued operations      (106 )      (111 )      435     2,152      747     —   

      
  

      
  

                         

Total    $   4,721      $   3,104      $   9,587   $ 23,235    $ 20,755   $     553 
      

  

      

  

                         

  
(2) Information has been restated to present the results of our Rapidscale product line as discontinued operations. See Note 19 to our 

financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2010 contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Rapidscale product line 
was purchased in 2006. 

(3) Includes restructuring charges of $5.2 million, $1.3 million, and $0.7 million for the year ended June 25, 2010, six months ended June 26, 
2009, and year ended January 3, 2009, respectively. See Note 13 to our financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2010 
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

(4) On May 8, 2009, we completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Legacy SGI, excluding certain assets unrelated to the 
ongoing business, including certain of Legacy SGI’s non-U.S. subsidiaries and operations and assumed certain liabilities. In the six 
months ended June 26, 2009, we recorded a gain from acquisition of $19.8 million. In addition, this transaction resulted to acqusition 
related gains of $3.3 million in year ended June 25, 2010 and acquisition related charges of $6.1 million in six months ended June 26, 
2009. See Note 3 to our financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2010 contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

    
June 25,  

2010   
June 26,  

2009   
January 3, 

2009   

December 29, 
 

2007   

December 30, 
 

2006   

December 31, 
 

2005 
    (in thousands) 
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:    

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 129,343   $ 128,714   $ 171,954   $ 49,897   $ 30,446   $ 29,099 
Working capital      124,495     168,687     216,315     249,929     268,180     112,326 
Total assets      497,212     441,636     285,493     352,458     406,770     176,042 
Total liabilities      362,283     223,537     54,004     76,340     91,081     52,777 
Total stockholders’  equity      134,929     218,099     231,489     276,118     315,689     123,265 
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ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our consolidated financial 
statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The discussions in this section contain forward-
looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, and actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. See “Item 1A—
Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information” at the beginning of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
a discussion of these risks and uncertainties.  

Overview  

We are a global leader in large-scale clustered computing and storage, high-performance compute and storage, and data center 
technologies integrated with a choice of software, customer support services and professional services. We are dedicated to solving the IT 
industry’s most demanding business and technology challenges by delivering clustered computing and storage solutions, high performance 
computing and storage solutions, Eco-Logical™ data center solutions, software and services. We develop, market, and sell a broad line of low 
cost, mid-range and high-end computing servers and data storage as well as differentiating software. We sell data center infrastructure products 
purpose-built for large-scale data center deployments. In addition, we provide global customer support and professional services related to our 
products. We enable enterprises to meet their computing and storage requirements at a lower total cost of ownership and provide them greater 
flexibility and scalability. We are also a leading developer of enterprise class, high-performance features for the Linux operating system that 
provide our customers with a standard Linux operating environment combined with our differentiated yet un-intrusive Linux capabilities that 
are designed to improve performance, simplify system management, and provide a more robust development environment.  

We pioneered Eco-Logical data center design with innovative technologies in the areas of chassis and cabinet design, power distribution 
techniques, cooling techniques, and hardware-based remote management capabilities. We refer to these advantages as “Eco-Logical,” a term 
we trademarked to best describe our environmentally-friendly, efficient products. The term “eco” refers to the fact that our products are 
environmentally-friendly and efficient, while the term “logical” describes the ability of these products to enable smart, practical solutions for 
our end users. We offer compute servers using our Rackable™ half-depth rackmount design, enabling back-to-back mounting for higher server 
density and improved thermal management. We also offer compute servers using our CloudRack tray-based design that deliver similar 
advantages in a front-to-back cooling model. Data center products include ICE Cube, a modular data center which augments or replaces 
traditional brick-and-mortar facilities and MobiRack for mobile, all-in-one data center capabilities for field deployments.  

Our products and services are used by the scientific, technical, and business communities to solve challenging data-intensive computing, 
data storage and management problems. These problems typically require large amounts of computing power and fast and efficient data 
movement both within the computing system and to and from large-scale data storage installations. Enterprises have also begun to deploy 
large-scale computing and storage installations by aggregating large numbers of relatively inexpensive, open-standard modular computing and 
storage systems. Our end-users employ our systems to access, analyze, transform, manage, visualize and store very large amounts of data in 
real time or near real time by running low-cost operating systems such as Linux and Microsoft Windows and, we believe, enable 
enterprises to meet their computing and storage requirements at a lower total cost of ownership and provide enterprises with greater flexibility 
and scalability. The vertical markets we serve include defense and strategic systems, weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, 
energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and automotive, media and entertainment, semiconductor design, manufacturing, financial services, 
data centers, and business intelligence and data analytics.  

Applications for our systems within these vertical markets include simulating global climate changes, accelerating engineering of new 
automotive designs, supporting homeland security initiatives, providing real -  
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time fraud detection, streaming media from Internet-video to film and gaining business intelligence through data-mining. Our global services 
organization facilitates rapid installation and implementation of our products, assists in optimizing the use of our products, maintains their 
availability to serve our customers and educates customers to increase productivity.  

From developing custom semi-conductors to data center solutions, we differentiate by scaling for compute and data intensive workloads 
of our customers’ most demanding applications. We have 1,325 employees worldwide and we sell and market our systems, technologies, 
software, and services, to enterprises in 26 countries through our direct and indirect sales force including original equipment manufacturers, 
system integrators and value added resellers. In the year ended June 25, 2010, six-months ended June 26, 2009, and the year ended January 3, 
2009, international sales were approximately 25%, 25% and 8%, respectively, of our total revenue.  

Significant events  

Our financial results during the year ended June 25, 2010 were affected by certain significant events that should be considered in 
comparing the periods presented.  

Acquisition of Silicon Graphics, Inc.  

On May 8, 2009, we acquired substantially all of the assets, excluding certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business and assumed 
certain liabilities of Silicon Graphics, Inc. (an entity in Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy code) (“Legacy SGI”) for approximately 
$42.5 million in cash.  

Change in Corporate Name and Trading Symbol  

On May 18, 2009, we changed our name to Silicon Graphics International Corp. (“SGI”) and changed our NASDAQ stock ticker symbol 
from “RACK” to “SGI.”  

Change in fiscal year  

On June 19, 2009, our Board of Directors approved a change in our fiscal year-end from the Saturday closest to December 31st of each 
year to the last Friday in June of each year. As a result of this change, we had a six month transition period, which began on January 4, 2009, 
ended on June 26, 2009. Accordingly, our fiscal year 2010 began on June 27, 2009 following a transition period that ended June 26, 2009. The 
change in fiscal year-end was made to facilitate the integration and consolidated reporting of the businesses and other related assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed from Legacy SGI.  

The financial periods presented and discussed will be as follows: (i) the year ended June 25, 2010 represents the 52-week fiscal year 
ended June 25, 2010; (ii) the six-month transition period ended June 26, 2009 represents 25-week, six months ended June 26, 2009; (iii) the 
year ended January 3, 2009 represents the 53-week fiscal year ended January 3, 2009; and (iv) the year ended December 29, 2007 represents 
52-week fiscal year ended December 29, 2007. In addition, the six months ended June 28, 2008 (unaudited) is presented to compare to the six 
months ended June 26, 2009.  

Results of Operations  

We have included the operating results associated with the acquisition of Legacy SGI assets in our consolidated financial statements only 
for the periods since the date of the acquisition in May 2009, which has significantly affected our revenues, results of operations and financial 
position. Accordingly, the results of operations for the year ending June 25, 2010 presented below are not comparable to the results for the year 
ending January 3, 2009.  
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The following table sets forth our financial results for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007, and for 
the six months ended June 26, 2009 as a percentage of revenue:  
   

Comparison of the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009  

Financial Highlights  
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     Year Ended     Six Months Ended   

     

June 25, 
 

2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

June 26, 
 

2009     

June 28, 
 

2008   

Revenue     100.0 %    100.0 %    100.0 %    100.0 %    100.0 %  
Cost of revenue     77.8      88.1      86.5      92.4      83.0    

     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Gross profit     22.2      11.9      13.5      7.6      17.0    
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  

Operating expenses:             

Research and development     14.1      6.0      3.9      10.5      5.0    
Sales and marketing     16.1      9.5      9.3      17.7      8.5    
General and administrative     13.0      9.9      10.2      13.6      9.6    
Restructuring     1.3      0.3      —        1.2      0.5    
Acquisition-related     (0.8 )    —        —        5.9      —      
Impairment of long-lived assets     —        —        0.8      —        —      
Gain from settlement agreement     —        —        —        (4.8 )    —      
Gain from acquisition     —        —        —        (19.3 )    —      

     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Total operating expenses     43.7      25.7      24.2      24.8      23.6    
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  

Loss from operations     (21.5 )    (13.8 )    (10.7 )    (17.2 )    (6.6 )  
Interest and other income (expense)             

Interest income, net     0.1      1.7      2.3      0.1      2.0    
Other income (expense), net     (1.7 )    (0.4 )    0.1      1.1      —      

     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Total other income (expense)     (1.6 )    1.3      2.4      1.2      2.0    
Loss from continuing operations before income 

taxes     (23.1 )    (12.5 )    (8.3 )    (16.0 )    (4.6 )  
Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing 

operations     (1.1 )    0.1      3.5      (2.2 )    1.1    
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  
    

  

Net loss from continuing operations     (22.0 )    (12.6 )    (11.8 )    (13.8 )    (5.7 )  
Discontinued operations:             

Income (loss) from discontinued operations     0.1      (10.5 )    (9.7 )    —        (16.4 )  
Income tax benefit     —        (1.2 )    (1.7 )    —        (2.0 )  

     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of 
tax     0.1      (9.3 )    (8.0 )    —        (14.4 )  

     
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

    
  

Net loss     (21.9 )%    (21.9 )%    (19.8 )%    (13.8 )%    (20.1 )%  
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

  
•   Our higher revenue and gross margin in the year ended June 25, 2010 was a result of including higher margin high performance 

compute server and storage products and the related service revenue associated with our acquisition of Legacy SGI.  

  
•   We experienced a significant increase in our operating expenses due to including the results of operations of the Legacy SGI 

acquisition in the year ended June 25, 2010.  

  

•   As a result of the acquisition, our headcount significantly increased from 318 employees as of January 3, 2009 to 1,325 employees as 
of June 25, 2010. Our properties also increased significantly from approximately 177,000 square feet of floor space as of January 3, 
2009 to approximately 436,000 square feet of leased floor space as of June 25, 2010. As of June 25, 2010, we also own land and 
buildings with aggregate floor space of approximately 268,000 square feet.  



Table of Contents  

Revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit and gross margin  

The following table presents revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit, and gross margin for the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 
2009:  
   

Revenue. We derive revenue from the sale of products and services directly to end-users as well as through resellers and system 
integrators. Product revenue is derived from the sale of mid-range to high-end computing servers and data storage systems as well as software. 
We enter into sales contracts which obligate the delivery of multiple products and/or services. In accordance with our revenue recognition 
policy, certain sales contracts are deferred and recognized over the service period. Service revenue is generated from the sale of standard 
maintenance contracts as well as custom maintenance contracts that are tailored to individual customer’s needs. We recognize service revenue 
ratably over the service periods when the service contracts are expressly priced separately from products. Maintenance contracts are typically 
between one to three years in length and we actively pursue renewals of these contracts. We also generate professional services revenue related 
to implementation of and training on our products.  

Revenue increased $156.3 million or 63% to $403.7 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $247.4 million in the year ended 
January 3, 2009. The increase in revenue was primarily due to the addition of revenue from high performance compute server and storage 
products and related service revenue associated with our acquisition of Legacy SGI. The acquisition of Legacy SGI contributed $235.0 million 
of revenue in the year ended June 25, 2010. Revenue from the sale of data center products and services of $168.7 million decreased $78.7 
million or 32% in the year ended June 25, 2010 as compared with $247.4 million in the year ended January 3, 2009. The decline was primarily 
due to a 31% decrease in the number of units shipped, reflecting the economic downturn which we believe has impacted the timing of our 
customer’s buying decisions, and slight decrease in average selling price compared to prior year.  

Cost of revenue and gross profit . Cost of revenue consists of costs associated with direct material, labor, manufacturing overhead, 
shipment of products, inventory write downs and share-based compensation. Cost of revenue also includes personnel costs for providing 
maintenance and professional services. Our manufacturing overhead and professional services personnel costs are fixed or semi-variable and 
we are not able to reduce them  
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•   During the year ended June 25, 2010, we experienced a significant decrease in total share-based compensation expense due to a 

declining stock price and employee turnover compared to the year ended January 3, 2009.  

     Year ended     Change   

     
June 25,  

2010     
January 3, 

2009     $     %   
     (in thousands, except percentages)    

Product revenue     $   256,007      $ 247,430      $ 8,577                    3 %  
Service revenue       147,710        —          147,710      n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total revenue     $ 403,717      $ 247,430      $ 156,287      63 %  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Cost of product revenue     $ 229,913      $ 217,992      $ 11,921      5 %  
Cost of service revenue       84,215        —          84,215      n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total cost of revenue     $ 314,128      $ 217,992      $ 96,136      44 %  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Product gross profit     $ 26,094      $ 29,438      $ (3,344 )    (11 )%  
Service gross profit       63,495        —          63,495      n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total gross profit     $ 89,589      $ 29,438      $ 60,151      204 %  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Product gross margin       10.2 %      11.9 %      

Service gross margin       43.0 %      —   %      

Overall gross margin       22.2 %      11.9 %      
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in proportion to the reduction in revenue. Additionally, changes in customer and product mix, pricing actions by our competitors and 
commodity prices that comprise a significant portion of cost of revenue, significantly impact gross margin from period to period. Further when 
certain sales contracts are deferred in accordance with our revenue recognition policy, the related cost of revenue is deferred and recognized 
over the service period.  

With the acquisition of Legacy SGI, we added facilities and personnel that contribute to an increase in our cost of revenue. Our headcount 
increased by 448 employees from 128 employees at January 3, 2009 to 576 employees at June 25, 2010. Cost of revenue increased by a lower 
percentage than revenue due to a shift in mix towards a greater percentage of higher margin service offerings and high performance compute 
server and storage products.  

Gross profit increased $60.2 million to $89.6 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $29.4 million in the year ended January 3, 
2009. Gross margin percentage increased to 22.2% in the year ended June 25, 2010 from 11.9% in the year ended January 3, 2009. Our 
increase in gross profit and gross margin was primarily attributable to higher margin high performance compute server and storage product 
revenue and related service revenue associated with our acquisition of Legacy SGI, which had gross margin of 31.7% and contributed $74.5 
million in gross profit in the year ended June 25, 2010. Gross profit from the sale of data center products and services decreased $14.4 million 
or 48.8% to $15.1 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $29.4 million in the year ended January 3, 2009.  

Operating Expenses  

Operating expenses for the years ending June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009 were as follows:  
   

Research and development. Research and development expense consists primarily of personnel and related costs, contractor fees, new 
component testing and evaluation, test equipment, new product design and testing, other product development activities, share-based 
compensation, and facilities and information technology costs.  

Research and development expense increased $42.0 million or 283% to $56.9 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $14.9 million 
in the year ended January 3, 2009. The overall increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to the expansion of our 
business and research and development activities which resulted from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. In the year ended June 25, 2010, our 
compensation and related expenses increased by $26.6 million due to an increase in research and development headcount from 60 employees at 
January 3, 2009 to 270 employees at June 25, 2010. Additionally, materials and supplies increased $2.8 million and third-party research and 
development services increased $5.5 million, primarily driven by expenses incurred for development of our UV system and other new 
products. Further, facilities costs increased $3.0 million and depreciation expense increased $4.2 million. These increases were partially offset 
by lower share-based compensation related expenses of $1.1 million due to declining stock price and employee turnover.  

We believe that focused investments in research and development are critical to our future performance and competitiveness in the 
marketplace. Our investments in this area will directly relate to enhancement of our current product line, development of new products that 
achieve market acceptance, and our ability to meet an expanding range of customer requirements. As such, we expect to continue to spend on 
current and future product development efforts.  
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     Year ended    Change   

  

   
June 25,  

2010   

  January 3, 
 

2009 

   

$   

  

%             
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Research and development     $ 56,865      $ 14,864    $ 42,001      283 %  
Sales and marketing     $ 64,831      $ 23,412    $ 41,419      177 %  
General and administrative     $ 52,594      $ 24,526    $ 28,068      114 %  
Restructuring     $ 5,213      $ 685    $ 4,528      661 %  
Acquisition-related     $ (3,264 )    $ —      $ (3,264 )    n/a    
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Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expense consists primarily of salaries, bonuses and commissions paid to our sales and 
marketing employees, amortization of intangible assets, share-based compensation, and facilities and information technology costs. We also 
incur marketing expenses for activities such as trade shows, direct mail and print advertising. Sales and marketing expense and period-over-
period changes are as follows:  

Sales and marketing expense increased $41.4 million or 177% to $64.8 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $23.4 million in the 
year ended January 3, 2009. The overall increase in sales and marketing expense was primarily due to the expansion of our business which 
resulted from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. In the year ended June 25, 2010, our compensation and related expenses increased by $29.5 
million due to an increase in sales and marketing headcount from 70 employees at January 3, 2009 to 291 employees at June 25, 2010. Our 
facilities costs, rent expenses, and depreciation expenses are higher in the year ended June 25, 2010 by $6.3 million compared to the year ended 
January 3, 2009. We also experienced an increase in marketing costs of $1.4 million and higher travel and entertainment expenses of $1.4 
million. In addition, we recorded intangible asset amortization expense of $5.0 million during the year ended June 25, 2010 related to the 
amortization of customer backlog intangible asset acquired as part of our acquisition of Legacy SGI. There was no intangible asset amortization 
for the year ended January 3, 2009. This increase in sales and marketing expense was reduced by lower share-based compensation costs of $1.1 
million due to declining stock price and employee turnover, and write-off of loaner and demo equipments of $2.2 million recorded in the year 
ended January 3, 2009.  

We will continue to deploy our sales and support organizations to focus on key vertical markets such as defense and strategic systems, 
weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and automotive, media and entertainment, 
semiconductor design, manufacturing, financial services, data centers, and business intelligence and data analytics.  

General and administrative. General and administrative expense consists primarily of personnel costs, directors and officers insurance, 
legal and professional service costs, depreciation, share-based compensation, and facilities and information technology costs. General and 
administrative expense and period-over-period changes are as follows:  

General and administrative expense increased $28.1 million or 114% to $52.6 million in the year ended June 25, 2010 from $24.5 million 
in the year ended January 3, 2009. The overall increase in general and administrative expense was primarily due to the expansion of our 
business which resulted from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. In the year ended June 25, 2010, our compensation and related expenses increased 
by $16.0 million due to increase in general and administrative headcount from 60 employees at January 3, 2009 to 188 employees at June 25, 
2010. Due to the increased complexity of our business post-acquisition, our financial audit and SOX compliance fees increased by $1.3 million. 
Our outside tax consulting fees also increased by $2.1 million primarily due to an increase in consulting services regarding foreign tax issues, 
as we are now currently operating in 26 countries. Our legal expenses also increased by $1.6 million. Our third-party contractors and temporary 
employees increased by $3.0 million primarily driven by outsourcing of finance and IT related functions in the year ended June 25, 2010 as we 
integrated Legacy SGI. Facilities related expenses increased by $2.2 million. Our property taxes also increased by $0.9 million, insurance by 
$1.0 million, and bad debt expense by $0.8 million. This increase in expenses was offset by lower share based compensation cost of $1.7 
million due to a decline in stock price and employee turnover.  

Restructuring . On July 27, 2009, management approved restructuring actions to reduce the Company’s European workforce and vacate 
certain facilities. The expense for the year ended June 25, 2010 related to these actions was $4.6 million for severance and $0.6 million for 
vacating facilities. As a result of the restructuring actions undertaken, the Company anticipates cash outflows of $1.3 million, primarily during 
fiscal year 2011.  

Acquisition-related . In the year ended June 25, 2010, we recorded a net gain of $3.3 million, related to our acquisition of Legacy SGI. 
During the year ended June 25, 2010, we received a $1.0 million payment from Legacy SGI related to potential liabilities of Legacy SGI, 
which pursuant to the Agreement were to be remitted to the Company if not paid to a third party. In addition, we received $2.3 million from a 
Legacy SGI customer,  
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resulting from a settlement of dispute with this customer which existed prior to the acquisition of Legacy SGI. At the Closing Date, we 
assessed whether it was more likely than not that contingent assets existed and based on all available information concluded that no contingent 
assets existed. Accordingly, we have recorded the $3.3 million payments received as a gain in our statement of operations in the year ended 
June 25, 2010.  

Total other income (expense)  

Total other income (expense) for the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009 was as follows:  
   

Interest income, net. Interest income, net primarily consists of interest earned on our investment portfolio. Interest income, net decreased 
$3.7 million or 89% primarily due to lower interest rates earned on our investment portfolio in the year ended June 25, 2010 as compared to the 
year ended January 3, 2009. Our cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash and cash equivalents, and long-term investments in ARS 
was $140.8 million as of June 25, 2010 and $180.6 million as of January 3, 2009.  

Other income (expense), net. Other income (expense), net primarily consists of foreign exchange loss. The foreign exchange loss was 
$7.2 million in year ended June 25, 2010 and $0.7 million in year ended January 3, 2009. In the year ended June 25, 2010, we experienced an 
unfavorable exchange rate effect resulting from the weakening of the U.S dollar against the Euro.  

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations  

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations for the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009 was as follows:  
   

We recorded a net tax benefit of $4.4 million for the year ended June 25, 2010. The net income tax benefit includes a discrete tax benefit 
of $4.9 million resulting from the November 6, 2009 enactment of the Worker, Homeownership, and Business Assistance Act of 2009 (the 
Act). The Act provides an election for federal taxpayers to increase the carry back period for an applicable net operating loss to three to five 
years from two years. Additional amounts recorded include a discrete tax benefit of $1.0 million attributable to release of valuation allowance 
and tax expense of $1.1 million for unrecognized tax benefits and related interest. The effective tax rate used to record the tax expense differed 
from the combined federal and net state statutory income tax rate for the year ended June 25, 2010 primarily due to the discrete items noted 
above and the fact that we do not record a benefit for operating losses generated during the period due to uncertainties regarding the 
realizability of the resulting loss carryforwards.  

Our income tax provision recorded for the year ended January 3, 2009 consisted primarily of current year refunds of prior taxes paid 
offset by the recording of a valuation allowance for deferred tax asset balances due to the Company’s current loss position. Our effective tax 
rate for the year ended January 3, 2009 differed from the combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to the recording of the 
valuation allowance.  
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     Year ended     Change   

  

   
June 25,  

2010   

  January 3, 
 

2009   

      

       $     %   
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Interest income, net     $ 436      $ 4,106      $ (3,670 )    (89 )%  
Other income (expense), net     $ (7,088 )    $ (968 )    $ (6,120 )    632 %  

  

   Year ended    Change   
   

June 25,  
2010   

  January 3, 
 

2009 

       

        $     %   
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations     $ (4,441 )    $ 376    $ (4,817 )    (1,281 )%  
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As of June 25, 2010, we have provided a full valuation allowance against the majority of our net deferred tax assets. Based on all 
available evidence, on a jurisdictional basis, including our historical operating results, and the uncertainty of predicting our future income, the 
valuation allowance reduces the majority of our deferred tax assets to an amount that is more likely than not to be realized. The amount of the 
valuation allowance is attributable to U.S. federal, state and certain foreign deferred tax assets primarily consisting of net operating loss 
carryovers, tax credit carryovers, accrued expenses, and other temporary differences. As of June 25, 2010, we have determined that it is more 
likely than not that certain foreign deferred tax assets will be realized and as a result, we released the valuation allowance related to the 
deferred tax assets of certain foreign subsidiaries. We continue to evaluate the realizability of deferred tax assets and related valuation 
allowance. If our assessment of the deferred tax assets or the corresponding valuation allowance were to change, we would record the related 
adjustment to income during the period in which management makes the determination.  

As of January 3, 2009, we had provided a full valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets.  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009 was as follows:  
   

During the year ended January 3, 2009, we classified our Rapidscale product line as a discontinued operation as a result of discontinuing 
this product line. Our decision was a result of a change in strategic direction, as well as an inability to license certain third party software on 
reasonable commercial terms.  

We do not believe this discontinued operation will have a significant negative impact on our future results of operations. The revenue 
contribution from this product line was $0.4 million and $0.7 million for the years ended June 25, 2010 and January 3, 2009, respectively.  

Comparison of the six month transition period ended June 26, 2009 and the six months ended June 28, 2008 (unaudited)  

Financial Highlights  
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     Year ended     Change   
     June 25, 

 
2010 

   January 3, 
 

2009   

  

$ 

   

%                
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax     $ 409    $ (22,941 )    $ 23,350    (102 )%  

  
•   Our lower revenue and gross margin was primarily attributed to a decrease in the number of units shipped as well as a decrease in the 

average selling price partially offset by six weeks of revenue from our acquisition of Legacy SGI.  

  
•   We experienced a significant increase in our operating expenses due to the acquisition of Legacy SGI in May 2009 during the six 

month transition period ended June 26, 2009.  

  
•   We experienced a significant decrease in total share-based compensation expense due to a declining stock price and employee 

turnover. Total share-based compensation expense decreased by approximately $4.1 million from $7.2 million in the six month ended 
June 28, 2008 to $3.1 million for the six months ended June 26, 2009.  
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Revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit and gross margin  

The following table presents revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit, and gross margin for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 
2008:  
   

Revenue . Revenue decreased $40.8 million or 28% in the six months ended June 26, 2009 from $143.6 million in the six months ended 
June 28, 2008. The decline was primarily due to a 53% decrease in the number of units shipped over the prior year period. The decline was 
offset by a 6% increase in average selling price reflecting customer and product configuration mix changes. The decline was partially offset by 
six weeks of revenue from our acquisition of Legacy SGI assets during the six months ended June 26, 2009 which contributed $30.7 million of 
revenue to our results for the period.  

Cost of revenue and gross profit. The decline in cost of revenue is less than the decline in revenue due to the fixed nature of our 
manufacturing overhead and personnel costs. Additionally, with the acquisition of Legacy SGI, we added facilities and personnel that 
contributed to our cost of revenue.  

The lower gross margin for the six months ended June 26, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 28, 2008 is primarily attributed to 
a decrease in average selling price and number of units shipped. In the current year, we experienced a 53% decrease in the number of units 
shipped which was offset by a 6% increase in average selling price. The decrease in units shipped resulted in $13.0 million decrease in gross 
margin and an $11.6 million decrease related to lower gross margin on those shipments. Lower gross margin was also a result of excess and 
obsolete charges being a higher percentage of revenue in the six months ended June 26, 2009 compared to the six months ended June 28, 2008. 
This was offset by higher margin revenue earned from the Legacy SGI business. Legacy SGI contributed $7.6 million in gross profit in the six 
months ended June 26, 2009.  
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     Six months ended     Change   

     
June 26,  

2009     
June 28,  

2008     $     %   
           (unaudited)               
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Product revenue     $ 77,987      $ 143,569      $ (65,582 )    (46 )%  
Service revenue       24,790        —          24,790               n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total revenue     $ 102,777      $ 143,569      $ (40,792 )    (28 )%  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Cost of product revenue     $ 78,132      $ 119,159      $ (41,027 )    (34 )%  
Cost of service revenue       16,868        —          16,868      n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total cost of revenue     $ 95,000      $ 119,159      $ (24,159 )    (20 )%  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Product gross profit     $ (145 )    $ 24,410      $ (24,555 )    (101 )%  
Service gross profit       7,922        —          7,922      n/a    

       
  

      
  

      
  

    
  

Total gross profit     $ 7,777      $ 24,410      $ (16,633 )    (68 )%  
       

  

      

  

      

  

    

  

Product gross margin       (0.2 )%      17.0 %      

Service gross margin       32.0 %      —          

Overall gross margin       7.6 %      17.0 %      
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Operating Expenses  

Operating expenses for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 2008 were as follows:  
   

Research and development. Research and development expenses increased $3.5 million or 48% in the six months ended June 26, 2009 
from $7.2 million in the six months ended June 28, 2008. The increase was primarily due to a $3.4 million increase in compensation and 
related expenses resulting from an increase in headcount primarily from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. Headcount in research and 
development increased from 63 employees to 275 employees due to the addition of 212 employees as a result of the Legacy SGI acquisition. 
The increase is also attributed to an increase in our facilities costs of $0.5 million as we now have facilities in more locations and an increase in 
depreciation expense of $0.6 million. Materials and supplies usage increased by $0.4 million due to our acquisition of Legacy SGI. These 
increases were offset by a decrease in our share-based compensation expense of $0.8 million and Legacy SGI research and development 
reimbursement arrangements with business partners of $0.9 million.  

Sales and marketing. Sales and marketing expense increased $6.0 million or 50% in the six months ended June 26, 2009 from $12.2 
million in the six months ended June 28, 2008. The increase was primarily due to $3.8 million increase in compensation and related expenses 
due to an increase in headcount from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. Headcount in sales and marketing increased from 52 employees to 308 
employees due to the addition of 256 employees as a result of the Legacy SGI acquisition. We also recorded an impairment charge of $2.5 
million related to the write down of the Rackable trade name. In addition, we experienced an increase in facilities expense of $0.6 million, 
information technology costs of $0.5 million, depreciation expense of $0.3 million and amortization of intangibles of $0.3 million as a result of 
our acquisition of Legacy SGI. The increase was offset by a decrease in share-based compensation of $0.7 million, decrease of $0.5 million in 
commissions and bonuses due to a decline in sales, decrease in use of evaluation systems of $0.3 million, and decrease in our recruiting costs of 
$0.3 million.  

General and administrative. General and administrative expense increased $0.2 million or 2% in the six months ended June 26, 2009 
from $13.8 million in the six months ended June 28, 2008. The increase was primarily due to $2.0 million increase in compensation and related 
expenses due to an increase in headcount from our acquisition of Legacy SGI. Headcount in general and administrative increased from 47 
employees to 197 employees due to the addition of 150 employees as a result of the Legacy SGI acquisition. The increase is also due to an 
increase in tax settlement expense of $0.4 million. The increase was offset by a decrease in share-based compensation expense of $1.8 million.  

Restructuring. Restructuring expense consist primarily of severance costs and costs to exit facilities. Restructuring expenses increased 
$0.6 million or 85% for the six months ended June 26, 2009 from $0.7 million in the six months ended June 28, 2008. Restructuring expenses 
in the current quarter consist of severance costs for employees that were terminated as a result of the Legacy SGI acquisition. We incurred 
restructuring charges of $0.7 million related to future lease commitments for excess facilities vacated during the six months ended June 28, 
2008.  
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     Six months ended    Change   

     
June 26,  

2009     
June 28,  

2008    $     %   
           (unaudited)              
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Research and development     $ 10,729      $ 7,239    $ 3,490      48 %  
Sales and marketing     $ 18,236      $ 12,196    $ 6,040      50 %  
General and administrative     $ 14,013      $ 13,790    $ 223      2 %  
Restructuring     $ 1,270      $ 685    $ 585      85 %  
Acquisition-related     $ 6,070      $ —      $ 6,070      n/a    
Gain from settlement agreement     $ (5,000 )    $ —      $ (5,000 )    n/a    
Gain from acquisition     $ (19,831 )    $ —      $ (19,831 )    n/a    
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Acquisition-related . Acquisition-related cost for the six months ended June 26, 2009, were $6.1 million related to the acquisition of 
Legacy SGI consisting primarily of costs related to due diligence, legal and other professional fees.  

Gain from settlement agreement . During the six months ended June 26, 2009, we reached a settlement with a customer over a dispute on 
the terms of a statement of work under which this customer agreed to pay us $5.0 million. No such benefit was recorded in any other period 
presented.  

Gain from acquisition . During the six months ended June 26, 2009, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Legacy SGI. The 
estimated fair value of the acquired net assets of $62.3 million exceeds the $42.5 million cash consideration paid resulting in a bargain purchase 
gain of $19.8 million. No such gain was recorded in the six months ended June 28, 2008.  

Total other income (expense)  

Total other income (expense) for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 2008 was as follows:  
   

Total other income decreased for the six months ended June 26, 2009 by $1.6 million from $2.9 million in the six months ended June 28, 
2008 to $1.3 million due to a decline in interest income, net of $2.7 million. Interest income, net decreased primarily due to lower interest rates 
earned on our investment portfolio in the six-months ended June 26, 2009 as compared to the six months ended June 28, 2008. This decline 
was partially offset by an increase in other income by $1.1 million, primarily due to an increase in foreign currency gains.  

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations  

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 2008 was as follows:  
   

We recorded a tax benefit of $2.2 million and a tax provision of $1.5 million for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 2008, 
respectively. The tax benefit was computed based on the year to date financial statements reflecting our new fiscal year end of June 26, 2009. 
The income tax benefit for the six months ended June 26, 2009 includes a tax benefit of $1.8 million resulting from the release of Legacy 
Rackable’s valuation allowance to offset the deferred tax liabilities recorded through the business combination of Legacy SGI. In addition, 
Legacy Rackable released valuation allowance in the amount of $0.8 million resulting from changing the classification of indefinite to definite 
lived intangible assets. The effective tax rate used to record the tax benefit differed from the combined federal and net state statutory income 
tax rate for the six months ended  
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     Six months ended     Change   

  
   

June 26, 
 

2009    
June 28,  

2008     $     %   
        (unaudited)               

     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Interest income, net     $ 176    $ 2,879      $ (2,703 )    (94 )%  
Other income (expense), net     $ 1,101    $ (3 )    $ 1,104      *    

  
* not meaningful 

  

   Six months ended    Change   

   
June 26,  

2009     
June 28,  

2008    $     %   
         (unaudited)              

     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations     $ (2,242 )    $ 1,526    $ (3,768 )    (247 )%  
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June 26, 2009 was primarily due to the release of Legacy Rackable’s valuation allowance and operating losses generated during the six months 
ended June 26, 2009 from which we do not benefit.  

As of June 26, 2009, we have provided a full valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets. Management continues to evaluate the 
realizability of deferred tax assets and related valuation allowance. If management’s assessment of the deferred tax assets or the corresponding 
valuation allowance were to change, we would record the related adjustment to income during the period in which management makes the 
determination.  

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax  

Loss from continuing operations, net of tax, for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and June 28, 2008 was as follows:  
   

During the six months ended June 28, 2008, we classified our Rapidscale product line as a discontinued operation as a result of 
discontinuing this product line. Our decision was a result of a change in strategic direction, as well as an inability to license certain third party 
software on reasonable commercial terms.  

The revenue contribution from this product line was not significant at $0.1 million and $0.3 million for the six months ended June 26, 
2009 and June 28, 2008, respectively.  

Comparison of the Years Ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007  

Financial Highlights  
   

   

   

   

Revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit and gross margin  

The following table presents revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit, and gross margin for the years ended January 3, 2009 and 
December 29, 2007:  
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     Six months ended     Change   

  
   

June 26, 
 

2009     
June 28,  

2008     $    %   
         (unaudited)              

     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax     $ (20 )    $ (20,546 )    $ 20,526    (100 )%  

  •   Our revenue declined in fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2007 due to a decrease of 34% in units shipped.  

  
•   We experienced a decrease in operating expenses due to a decrease in overall headcount to 318 employees at year end 2008 from 374 

employees at year end 2007.  

  

•   We ceased operations in Canada and discontinued our Rapidscale product line during fiscal year 2008. The results of this product 
line were reflected as discontinued operations in our financial statements. The Rapidscale product line incurred a net loss comprised 
primarily of impairment of long lived assets, costs related to the employment agreements in connection with our acquisition of 
Rapidscale, severance to former employees and occupancy-related expenses.  

  
•   We experienced a significant decrease in total share-based compensation expense due to a declining stock price and employee 

turnover.  

  

   Year ended    Change   
   

January 3, 
2009 

   December 29, 
 

2007 

   

$   

  

%              
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Revenue     $ 247,430    $ 350,684    $ (103,254 )    (29 )%  
Cost of revenue     $ 217,992    $ 303,440    $ (85,448 )    (28 )%  
Gross profit     $ 29,438    $ 47,244    $ (17,806 )    (38 )%  
Gross margin       11.9%      13.5%      
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Revenue. The decline in revenue for the year ended January 3, 2009, compared to the year ended December 29, 2007, reflects the 
economic downturn which we believe has impacted the timing of our customers’ buying decisions. For the year ended January 3, 2009, 
revenue from our top three historical customers fell by 38% to $138.5 million or 56% of total revenue as compared with $223.2 million or 64% 
of total revenue in the year ended December 29, 2007. While the number of units shipped decreased 34% from the number shipped in fiscal 
year 2007, the average selling price increased 6% reflecting customer and product configuration mix changes.  

Cost of revenue and gross profit. The decrease in gross profit for the year ended January 3, 2009 as compared to the prior year was 
primarily due to the lower revenue mentioned above due to fewer systems shipped and due to lower gross margin earned on these shipments. 
The primary cause for the decrease in gross margin for the year ended January 3, 2009 as compared to in the year ended December 29, 2007 
was due to increased excess and obsolete inventory charges as a percentage of revenue in the year ended January 3, 2009 which was partially 
offset by an increase in the mix of higher margin customers.  

Operating expenses.  

Operating expenses for the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 were as follows:  
   

Research and development. The increase in research and development expense for the year ended January 3, 2009 compared to the prior 
year was primarily due to increased employee and related expenses due to overall higher headcount throughout the year as compared to prior 
year, higher material usage related to the development of future product lines, and higher depreciation expense as a result of the addition of test 
systems to support engineering activities. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in share-based compensation during the period 
primarily due to the decline in our stock price and employee turnover.  

Sales and marketing. The decrease in sales and marketing expense for the year ended January 3, 2009 compared to the year ended 
December 29, 2007, was primarily due to reduced share-based compensation expense due to the decline in our stock price and employee 
turnover, lower commission and sales expense due to lower revenue, and lower expense related to fewer evaluation units used to present and 
market our products to new customers.  

General and administrative . The reduction of general and administrative expense for the year ended January 3, 2009 compared to the 
prior year was primarily due to reduced share-based compensation due to the decline in our stock price and employee turnover, a sales and use 
tax filing settlement resolved in fiscal 2007 which was not present in fiscal 2008, and reduced expense related to the amortization of intangibles 
related to the “Old Rackable” acquisition that became fully amortized by the end of fiscal 2007.  

Restructuring. In the six months ended June 28, 2008, we relocated certain engineering activities that were being performed at our 
Milpitas, California facility, which was under lease through June 30, 2009. We negotiated and completed a lease termination agreement with 
the lessor, releasing us from any further responsibilities in exchange for a payment of $0.7 million. There were no such charges in the year 
ended December 29, 2007.  
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     Year ended    Change   

  

   January 3, 
 

2009 

   December 29, 
 

2007 

   

$   

  

%              
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Research and development     $ 14,864    $ 13,802    $ 1,062      8 %  
Sales and marketing     $ 23,412    $ 32,461    $ (9,049 )    (28 )%  
General and administrative     $ 24,526    $ 35,801    $ (11,275 )    (31 )%  
Restructuring     $ 685    $ —      $ 685      n/a    
Impairment of long-lived assets     $ —      $ 2,820    $ (2,820 )    (100 )%  
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Impairment of long-lived assets. In the year ended December 29, 2007, we had a $2.8 million charge related to impairment of goodwill. 
This charge was a result of our market capitalization at December 29, 2007, which was less than our net assets, including goodwill, at that time. 
We determined the current fair value of our assets and liabilities and concluded that the entire amount of the goodwill has been impaired.  

Total other income (expense)  

Total other income (expense) for the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 was as follows:  
   

The decrease in other income (expense), net was primarily due to lower interest income earned on our investment portfolio due to 
declining interest rates and the economic downturn in the year ended January 3, 2009 as well as an increase in foreign exchange losses during 
the year.  

Income tax provision from continuing operations  

Income tax provision from continuing operations for the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 was as follows:  
   

Our income tax provision recorded for the year ended January 3, 2009 consists primarily of current year refunds of prior taxes paid offset 
by the recording of a valuation allowance for deferred tax asset balances due to our loss position. Our effective tax rate for the year ended 
January 3, 2009 differs from the combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to the recording of the valuation allowance.  

Our effective tax rate for the year ended December 29, 2007 differs from the combined federal and state statutory rate primarily due to 
increases in our valuation allowance for deferred tax assets and the write-off of goodwill, a majority of which is not deductible or amortizable 
for U.S. tax purposes.  

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax  

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 was as follows:  
   

During the year ended January 3, 2009, we classified our Rapidscale product line as a discontinued operation as a result of discontinuing 
this product line. Our decision was a result of a change in strategic direction, as well as an inability to license certain third party software on 
reasonable commercial terms. We  
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     Year ended    Change   
     January 3, 

 
2009   

  December 29, 
 

2007 

   

$   

  

%               
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Interest income, net     $ 4,106      $ 8,227    $ (4,121 )    (50 )%  
Other income (expenses), net     $ (968 )    $ 364    $ (1,332 )    (366 )%  

     Year ended    Change   
     January 3, 

 
2009 

   December 29, 
 

2007 

   

$   

  

%                
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Income tax provision from continuing operations     $ 376    $ 12,531    $ (12,155 )    (97 )%  

  

   Year ended     Change   
   January 3, 

 
2009   

  December 29, 

 
2007   

  

$ 

   

%             
     (in thousands, except percentages)   

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax     $ (22,941 )    $ (27,977 )    $ 5,036    (18 )%  
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recorded an impairment charge of $17.5 million of long lived assets due to significantly lowered projected revenue and cash flow from the 
Rapidscale product line. In October 2008, a formal plan to abandon the Rapidscale product line was reviewed and approved by management 
with appropriate authority and was communicated to the affected employees. Costs associated with closing down these operations in the year 
ended January 3, 2009 were not significant  

The revenue contribution from this product line was not significant at $0.7 million and $2.5 million for the years ended January 3, 2009 
and December 29, 2007, respectively.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

We had $129.3 million of cash and cash equivalents at June 25, 2010, $128.7 million at June 26, 2009, $172.0 million at January 3, 2009 
and $49.9 million at December 29, 2007. Historically, we have required capital principally to fund our working capital needs and, during the 
six months ended June 26, 2009, we used $42.5 million of cash to acquire substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Legacy SGI.  

At June 25, 2010, we had short-term and long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents of $3.9 million that are pledged as collateral for 
various guarantees issued to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government authorities for value-added tax (“VAT”) and other 
taxes, and certain vendors to support payments in advance of delivery of goods and services. At June 25, 2010, we held $7.5 million of long-
term investments consisting of various auction rate securities (“ARS”). Substantially all of the ARS are collateralized by guaranteed student 
loans, and insured or reinsured by the federal government. The credit markets are currently experiencing significant uncertainty, and some of 
this uncertainty has impacted the markets where our ARS would be offered. Given the recent disruptions in the credit markets and the fact that 
the liquidity for these types of securities remains uncertain, our investments in ARS are not currently available to meet liquidity needs. For 
additional information related to our investments in ARS investments see Note 4 in our Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K.  

The adequacy of these resources to meet our liquidity needs beyond the next twelve months will depend on our growth, operating results 
and capital expenditures required to meet our business needs. If we fail to generate cash from operations, or generate additional cash from our 
operations on a timely basis, we may not have the cash resources required to run our business and we may need to seek additional sources of 
funds to meet our needs. Cash flows from our discontinued operations have been included in our consolidated statement of cash flows with 
continuing operations within each cash flow category. The absence of cash flows from discontinued operations is not expected to affect our 
future liquidity or capital resources.  

At June 25, 2010, we believe our current cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund working capital requirements, capital 
expenditures, and operations for at least the next twelve months. We intend to retain any future earnings to support operations and to finance 
the growth and development of our business, and we do not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future. At the present time, we 
have no material commitments for capital expenditures.  

If we require additional capital resources to expand our business internally or to acquire complementary technologies and businesses at 
any time in the future, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain other debt financing. The sale of additional equity or 
debt securities could result in more dilution to our stockholders. Financing arrangements may not be available to us, or may not be available in 
amounts or on terms acceptable to us.  
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The following is a summary of cash activity (in thousands):  
   

Operating Activities  

Cash provided by operating activities of $8.2 million for the year ended June 25, 2010 reflected cash provided by changes in working 
capital of $44.2 million, offset by our net loss of $64.6 million, net of adjustments for non-cash items. The primary working capital sources of 
cash were an increase in deferred revenue and decreases in inventories and prepaid and other current assets. The primary working capital uses 
of cash were increases in deferred cost of revenue and accounts receivable and a decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities. Non-cash 
items consisted primarily of depreciation and amortization of $18.4 million and share-based compensation of $4.7 million.  

For the year ended June 25, 2010, deferred revenue increased $145.3 million, primarily due to the timing of revenue recognition on sales 
transactions which were required to be deferred in accordance with our revenue recognition policy. Inventory decreased $28.3 million due to 
timing of inventory purchases and shipments to customers. Further, prepaids and other current assets decreased $7.7 million, primarily due to a 
tax refund received and collection of other receivables. These sources of cash were offset by an increase in deferred cost of revenue of $88.5 
million related to the increase in deferred revenue. Additionally, accounts receivable increased $15.5 million, reflecting an increase in 
shipments and the timing of sales. Accounts payable decreased $4.2 million, primarily due to the timing of payments. Other current liabilities 
decreased $3.6 million, primarily due to decrease in warranty reserve. Other liabilities increased $2.2 million, primarily due to increase in 
interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, which are classified as components of income tax expense.  

During the six months ended June 26, 2009, cash used in operating activities was $27.0 million. Our net loss included non-cash items for 
a gain on acquisition of $19.8 million, gain on settlement of $5.0 million, depreciation and amortization of $3.3 million, share-based 
compensation of $3.1 million, and impairment charge of $2.5 million due to the write down of the Legacy Rackable trade name. Cash used for 
working capital was approximately $3.2 million, primarily due to increases in accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, 
and a decrease in deferred revenue, offset by an increase in accounts payable.  

For the six months ended June 26, 2009, accounts receivable increased by $10.0 million, net of acquired receivables of $22.5 million, 
reflecting timing of sales and weaker collection results. Prepaid expenses and other current assets increased $6.9 million due primarily to an 
increase in other receivables consisting primarily of rebates receivable from vendors. Deferred revenue decreased by $11.4 million, net of 
acquired deferred revenue of $76.3 million. These uses of cash were offset by an increase in accounts payable of $15.6 million due to an 
increase in expenses related to the acquisition and integration of Legacy SGI that remained unpaid at June 26, 2009. In addition, there was a 
decrease in inventories and deferred cost of revenue, net of assets acquired, of $10.2 million. The increase in other current liabilities is 
primarily due to an increase in sales, use and income tax payable.  

During the year ended January 3, 2009, cash used in operating activities totaled $15.7 million due to our net loss exceeding both our non-
cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Our net loss included substantial non-cash items in the form of stock compensation of 
$9.6 million, impairment of long-lived assets of  
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     Year Ended     
Six  

Months  
Ended  

June 26,  
2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 
2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Consolidated statements of cash flows data:           

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities     $ 8,197      $ (15,699 )    $ 46,075      $ (27,014 )  
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities       (8,500 )      137,433        (32,145 )      (15,097 )  
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities       932        148        5,547        (1,014 )  
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$17.5 million and depreciation and amortization of long-lived assets of $5.6 million, partially offset by the decrease in deferred tax liabilities of 
$1.5 million. These non-cash items totaled $31.9 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities offset our net loss by approximately $6.6 
million, primarily in accounts receivable, prepaid and other assets, accounts payable, deferred revenue and deferred cost of revenue.  

For the year ended January 3, 2009, accounts receivable decreased $22.1 million, reflecting decreased revenue and the timing of sales in 
the year ended January 3, 2009 over the year ended December 29, 2007. Revenue in the fourth quarter ended December 29, 2007 was $111.3 
million versus $38.7 million in the fourth quarter ended January 3, 2009. Prepaid and other assets decreased $14.1 million, primarily due to a 
substantial decrease in prepaid taxes as well as a reduction in supplier rebates over the prior year. Accounts payable decreased $26.2 million 
primarily due to our timing of inventory purchases. We reduced our inventory purchase activity in the fourth quarter ended January 3, 2009 
versus the same period in prior year. Deferred revenue and deferred cost of revenue increased $11.1 million and $10.5 million, respectively, 
reflecting a large customer order that did not meet revenue recognition criteria.  

Despite a net loss of $69.6 million in the year ended December 29, 2007, net cash provided by operating activities was $46.1 million. 
This increase was due primarily to non-cash items of $67.7 million. Non-cash items included an impairment of goodwill of $23.9 million, 
share-based compensation of $23.2 million, deferred income taxes of $14.5 million and depreciation and amortization of $7.4 million. Changes 
in operating assets and liabilities offset our net loss by $47.9 million, primarily in accounts receivable, inventories, and accounts payable.  

For the year ended December 29, 2007, accounts receivable decreased by $54.0 million primarily due to very linear sales in the fourth 
quarter ended December 29, 2007 compared to the back-end loaded fourth quarter ended December 20, 2006. Through improved supply chain 
management we decreased our inventory levels and purchases to respond to the sales trends in the year ended December 29, 2007, resulting in 
lower inventory and accounts payable balances. Improvements in our supply chain management are intended to ensure sufficient supply on 
hand to meet expected demand for our products. The decrease was predominantly in raw materials, where we took a net charge against of 
excess and obsolete inventory of $16.6 million. The improved supply chain management and more linear inventory purchases in the fourth 
quarter ended December 29, 2007 as compared to the fourth quarter ended December 30, 2006, allowed us to decrease inventory by 
approximately $13.8 million and accounts payable by $13.9 million.  

Investing Activities  

Cash used in investing activities was $8.5 million in the year ended June 25, 2010, primarily due to the purchases of property and 
equipment of $6.3 million and the acquisition of Copan Systems, Inc. for $2.0 million.  

During the six months ended June 26, 2009, net cash used in investing activities was $15.1 million, primarily used in the acquisition of 
substantially all of the assets and certain liabilities of Legacy SGI for which we paid $42.5 million and acquired cash of $29.0 million for a net 
cash use of $13.5 million. During the period we also purchased property and equipment of $2.4 million. The cash outflows were offset by $0.7 
million of proceeds from the sale and maturities of restricted cash and cash equivalents.  

During the year ended January 3, 2009, net cash provided by investing activities was $137.4 million and consisted primarily of proceeds 
from sales and maturities of marketable securities of $165.4 million, offset by purchases of marketable securities of $26.3 million and 
purchases of property and equipment of $1.6 million. Our purchases of property and equipment in 2008 related mainly to tenant improvements 
and asset additions to our new Shanghai office. We reduced our investment in ARS from $64.6 million at December 29, 2007 to $8.7 million at 
January 3, 2009.  

During the year ended December 29, 2007, net cash used in investing activities was $32.1 million. We purchased $584.0 million of 
securities and received proceeds from sales and maturities of securities of approximately $565.8 million. We also paid $9.1 million to the 
former Terrascale shareholders for additional  
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intangible property not acquired as part of the initial acquisition of Terrascale. We purchased approximately $4.5 million for property and 
equipment primarily related to research and development projects, as well as our corporate office relocation.  

Financing Activities  

Cash provided by financing activities was $0.9 million in the year ended June 25, 2010, primarily due to proceeds from the issuance of 
stock under the employee stock purchase plan and stock options of $1.8 million, partially offset by restricted stock retired to cover taxes of $0.9 
million.  

Cash used in financing activities during the six months ended June 26, 2009 was $1.0 million, primarily for the purchase of the 
Company’s stock under its share repurchase program. The purchase of restricted stock of $0.4 million was offset by $0.4 million of cash 
generated from issuance of stock under the employee stock purchase plan.  

Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended January 3, 2009 was $0.1 million. Cash generated from financing activities 
included $1.8 million from stock option exercises and employee stock purchases, largely offset by $1.7 million of restricted stock repurchases.  

Cash provided by financing activities during the year ended December 29, 2007 was $5.5 million. Cash generated from financing 
activities included $4.5 million in proceeds from stock option exercises and employee stock purchases, and $1.6 million of excess tax benefits 
related to stock option exercises, partially offset by $0.6 million of restricted stock repurchases.  

In February 2009, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $40 million of our common stock. Under the 
program, we were able to purchase shares of common stock through open market transactions and privately negotiated purchases at prices 
deemed appropriate by management. The program was suspended in April 2009. Prior to the suspension of the share repurchase program, we 
repurchased and held in treasury 243,695 shares of outstanding common stock for a total of $1.0 million including expenses. The shares we 
repurchased are held in treasury for general corporate purposes, including issuances under employee equity incentive plans. As discussed in 
Note 25 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8, our Board of Directors authorized us to resume the share repurchase 
program on August 31, 2010.  

We expect to continue to invest in the business including working capital, capital expenditures and operating expenses. We intend to fund 
these activities with our cash reserves and cash generated from operations, if any. Increases in operating expenses may not result in an increase 
in our revenue and our anticipated revenue may not be sufficient to support these increased expenditures. We anticipate that operating expenses 
and working capital will constitute a material use of our cash resources.  

Contractual Obligations and Commitments  

The following are contractual obligations and commitments at June 25, 2010, associated with lease obligations and contractual 
commitments (in thousands):  
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     Payments due by period 

     Total    
Less than 

1 year    
1 - 3  
years    

3 - 5  
years    

More than 
 

5 years 

Operating leases     $   18,154    $   6,201    $   11,483    $       470    $       —   
Purchase obligations       16,865      14,994      1,871      —        —   

                                   

Total     $ 35,019    $ 21,195    $ 13,354    $ 470    $ —   
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As of June 25, 2010, the liability for uncertain tax positions, net of offsetting tax benefits associated with the correlative effects of state 
income taxes and interest deductions, was $8.7 million. As of June 25, 2010, the Company has accrued $13.0 million of interest and penalty 
associated with its uncertain tax positions. The Company cannot conclude on the range of cash payments that will be made within the next 
twelve months associated with its uncertain tax positions.  

Operating Leases —As of June 25, 2010, we had total outstanding commitments on non-cancelable operating leases of $18.2 million, 
$14.0 million of which relate to our domestic leases. These leases are generally for terms of five to seven years and generally provide renewal 
options for terms of three to five additional years. A significant portion of our domestic leases will expire on 2013. Our domestic leases include 
our headquarters in Fremont, CA and our manufacturing facility in Chippewa Falls, WI.  

We have total outstanding commitments of $4.2 million in our non-cancelable international operating leases. Of this total amount, $2.8 
million relate to our operating lease in the Europe, Middle East, and Africa (“EMEA”) region and $1.4 million relates to our facilities in the 
Asia Pacific (“APAC”) region. Our major facility leases in the EMEA region are generally for terms of four to nine years, and generally do not 
provide renewal options. Our major facility leases in the APAC region, except for Melbourne, Australia, are generally for terms of three to five 
years, and generally do not provide renewal options. We can renew our Melbourne, Australia lease for one additional period of five years.  

Purchase Obligations —From time to time, we issue blanket purchase orders to our contract manufacturers for the procurement of 
materials to be used for upcoming orders, particularly for those components that have long lead times. Blanket purchase orders vary in size 
depending on our projected requirements. If we do not consume these materials on a timely basis or if our relationship with one of our contract 
manufacturers was to terminate, we could experience an abnormal increase to our inventory carrying amount and related accounts payable.  

In connection with supplier agreements, we agreed to purchase certain units of inventory and non-inventory through 2011. As of June 25, 
2010, there was a remaining commitment of approximately $16.9 million, of which $15.0 million will be paid in the next 12 months.  

Other than the contractual obligations and commitments described above, we have no significant unconditional purchase obligations or 
similar instruments. We are not a guarantor of any other entities’ debt or other financial obligations.  

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements —We have issued financial guarantees to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government 
authorities for VAT and other taxes, and to various other parties to support payments in advance of future delivery on goods and services. The 
majority of our financial guarantees have terms of one year or more. The maximum potential obligation under financial guarantees at June 25, 
2010 was $4.4 million for which we have $3.9 million of assets held as collateral. The full amount of the assets held as collateral are included 
in short-term and long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets.  

Additionally, we enter into standard indemnification agreements with our customers and certain other business partners in the ordinary 
course of business. These agreements include provisions for indemnifying the customer against any claim brought by a third-party to the extent 
any such claim alleges that our product infringes a patent, copyright or trademark, or misappropriates a trade secret, of that third-party. The 
agreements generally limit the scope of the available remedies in a variety of industry-standard methods, including, but not limited to, product 
usage and geography-based limitations, a right to control the defense or settlement of any claim, and a right to replace or modify the infringing 
products to make them non-infringing. We have not incurred significant expenses related to these indemnification agreements and no material 
claims for such indemnifications were outstanding as of June 25, 2010. As a result, we believe the estimated fair value of these indemnification 
agreements, if any, to be immaterial; accordingly, no liability has been recorded with respect to such indemnifications as of June 25, 2010.  
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, 
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of 
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the 
financial statements. We periodically evaluate our material estimates and judgments based on the terms of underlying agreements, the expected 
course of development, historical experience and other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. However, actual future 
results may vary from our estimates.  

We believe that the following accounting policies are significantly affected by critical accounting estimates and that they are both highly 
important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results and require difficult management judgments and assumptions about matters that 
are inherently uncertain. Note 2 of the accompanying consolidated financial statements describes the significant accounting policies used in the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these significant accounting policies are considered to be critical accounting 
policies.  

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are as follows:  
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

Revenue Recognition .  

We enter into sales contracts which obligate the delivery of multiple products and/or services. A typical multiple-element arrangement 
includes product, third-party product, customer support services and professional services. We also sell software products as part of certain 
multiple-element arrangements. In addition, We sell certain products and services separately.  

Product revenue. We recognize revenue from sales of products, primarily hardware, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, 
shipment has occurred and title has transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable is reasonably 
assured. In customer arrangements with substantive performance obligations, revenue is recognized when formal customer acceptance is 
received, unless acceptance is deemed to be perfunctory.  

Multiple-element arrangements . Our multiple-element arrangements include products, customer support services and/or professional 
services. For arrangements which include only products and maintenance and installation services, we recognize revenue from the sale of 
products prior to the completion of services as product sales are not dependent on services to be functional. Certain multiple-element 
arrangements include software products integrated with the hardware (“hardware appliance”) and the Company provides unspecified software 
updates and enhancements to the software through its service contracts. For arrangements which include hardware appliances or arrangements 
where the undelivered element is post contract customer support (“PCS”), we have not established vendor-specific objective evidence 
(“VSOE”) of the fair value of the element. Therefore, revenue and related cost of revenue from these arrangements is deferred and recognized 
ratably over the PCS period.  
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Service revenue . Service revenue includes customer support services, primarily hardware maintenance services, and professional 
services, which include consulting services and integration services of third-party products. Revenue from extended service contracts, that is 
not subject to deferral under our revenue recognition policy discussed above and are expressly priced separately from the hardware, is 
recognized ratably over the contract term, generally one to three years. Professional services are offered under hourly or fixed fee-based 
contracts or as part of multiple-element arrangements. Professional services revenue is recognized as services are performed.  

Share-Based Compensation. We use the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation arrangements, including grants 
of employee stock awards and purchases under an employee stock purchase plan. The fair values of our unvested stock awards are calculated 
based on the fair value of our common stock at the dates of grant, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which requires the input of 
subjective assumptions. These assumptions include estimating the length of time employees will retain their vested stock awards before 
exercising them, the estimated volatility of our common stock over the expected term and the number of awards that will ultimately not vest 
(i.e. forfeitures). The estimated fair value of stock awards is expensed on a straight-line basis over the expected term of the grant. 
Compensation expense for purchases under the employee stock purchase plan is recognized based on the estimated fair value of the common 
stock during each offering period and the percentage of the purchase discount. Changes to any of these assumptions can have a significant 
effect on our reported share-based compensation expense.  

Restructuring Reserve. In recent years, we have recorded accruals in connection with our restructuring programs. These accruals include 
estimates of employee separation costs, fixed assets write-offs and the settlements of contractual obligations, including lease terminations 
resulting from our actions. Accruals associated with employee termination costs are accrued when it is determined that a liability has been 
incurred, which is generally when individuals have been notified of their termination dates and expected severance payments. Fixed asset 
write-offs primarily consist of equipment and furniture associated with lease terminations, and are based on an estimate of the amounts and 
timing of future cash flows related to the expected future remaining use and ultimate sale or disposal of the equipment and furniture. Accruals 
associated with vacated facilities are accrued when we have vacated the premises. Our estimates may need to be adjusted upon the occurrence 
of future events, which include, but are not limited to, changes in the estimated time to enter into a sublease, the sublease terms and the 
sublease rates. Due to the extended contractual obligations of certain of these leases and the inherent volatility of the commercial real estate 
markets, future adjustments to these vacated facilities accruals could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position.  

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We provide an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based on our assessment of the 
collectability of specific customer accounts and an analysis of the remaining accounts receivable. We also analyze historical bad debts, 
customer concentrations, customer credit worthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms, when evaluating the 
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Credit evaluations are undertaken for all major sale transactions before shipment is 
authorized. Provisions are made based upon a specific review of all significant outstanding invoices. For those invoices not specifically 
reviewed, provisions are provided at differing rates, based upon the factors discussed above. In the future, if our actual collections differ 
significantly from our estimates it may result in additional provisions for doubtful accounts and our future results of operations and financial 
position could be materially affected.  

Inventory Valuation. We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. We write 
down obsolete inventory or inventory in excess of our estimated usage to its estimated market value less cost to sell, if less than its cost. 
Inherent in our estimates of market value in determining inventory valuation are estimates related to future demand and technological 
obsolescence of our products. Any significant unanticipated changes in demand or technological developments could have a significant impact 
on the value of our inventories and our future results of operations and financial position could be materially affected.  
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Fair Value Measurements and Impairments. Our available-for-sale investments, consisting of ARS, are subject to periodic impairment 
review. Investments are considered to be impaired when a decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary. The valuation model used 
to estimate the fair value of our ARS include various assumptions, including assessment of the underlying structure of each security, credit 
rating, expected cash flows, discount rates and overall capital market liquidity. These assumptions, assessments and the interpretations of 
relevant market data are subject to uncertainties and are difficult to predict and require significant judgment. There is no assurance as to when 
the market for ARS will stabilize and the fair value of our ARS could change significantly based on market conditions and continued 
uncertainties in the credit markets. If these uncertainties continue or our ARS experience credit rating downgrades, we may incur additional 
temporary impairments or other-than-temporary impairments and our future results of operations and financial position could be materially 
affected.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. We assess the carrying values of long-lived assets, including our intangible assets, for possible 
impairment when we identify events or when we believe that circumstances may have changed to indicate that the carrying amount of a long-
lived asset may not be recoverable. Such events or changes in circumstances may include the significant under-performance relative to 
historical or projected future operating results, significant changes in the strategy for our overall business, discontinuation of a product or 
product line, a sudden or consistent decline in the forecast for a product, changes in technology or in the way an asset is being used, or an 
adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate. An impairment loss would be recognized when the sum of the estimated future cash 
flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition is less than its carrying amount. Such impairment loss would be 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value. Cash flow assumptions used in calculating the fair value 
are based on historical and forecasted revenue, operating costs, and other relevant factors. This analysis requires judgment with respect to many 
factors, including future cash flows, changes in technology, the continued success of product lines and future volume and revenue and expense 
growth rates. If our estimate of future operating results changes, or if there are changes to other assumptions, the estimate of the fair value of 
our long-lived assets could change significantly. Such change could result in impairment charges in future periods, which could have a 
significant negative impact to our future results of operations and financial position.  

Warranty Reserve. We provide for estimated cost to warrant our products against defects in materials and workmanship at the time 
revenue is recognized. We net any cost recoveries from warranties offered to us by our suppliers against the warranty expense. Warranty costs 
include labor to repair faulty systems and replacement parts for defective items, as well as other costs incidental to warranty repairs. We 
estimate our warranty obligation based on factors such as product life cycle analysis and historical experience, and our estimate is affected by 
data such as product failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Our standard warranty 
ranges from one to three years. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions 
to the estimated warranty liability would be required which could have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position.  

Accounting for Income Taxes. The determination of our tax provision is subject to judgments and estimates. The carrying value of our 
net deferred tax assets, which is comprised primarily of future tax deductions, net operating loss carryovers and tax credit carryovers, is subject 
to significant judgment as to whether it is more likely than not our deferred tax assets will be realized. In determining whether the realization of 
these deferred tax assets may be impaired, we evaluate both positive and negative evidence. As of June 25, 2010, we have recorded a valuation 
allowance against the majority of our net deferred tax assets. Based on all available evidence, on a jurisdictional basis, including our historical 
operating results, and the uncertainty of predicting our future income, the valuation allowance reduces our deferred tax assets to an amount that 
is more likely than not to be realized. The valuation allowance is attributable to U.S. federal, state and certain foreign deferred tax assets 
primarily consisting of net operating loss carryovers, tax credit carryovers, accrued expenses, and other temporary differences. We have 
determined that it is more likely than not that certain foreign deferred tax assets will more likely than not be realized, and as a result, released 
valuation allowance on the deferred tax assets of certain foreign subsidiaries.  
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We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for 
recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on 
audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step requires us to estimate and measure the tax benefit 
as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing authorities. We reevaluate these 
uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis, based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax 
law, effectively settled issues under audit, new audit activity and lapses in the statutes of limitations on assessment. Such a change in 
recognition or measurement would result in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision in the period that such 
event occurs and can have a significant effect on our results of operations and financial position.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Report for a description of recent accounting 
pronouncements, including our expected adoption dates and estimated effects on our results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.  
   

61  



Table of Contents  

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  

In the normal course of business, our financial position is routinely subject to a variety of risks, including market risk for investments 
associated with interest rate movements, liquidity risks, credit risks, and foreign exchange market risk associated with currency rate movements 
on non-U.S. dollar denominated assets and liabilities. We regularly assess these risks and have established policies and business practices to 
protect against the adverse effects of these and other potential exposures. As a result, we do not anticipate material losses in these areas.  

Investment Risk  

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing the income we receive from our investments 
without significantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we maintain our portfolio of cash, cash equivalents, and investments in high 
credit quality, readily liquid securities, primarily U.S. treasuries and money market funds. Our exposure to market risks for changes in interest 
rates relates primarily to our investment portfolio. As of June 25, 2010, our cash and cash equivalents of $129.3 million consisted primarily of 
cash, money market funds, and U.S. Treasury notes. Due to the short term nature of our investment portfolio, we believe that the exposure of 
our principal to interest rate risk is minimal, although our future interest income is subject to reinvestment risk.  

There has been significant deterioration and instability in the financial markets since 2008. The extraordinary disruption and readjustment 
in the financial markets exposes us to additional investment risk. The value and liquidity of the securities in which we invest could deteriorate 
rapidly and the issuers of such securities could be subject to credit rating downgrades. In light of the current market conditions and these 
additional risks, we actively monitor market conditions and developments specific to the securities and security classes in which we invest. We 
believe that we take a conservative approach to investing our funds in that we invest only in highly-rated securities with relatively short 
maturities and do not invest in securities we believe involve a higher degree of risk. While we believe we take prudent measures to mitigate 
investment related risks, such risks cannot be fully eliminated as there are circumstances outside of our control. We currently believe that the 
current credit market difficulties do not have a material impact on our investment portfolio. However, future degradation in credit market 
conditions could have a material adverse affect on our financial position.  

At June 25, 2010, we held ARS with a fair value of $7.5 million and amortized cost of $8.8 million as compared to a fair value of $7.4 
million and amortized cost of $9.1 million at June 26, 2009. ARS are securities that are structured with short-term interest rate reset dates of 
generally less than 90 days but with contractual maturities that can be well in excess of ten years. At the end of each reset period, which occurs 
every seven to 35 days, investors can sell or continue to hold the securities at par subject to a successful interest rate reset. In the first and 
second quarters of fiscal year 2008, certain ARS failed auction due to sell orders exceeding buy orders. Our ARS consist of investments that 
are backed by pools of student loans, the majority of which are ultimately guaranteed by the Department of Education. Based on our discounted 
cash flow model, we have recorded a temporary impairment within accumulated other comprehensive loss of approximately $1.3 million at 
June 25, 2010 related to the $8.8 million cost of these ARS. We currently have the intent and ability to hold these securities until the value of 
such securities recovers. The funds associated with failed auctions will not be accessible until a successful auction occurs, a buyer is found 
outside of the auction process, the underlying securities have matured or the securities are recalled by the issuer. Given the recent disruptions in 
the credit markets and the fact that the liquidity for these types of securities remains uncertain, we have classified all of these ARS as long-term 
investments in our consolidated balance sheets, as our ability to liquidate such securities in the next twelve months is uncertain.  
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Foreign Exchange Risk  

Prior to the May 8, 2009 acquisition of Legacy SGI, we did not make material sales or have material purchase obligations outside of the 
United States. As of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, foreign currency cash accounts totaled $28.6 million and $18.0 million, respectively 
(primarily in Euros, Canadian dollars, Australian dollars and British pounds).  

With the acquisition of Legacy SGI and its multinational operations, we have increased foreign currency risks associated with cash and 
cash equivalents, investments, receivables, and payables denominated in foreign currencies. Fluctuations in exchange rates will result in foreign 
exchange gains and losses on these foreign currency assets and liabilities, which are included in other income, net in our consolidated 
statements of operations. Our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk relates to sales commitments, anticipated sales, purchases and 
other expenses, and assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. For most currencies, we are a net receiver of the foreign currency 
and are adversely affected by a stronger U.S. dollar relative to the foreign currency.  

At June 25, 2010, we had no foreign currency forward contracts or option contracts.  

Sensitivity Analysis  

For purposes of specific risk analysis, we use a sensitivity analysis to determine the impact that market risk exposures may have on the 
fair values of financial instruments. The financial instruments included in the sensitivity analysis consist of all of our cash, cash equivalents, 
and long-term investments.  

To perform the sensitivity analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values from the impact of hypothetical changes in interest rates and 
foreign currency exchange rates on market sensitive instruments. Given the short term nature of our cash and cash equivalents, a sensitivity 
analysis was not performed as the risk of loss in fair value was deemed immaterial.  

For the long-term investment in ARS, the sensitivity of fair value was tested assuming either a 100 basis point increase or a 100 basis 
point decrease in the market-required return, holding the interest income from the ARS constant. A full 1% increase in required return would 
reduce the long term investments by $0.2 million, or 2.9%. A full 1% decrease in required return would increase the long term investments by 
$0.2 million, or 3.0%.  

For foreign currency exchange rate risk, a 10% increase or decrease of foreign currency exchange rates against the U.S. dollar with all 
other variables held constant would have resulted in a $2.9 million change in the value of our financial instruments.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of  
Silicon Graphics International Corp.  
Fremont, California  

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Silicon Graphics International Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) 
as of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years 
ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007 and the six-month period ended June 26, 2009. Our audits also included the 
financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on 
our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Silicon Graphics 
International Corp. and subsidiaries at June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years 
ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007 and the six-month period ended June 26, 2009, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in 
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein. 

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 25, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated September 8, 2010 
expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, California  
September 8, 2010  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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     Year Ended     
Six  Months  

Ended  
June 26, 2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 
2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Revenue     $ 403,717      $ 247,430      $ 350,684      $ 102,777    
Cost of revenue       314,128        217,992        303,440        95,000    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Gross profit       89,589        29,438        47,244        7,777    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:           

Research and development       56,865        14,864        13,802        10,729    
Sales and marketing       64,831        23,412        32,461        18,236    
General and administrative       52,594        24,526        35,801        14,013    
Restructuring       5,213        685        —          1,270   
Acquisition-related       (3,264 )      —          —          6,070    
Impairment of long-lived assets       —          —          2,820        —      
Gain from settlement agreement       —          —          —          (5,000 )  
Gain from acquisition       —          —          —          (19,831 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       176,239        63,487        84,884        25,487    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Loss from operations       (86,650 )      (34,049 )      (37,640 )      (17,710 )  
Total other income (expense):           

Interest income, net       436        4,106        8,227        176    
Other income (expense), net       (7,088 )      (968 )      364        1,101    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total other income (expense)       (6,652 )      3,138        8,591        1,277    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes       (93,302 )      (30,911 )      (29,049 )      (16,433 )  
Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations       (4,441 )      376        12,531        (2,242 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net loss from continuing operations       (88,861 )      (31,287 )      (41,580 )      (14,191 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Discontinued operations (Note 19):           

Income (loss) from discontinued operations       409        (25,896 )      (33,941 )      (20 )  
Income tax benefit       —          (2,955 )      (5,964 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax       409        (22,941 )      (27,977 )      (20 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Net loss     $ (88,452 )    $ (54,228 )    $ (69,557 )    $ (14,211 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Net income (loss) per share, basic and diluted:           

Continuing operations     $ (2.95 )    $ (1.06 )    $ (1.45 )    $ (0.48 )  
Discontinued operations       0.01        (0.77 )      (0.97 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Basic and diluted net loss per share     $ (2.94 )    $ (1.83 )    $ (2.42 )    $ (0.48 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share       30,130        29,583        28,786        29,798    
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
(In thousands, except per share amounts)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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June 25,  

2010     
June 26,  

2009   

ASSETS      

Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 129,343      $ 128,714    
Current portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents       830        1,119    
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,646 and $859 as of June 25, 2010 

and June 26, 2009, respectively       79,464        64,810    
Inventories       89,929        117,790    
Deferred cost of revenue       45,255        5,505    
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       15,967        25,757    

       
  

      
  

Total current assets       360,788        343,695    
Non-current portion of restricted cash and cash equivalents       3,102        2,294    
Long-term investments       7,475        7,416    
Property and equipment, net       28,172        33,124    
Intangible assets, net       16,223        21,521    
Non-current portion of deferred cost of revenue       49,109        339    
Other assets       32,343        33,247    

       
  

      
  

Total assets     $ 497,212      $ 441,636    
       

  

      

  

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY      

Current liabilities:       

Accounts payable     $ 49,204      $ 52,618    
Accrued compensation       21,885        20,855    
Other current liabilities       27,608        31,880    
Current portion of deferred revenue       137,596        69,655    

       
  

      
  

Total current liabilities       236,293        175,008    
Non-current portion of deferred revenue       91,989        14,635    
Long-term income taxes payable       21,715        18,948    
Other non-current liabilities       12,286        14,946    

       
  

      
  

Total liabilities       362,283        223,537    
Commitments and contingencies (Note 23)       

Stockholders’  equity:       

Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share; 12,000 shares authorized; none outstanding       —          —      
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share; 120,000 shares authorized; 30,709 shares issued at 

June 25, 2010; 30,171 shares issued at June 26, 2009       31        30    
Additional paid-in capital       459,339        453,730    
Treasury stock, at cost (244 shares at June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009)       (1,022 )      (1,022 )  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss       (1,903 )      (1,575 )  
Accumulated deficit       (321,516 )      (233,064 )  

       
  

      
  

Total stockholders’  equity       134,929        218,099    
       

  
      

  

Total liabilities and stockholders’  equity     $ 497,212      $ 441,636    
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
(In thousands, except share amounts)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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    Common Stock   Treasury Stock     Additional 
 

Paid-in  
Capital 

  
Accumulated  

Other  
Comprehensive 

 
Income (Loss)   

  
Accumulated 

 
Deficit   

  Total  
Stockholders’

 
Equity       Shares   Amount   Shares     Amount           

Balance at December 30, 2006    28,230,785   $ 28   —        $ —        $ 411,118   $ (3 )    $ (95,068 )    $ 316,075    
Net loss    —       —     —          —          —       —          (69,557 )      (69,557 )  
Unrealized gain on short-term investments    —       —     —          —          —       16        —          16    
Cumulative translation adjustment    —       —     —          —          —       (24 )      —          (24 )  

                    
  

Total comprehensive loss                    (69,565 )  
                    

  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock options and 
employee stock purchase plan, net of taxes    1,062,012     1   —          —          3,907     —          —          3,908    

Restricted common stock grants    232,764     —     —          —          —       —          —          —      
Income tax benefit relating to stock option exercises    —       —     —          —          1,839     —          —          1,839    
Stock-based compensation in connection with employee 

stock option plans and other    —       —     —          —          23,861     —          —          23,861    
              

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  

Balance at December 29, 2007    29,525,561   $ 29   —        $ —        $ 440,725   $ (11 )    $ (164,625 )    $ 276,118    
Net loss    —       —     —          —          —       —          (54,228 )      (54,228 )  
Unrealized loss on short-term investments    —       —     —          —          —       (442 )      —          (442 )  
Cumulative translation adjustment    —       —     —          —          —       176        —          176    

                    
  

Total comprehensive loss                    (54,494 )  
                    

  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock options and 
employee stock purchase plan, net of taxes    225,100     1   —          —          146     —          —          147    

Restricted common stock grants    204,683     —     —          —          —       —          —          —      
Stock-based compensation in connection with employee 

stock option plans and other    —       —     —          —          9,718     —          —          9,718    
              

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  

Balance at January 03, 2009    29,955,344   $ 30   —        $ —        $ 450,589   $ (277 )    $ (218,853 )    $ 231,489    
Net loss    —       —     —          —          —       —          (14,211 )      (14,211 )  
Unrealized loss on short-term investments    —       —     —          —          —       (1,193 )      —          (1,193 )  
Unrecognized gain on pension assets    —       —     —          —          —       10        —          10    
Cumulative translation adjustment    —       —     —          —          —       (115 )      —          (115 )  

                    
  

Total comprehensive loss                    (15,509 )  
                    

  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock options and 
employee stock purchase plan, net of taxes    5,049     —     —          —          37     —          —          37    

Repurchase of treasury stock    —       —     (243,695 )      (1,022 )      —       —          —          (1,022 )  
Restricted common stock grants    210,164     —           —       —          —          —      
Stock-based compensation in connection with employee 

stock option plans and other    —       —     —          —          3,104     —          —          3,104    
              

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  

Balance at June 26, 2009    30,170,557   $ 30   (243,695 )    $ (1,022 )    $ 453,730   $ (1,575 )    $ (233,064 )    $ 218,099    
Net loss    —       —     —          —          —       —          (88,452 )      (88,452 )  
Unrealized gain on short-term investments    —       —     —          —          —       230        —          230    
Unrecognized loss on pension assets    —       —     —          —          —       (558 )      —          (558 )  

                    
  

Total comprehensive loss    —       —     —          —          —       —          —          (88,780 )  
                    

  

Issuance of common stock under employee stock options and 
employee stock purchase plan, net of taxes    391,676     1   —          —          931     —          —          932    

Restricted common stock grants    146,835     —     —          —          —       —          —          —      
Stock-based compensation in connection with employee 

stock option plans and other    —       —     —          —          4,678     —          —          4,678    
              

  
      

  
            

  
      

  
      

  

Balance at June 25, 2010    30,709,068   $ 31   (243,695 )    $ (1,022 )    $ 459,339   $ (1,903 )    $ (321,516 )    $ 134,929    
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
(In thousands)  

   

See accompanying notes.  
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    Year Ended     

Six Months  
Ended  

June 26, 2009       

June 25, 

 
2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:          

Net loss    $ (88,452 )    $ (54,228 )    $ (69,557 )    $ (14,211 )  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:          

Depreciation and amortization      18,358        5,647        7,473        3,251    
Gain on acquisition      —          —          —          (19,831 )  
Share-based compensation      4,721        9,587        23,235        3,104    
Impairment of long-lived assets      —          17,519        23,872        2,520    
Non-cash restructuring expense      —          —          —          1,695    
Provision for doubtful accounts      852        36        105        389    
Deferred income taxes      (1,039 )      (1,503 )      14,495        (2,175 )  
Gain from settlement agreement      —          —          —          (5,000 )  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment      915        280        73        —      
Impairment of property and equipment      —          —          107        —      
Excess tax benefit of stock options exercised      —          —          (1,639 )      —      
Impairment of cost method investment      —          350        —          —      
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:          

Accounts receivable      (15,506 )      22,139        54,008        (9,935 )  
Inventories      28,268        168        15,042        2,778    
Deferred cost of revenue      (88,520 )      (10,529 )      1,910        7,268    
Prepaid expenses and other assets      7,742        14,128        (5,919 )      (6,896 )  
Other assets      1,176        837        —          (74 )  
Accounts payable      (4,202 )      (26,153 )      (13,853 )      15,554    
Accrued compensation      1,030        —          —          773    
Sales tax payable      —          (2,136 )      —          —      
Other current liabilities      (3,575 )      (3,104 )      (2,563 )      4,716    
Deferred revenue      145,295        11,149        (1,106 )      (11,402 )  
Income taxes payable      (1,039 )      114        392        313    
Other liabilities      2,173        —          —          149    

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities      8,197        (15,699 )      46,075        (27,014 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:          
Purchases of property and equipment      (6,273 )      (1,593 )      (4,500 )      (2,364 )  
Proceeds from sales and maturities of restricted cash and cash equivalents      (519 )      —          —          674    
Purchases of marketable securities      —          (26,278 )     (584,009 )      —      
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments      275        165,387       565,836        55    
Cash used in acquisition, net of cash acquired      (1,983 )      —          (350 )      (13,462 )  
Expenditures for intangibles      —          (83 )      (9,122 )      —      

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities      (8,500 )      137,433        (32,145 )      (15,097 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:          
Repurchase of restricted stock      (857 )      (1,681 )      (617 )      (376 )  
Purchase of treasury stock      —          —          —          (1,022 )  
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options      887        536        2,682        8    
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan      902        1,293        1,843        376    
Excess tax benefit of stock options exercised      —          —          1,639        —      

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities      932        148        5,547        (1,014 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents      —          175        (26 )      (115 )  
      

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents      629        122,057        19,451        (43,240 )  
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period      128,714        49,897        30,446        171,954    

      
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Cash and cash equivalents—end of period    $ 129,343      $ 171,954      $ 49,897      $ 128,714    
      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION          
Income taxes paid (refunded)    $ (4,206 )    $ 178      $ (68 )    $ (386 )  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES          
Property and equipment purchases in accounts payable    $ 788      $ —        $ —        $ (41 )  

      

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments    $ 230      $ (442 )    $ 16      $ (1,193 )  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS  

Silicon Graphics International Corp. (“SGI” or the “Company”) was originally incorporated as Rackable Corporation which later changed 
its name to Rackable Systems, Inc. (“Rackable Systems” or “Legacy Rackable”) prior to changing its name to SGI. Rackable Systems was 
incorporated in the state of Delaware in December 2002. On May 8, 2009, Rackable Systems completed the acquisition of substantially all of 
the assets, excluding certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business, and assumed certain liabilities of Silicon Graphics, Inc. (“Legacy SGI”) 
(see Note 3). This acquisition was consummated pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement dated March 31, 2009, as amended on 
April 30, 2009, which was approved by the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York for Silicon Graphics, Inc. 
Effective May 18, 2009, Rackable Systems changed its name to Silicon Graphics International Corp.  

The Company’s headquarters is located in Fremont, California. Following the acquisition of Legacy SGI assets, the Company now 
operates in 26 countries, with its primary manufacturing facilities located in Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin. The principal business of the 
Company has been and continues to be the design, manufacture and implementation of highly scalable compute servers and high-capacity 
storage systems. Following the acquisition of Legacy SGI, the Company is also a leader in high-performance computing and data management. 
The Legacy SGI acquisition adds a broad line of mid-range to high-end computing servers, data storage and data center technologies, and 
provides customer support and professional services related to these products. The Company’s products are used by the scientific, technical and 
business communities to solve challenging data intensive computing, data management and visualization problems. The vertical markets we 
serve include defense and strategic systems, weather and climate, physical sciences, life sciences, energy (including oil and gas), aerospace and 
automotive, media and entertainment, semiconductor design, manufacturing, financial services, data centers, and business intelligence and data 
analytics.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Fiscal Year-End. On June 19, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a change in the Company’s fiscal year end from the 
Saturday closest to December 31 of each year to the last Friday in June of each year. As a result of this change, the Company had a six month 
transition period beginning on January 4, 2009 and ending on June 26, 2009, consisting of 25 weeks. Accordingly, the Company’s fiscal year 
2010 began on June 27, 2009 and ended on June 25, 2010.  

Included in this report are the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, the consolidated statements 
of operations, statements of stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the 52-week fiscal year ended June 25, 2010 (“2010”), 53-week fiscal year 
ended January 3, 2009 (“2008”), and 52-week fiscal year ended December 29, 2007 (“2007”), and the 25-week six month transition period 
ended June 26, 2009.  

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries. All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated.  

Estimates and Assumptions. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America (“US GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses as presented in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable. Although these estimates are 
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions that may impact the Company in the future, actual results may be 
different from the estimates. The Company’s critical accounting policies are those  
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that affect the Company’s financial statements materially and involve difficult, subjective or complex judgments by management and include 
revenue recognition, share-based compensation, restructuring reserve, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory valuation, impairment of 
long-lived assets, fair value measurements and impairments, warranty reserve, and accounting for income taxes.  

Discontinued Operations. In October 2008, the Company committed to a formal plan to abandon the Rapidscale product line 
(“Rapidscale”). The Company has accounted for the Rapidscale product line as a discontinued operation. The results of operations of the 
Rapidscale product line have been reclassified and presented as discontinued operations, net of tax, for all periods presented. The cash flows of 
the Rapidscale product line have not been reported separately within the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows based upon 
materiality (see Note 19).  

Rapidscale was accounted for as discontinued operations and therefore, the results of operations and cash flows have been removed from 
the company’s results of continuing operations for the year ended December 29, 2007.  

Revenue Recognition . The Company enters into sales contracts which obligate the delivery of multiple products and/or services. A 
typical multiple-element arrangement includes product, third-party product, customer support services and professional services. The Company 
also sells software products as part of certain multiple-element arrangements. In addition, the Company sells certain products and services 
separately.  

Product revenue. The Company recognizes revenue from sales of products, primarily hardware, when persuasive evidence of an 
arrangement exists, shipment has occurred and title has transferred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting 
receivable is reasonably assured. In customer arrangements with substantive performance obligations, revenue is recognized when formal 
customer acceptance is received, unless acceptance is deemed to be perfunctory.  

Multiple-element arrangements . The Company’s multiple-element arrangements include products, customer support services and/or 
professional services. For arrangements which do not include hardware appliances and where services are included, the Company recognizes 
revenue from the sale of products prior to the completion of services as product sales are not dependent on services to be functional. Certain 
multiple-element arrangements include software products integrated with the hardware (“hardware appliance”) and the Company provides 
unspecified software updates and enhancements to the software though its service contracts. For arrangements which include hardware 
appliances or arrangements where the undelivered element is post contract customer support (“PCS”), the Company has not established vendor-
specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of the fair value of the element. Therefore, revenue and related cost of revenue from these arrangements 
is deferred and recognized ratably over the PCS period.  

Service revenue . Service revenue includes customer support services, primarily hardware maintenance services, and professional 
services, which include consulting services and integration services of third-party products. Revenue from extended service contracts, that is 
not subject to deferral under the Company’s revenue recognition policy above and are expressly priced separately from the hardware, is 
recognized ratably over the contract term, generally one to three years. Professional services are offered under hourly or fixed fee-based 
contracts or as part of multiple-element arrangements. Professional services revenue is recognized as services are performed.  

Shipping and Handling Costs. Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of cost of revenue. Customer payments of 
shipping and handling costs are recorded as revenue.  
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Research and Development. Costs related to research, design and development of Company products are charged to research and 
development expense as incurred. Software development costs are required to be capitalized when a product’s technological feasibility has 
been established through the date the product is available for general release to customers. The Company has not capitalized any software 
development costs, as technological feasibility is generally not established until a working model is completed, at which time substantially all 
development is complete.  

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation arrangements. Stock-
based compensation arrangements currently include stock options granted, restricted shares issued (“RSAs”), restricted stock unit awards 
granted (“RSUs”) and purchases of common stock by the Company’s employees under the employee stock purchase plan. The fair values of 
stock options, RSAs, RSUs and employee stock purchase plan awards are estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The 
estimated fair value of stock options, RSAs and RSUs is expensed on a straight-line basis over the expected term of the grant. Compensation 
expense for purchases under the employee stock purchase plan is recognized based on the estimated fair value of the common stock during 
each offering period and the percentage of the purchase discount.  

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options and RSUs has been reduced for estimated forfeitures so that compensation expense 
is based on options and RSUs ultimately expected to vest. The Company’s estimated annual forfeiture rates for stock options and RSUs are 
based on its historical forfeiture experience.  

Restructuring Expense. The Company recognizes restructuring expense resulting from reduction in headcount, excess manufacturing or 
administrative facilities that the Company chooses to close, or consolidate, and from other exit activities. In connection with exit activities, the 
Company records restructuring charges for employee termination costs, long-lived asset impairments, costs related to leased facilities to be 
abandoned or subleased, and other exit-related costs. These charges are incurred pursuant to formal plans developed and approved by 
management. The recognition of restructuring expense requires management to make judgments and estimates regarding the nature, timing, and 
amount of costs associated with the planned exit activity, including estimating sublease income and the fair value, less selling costs, of property 
and equipment to be disposed of. Estimates of future liabilities may change, requiring the Company to record additional restructuring expense 
or to reduce the amount of liabilities previously recorded. At the end of each reporting period, the Company evaluates the remaining accrued 
balances to ensure their adequacy, that no excess accruals are retained and that the utilization of the provisions is for the intended purpose in 
accordance with developed exit plans. In the event circumstances change and the provision is no longer required, the provision is reversed.  

Foreign Currency Transactions. The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Accordingly, all 
monetary assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are re-measured into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the reporting date, 
nonmonetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates, and revenue and expenses are translated at average exchange rates in effect 
during each reporting period. Accordingly, transaction gains and losses are included as a component of other income (expense), net in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  

Comprehensive Loss. Comprehensive loss consists of two components, net loss and other comprehensive loss. Other comprehensive loss 
refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting principles are recorded as an element of shareholders’ 
equity but are excluded from net income. The Company’s other comprehensive loss consists of unrealized gains and losses on investments 
categorized as available-for-sale, and unrecognized loss related to defined benefit pension plans. Prior to the acquisition of Legacy SGI, foreign 
currency translation adjustments from those subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as the functional currency was also included in other 
comprehensive loss.  
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company measures its financial instruments in its financial statements at fair value or 
amounts that approximate fair value. The Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when 
developing fair value measurements. When available, the Company uses quoted market prices to measure fair value. If market prices are not 
available, fair value measurement is based upon models that use primarily market-based or independently-sourced market parameters. If market 
observable inputs for model-based valuation techniques are not available, the Company makes judgments about assumptions market 
participants would use in estimating the fair value of the financial instrument. Carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts 
receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature and liquidity of these financial 
instruments.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents . The Company classifies highly liquid investments with remaining contractual maturity at date of purchase 
of three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds and U.S. treasuries. Due to the short-
term nature and liquidity of these financial instruments, the carrying values of these assets approximate fair value.  

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents. S hort-term and long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash deposits 
with banks. The cash deposits are pledged as collateral for various guarantees issued to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to 
government authorities for value-added tax (“VAT”) and other taxes, and certain vendors to support payments in advance of delivery of goods 
and services. The deposits are classified as short-term or long-term depending on the nature of the period of guarantee.  

Accounts Receivable. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Accounts receivable have been 
reduced by an estimated allowance for doubtful accounts, which is management’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in 
existing accounts receivable. Among other factors, management determines the allowance based on customer specific experience and the aging 
of the receivables.  

Concentration of Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist 
primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, long-term investments, and accounts receivable. The Company 
maintains cash and cash equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions. The Company derives a significant portion of its revenue 
from a large number of individual customers spread globally. The Company also derives revenue from several large customers. If the financial 
condition or results of operations of any one of the large customers deteriorates substantially, the Company’s operating results could be 
adversely affected. To reduce credit risk, management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the financial condition of significant customers. 
The Company generally does not require collateral and maintains reserves for probable credit losses on customer accounts when considered 
necessary.  

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. The 
Company assesses the value of inventory on a quarterly basis based upon estimates about future demand and actual usage. To the extent that 
the Company determines that it is holding excess or obsolete inventory, it writes down the value of its inventory to its net realizable value. 
Such write-downs are reflected in cost of revenue. If the inventory value is written down to its net realizable value and subsequently there is an 
increased demand for the inventory at a higher value, the increased value of the inventory is not realized until the inventory is sold either as a 
component of a system or as separate inventory.  

In addition, the Company records a liability for firm, noncancelable, and unconditional purchase commitments with contract 
manufacturers and suppliers for quantities in excess of future demand forecasts consistent with our valuation of excess and obsolete inventory.  
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The Company maintains a long-term service inventory of parts to support maintenance arrangements. The long-term service inventory is 
valued based on assumptions about product life cycles, historical usage, current production status and installed base, and is periodically tested 
for impairment. The long-term service inventory is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Sales and Value Added Taxes. The Company collects various types of taxes from its customers that are assessed by governmental 
authorities, which are imposed on and concurrent with revenue-producing transactions. Such taxes are recorded on a net basis and are not 
included in revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  

Investments. The Company classifies its investments as available-for-sale at the time of purchase. The Company’s investments include 
auction rate securities (“ARS”). ARS are structured with short-term interest rate reset dates, generally less than ninety days, but with 
contractual maturities that can be well in excess of ten years.  

Investments are reported at fair value with the related unrealized gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Realized gains or losses on the sale of investments are determined using the specific-
identification method. The Company evaluates its investments periodically for other-than-temporary impairments by reviewing factors such as 
the length of time and extent to which fair value has been below amortized cost, the financial condition of the issuer and the Company’s intent 
and ability to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient for anticipated recovery in fair value. The Company records an impairment 
charge in its consolidated statement of operations to the extent the carrying value of available-for-sale securities exceeds the estimated fair 
market value of the securities and the decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary.  

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Equipment and 
capitalized software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally two to seven years. Buildings are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life, generally 30 to 32 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the 
straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, or the original lease term. When assets are retired or 
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the Company’s accounts and the resulting gain 
or loss is reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.  

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and significant improvements and betterments that substantially enhance the 
life of an asset are capitalized.  

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets consist of customer relationships and backlog, purchased technology, trademarks and trade names, 
and in-process research and development costs, acquired in business combinations. Intangible assets are carried at cost, less accumulated 
amortization. Amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally one to 
five years, except for the customer backlog intangible asset, which is amortized as acceptance is received for a particular customer order, 
reflecting the use of the asset.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets . The Company reviews the carrying values of long-lived assets for indicators of impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is 
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the 
assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount 
of the assets exceeds their fair value, which is typically calculated using discounted expected future cash flows utilizing a discount rate.  
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Equity Investments. The cost-method is used to account for equity investments in companies in which the Company holds less than a 20 
percent voting interest, does not exercise significant influence, and the related securities do not have a quoted market price. The Company tests 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an investment may not be recoverable.  

Warranty Reserve . The warranty period for the Company’s products is generally one to three years. Estimated future warranty costs are 
expensed as a cost of revenues when revenue is recognized. The warranty accrual is based upon historical experience and product life and is 
affected by actual product failure rates, material usage, and service delivery costs incurred in correcting the product failure. The Company 
periodically assesses the adequacy of the warranty reserve and adjusts the amount as considered necessary. The short-term portion of the 
warranty reserve is included in other current liabilities and the long-term portion of the warranty reserve is recorded in non-current liabilities on 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Deferred Revenue and Deferred Cost of Revenue. Deferred revenue is primarily comprised of revenue deferred for arrangements which 
include hardware appliances or arrangements where the undelivered element is PCS. Deferred revenue is recorded when products or services 
provided are invoiced prior to completion of the related performance obligations and is recognized as revenue ratably over the PCS period. 
Deferred cost of revenue primarily consists of product costs related to revenue deferred in accordance with the Company’s revenue recognition 
policy. Deferred revenue and associated deferred cost of revenue, expected to be realized within one year are classified as current liabilities and 
current assets, respectively, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

Employee Benefit Plan. The Company recognizes the underfunded or overfunded status of a defined benefit pension or postretirement 
plan as an asset or liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the funded status are recognized through accumulated 
other comprehensive income, a component of stockholder’s equity, in the year in which the changes occur.  

Income Taxes. The Company computes income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred income taxes are 
provided for temporary differences between financial reporting basis and tax basis of assets and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit 
carry forwards. A valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards are expected to be recovered 
or settled.  

The Company is subject to audits and examinations of tax returns by tax authorities in various jurisdictions, including the Internal 
Revenue Service. The Company regularly assesses the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the 
adequacy of the provision for income taxes.  

Recently Issued Accounting Standards .  

In September 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (“FASB”) amended the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) as 
summarized in Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-14, Software (Topic 985): Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software 
Elements , and ASU 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements . Under ASU 2009-14, ASC 
Topic 985 has been amended to remove from the scope of industry specific revenue accounting guidance for software and  
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software related transactions, tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver 
the product’s essential functionality. Under ASU 2009-13, ASC Topic 605 has been amended (1) to provide updated guidance on whether 
multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated, and the consideration allocated; (2) to require an entity 
to allocate revenue in an arrangement using estimated selling prices of deliverables if a vendor does not have vendor-specific objective 
evidence or third-party evidence of selling price; and (3) to eliminate the use of the residual method and require an entity to allocate revenue 
using the relative selling price method. The accounting changes summarized in ASU 2009-14 and ASU 2009-13 are both effective for fiscal 
years beginning on or after June 15, 2010, with early adoption permitted. Adoption may either be on a prospective basis or by retrospective 
application. The Company is currently assessing the impact of these amendments to the ASC on its accounting and reporting systems and 
processes. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of the ASC as of June 26, 2010 will have on its consolidated 
financial statements. The Company believes that application of these amendments will result in a substantial portion of the Company’s revenue 
and all related cost of sales being recognized at the time of sale. Currently certain revenue and associated cost of sales are deferred at the time 
of sale and recognized ratably over the PCS period. As of June 25, 2010, deferred costs of revenue and deferred revenue were $94.4 million 
and $229.6 million, respectively.  

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures 
about Fair Value Measurements (“ASU 2010-06”), which requires new disclosures about significant transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 
2 and separate disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements with respect to Level 3 measurements. ASU 2010-16 also clarifies 
existing fair value disclosures about valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value. The new disclosures and clarifications of 
existing disclosures are effective for the Company beginning June 26, 2010, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and 
settlements relating to Level 3 measurements, which will be effective for the Company beginning June 30, 2011. The Company does not expect 
the adoption to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.  

3. ACQUISITION  

Acquisition of Silicon Graphics, Inc.  

On May 8, 2009 (the “Closing Date”), the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Legacy SGI, excluding 
certain assets unrelated to the ongoing business, including certain of Legacy SGI’s non-U.S. subsidiaries and operations and assumed certain 
liabilities. The acquisition was consummated pursuant to the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009 and as 
amended on April 30, 2009 (as amended, the “Agreement”). As Legacy SGI and certain of its affiliates had filed bankruptcy petitions and 
motions for voluntary Chapter 11 reorganization, the Purchase Agreement was subject to the approval of the United States Bankruptcy Court 
for the Southern District of New York (the “Bankruptcy Court”). On April 30, 2009, the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby 
were approved by the Bankruptcy Court, allowing the Company to complete the Acquisition under Section 363 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. 
Under the terms of the Agreement, the Company acquired the net assets for a purchase price of approximately $42.5 million in cash.  

The Company retained independent appraisers to assist management in the determination of the fair value of the various assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. The fair value of the acquired net assets of $62.3 million, including assumed liabilities, exceeded the $42.5 million cash 
consideration paid by the Company, resulting in a gain of $19.8 million for the six months ended June 26, 2009.  

The Company conducted a review to reassess whether it identified all the assets acquired and all the liabilities assumed, and followed the 
required measurement procedures for Closing Date recognition of the fair  
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value of net assets acquired. The review confirmed the calculation of the gain on acquisition, which is consistent with a distressed sale of assets 
in bankruptcy, as well as the depressed market capitalization of Legacy SGI.  

The following are the estimated fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the Closing Date (in thousands):  
   

The fair value of the major components of the intangibles assets acquired and their estimated useful lives is as follows (dollars in 
thousands):  
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Cash and short-term investments     $ 33,018    
Deferred cost of revenue       1,821    
Other tangible assets       163,150    
Deferred revenue       (76,265 )  
Deferred income tax liabilities       (1,818 )  
Other liabilities assumed       (79,275 )  

       
  

Net tangible assets       40,631    
Intangible assets       21,700    

       
  

Net assets acquired       62,331    
       

  

Gain on acquisition       19,831    
       

  

Cash paid     $ 42,500    
       

  

     Fair Value    

Weighted Average 
 

Useful Life  
(in Years)   

Customer relationships     $ 6,900    5    
Customer backlog       5,100    (a )  
Purchased technology       5,000    4    
Trademark/ trade name portfolio       2,600    5    
In-process research and development costs       2,100    (b )  

          

Total     $ 21,700    
          

  
(a) The customer backlog intangible asset is amortized as all revenue recognition criteria is accomplished for a particular customer order, 

reflecting the use of the asset. 
(b) In-process research and development is accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until completion or abandonment of the 

associated research and development efforts. 
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The following unaudited pro forma condensed financial information presents the combined results of operations of the Company and 
Legacy SGI as if the acquisition had occurred in six months ended June 26, 2009 and in the year ended January 3, 2009 (in thousands except 
per share amounts):  
   

The unaudited pro forma condensed financial information is not intended to represent or be indicative of the condensed results of 
operations of the Company that would have been reported had the acquisition been completed as of the beginning of the periods presented, and 
should not be taken as representative of the future consolidated results of operations of the Company.  

During the year ended June 25, 2010, the Company received a $1.0 million payment from Legacy SGI related to potential liabilities of 
Legacy SGI, which pursuant to the Agreement were to be remitted to the Company if not paid to a third party. In addition, the Company settled 
a lawsuit filed by Legacy SGI with its customer and received a $2.3 million settlement payment during the year ended June 25, 2010. At the 
Closing Date, the Company assessed whether it was more likely than not that contingent assets existed and based on all available information 
concluded that no assets existed. Accordingly, the Company has recorded the total $3.3 million payment as an acquisition-related gain in the 
accompanying consolidated statement of operations in the year ended June 25, 2010.  

During the six months ended June 26, 2009, the Company incurred acquisition-related costs (i.e., advisory, legal, valuation and other 
professional fees) of $6.1 million which was expensed in the periods in which the costs were incurred.  

Acquisition of Copan Systems, Inc.  

On February 23, 2010, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all the assets of Copan Systems, Inc. (“Copan”) and 
assumed certain liabilities. The purchase price of $2.0 million was allocated to Copan’s tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed based on their fair market values as of the acquisition date. The purchase price allocation resulted in purchased net tangible 
assets of $1.0 million, consisting primarily of inventories and fixed assets, and purchased identifiable intangible assets of $1.0 million.  

The Company retained independent appraisers to assist management in the determination of the fair value of the various assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed.  
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Pro forma  
combined  

Six Months 
Ended  

June 26, 
2009   

  
Pro forma  
combined  

Year Ended 
January 3, 

2009        

Revenue     $ 232,909      $ 595,912    
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes       (73,462 )      (187,013 )  
Net loss from discontinued operations, net of tax       (20 )      —      
Net loss     $ (73,482 )    $ (192,719 )  

       

  

      

  

Net loss per share, basic and diluted       

Continuing operations     $ (2.47 )    $ (6.51 )  
Discontinued operations       —          —      

       
  

      
  

Basic and diluted net loss per share     $ (2.47 )    $ (6.51 )  
       

  

      

  

Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share       29,798        29,853    
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The fair value of the intangible assets acquired and their estimated useful lives are as follows (dollars in thousands):  
   

The financial results of this acquisition are not considered significant for purposes of pro forma financial disclosures.  

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE  

The Company measures its assets and liabilities at fair value based upon the expected exit price, representing the amount that would be 
received on the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value reflects 
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability based on the best information available. Assumptions include the 
risks inherent in a particular valuation technique (such as a pricing model) and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the model.  

The Company uses a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:  
   

   

   

The Company’s assessment of the hierarchy level of the assets or liabilities measured at fair value is determined based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company consider an active market to be one in which transactions 
for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis, and view an inactive 
market as one in which there are a few transactions for the asset or liability, the prices are not current, or price quotations vary substantially 
either over time or among market makers. Where appropriate, the Company or the counterparty’s non-performance risk is considered in 
determining the fair values of liabilities and assets, respectively.  

Long-term Investments  

Long-term investments consist of ARS, which are investments with contractual maturities generally between zero and 50 years. The 
Company’s ARS consist of investments that are backed by pools of student  
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Fair  

Value    

Useful Life 
 

(in Years)   
Purchased technology     $ 300    2    
Patents and core technology       200    2    
Trademark / trade name portfolio       100    2    
In-process research and development costs       400    (a )  

          

Total     $ 1,000    
          

  
(a) In-process research and development is accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until completion or abandonment of the 

associated research and development efforts. 

  
•   Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or 

liabilities;  

  
•   Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either 

directly or indirectly; and  
  •   Level 3 - Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.  
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loans, the majority of which are ultimately guaranteed by the U.S. Department of Education. Beginning in February 2008, certain ARS failed 
auction due to sell orders exceeding buy orders. Given the recent disruptions in the credit markets and the fact that the liquidity for these types 
of securities remains uncertain, the Company has classified all of the ARS ($7.5 million, net of unrealized losses) as long-term investments in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as the Company’s ability to liquidate such securities in the next 12 months is uncertain.  

Long-term investments consist of the following (in thousands):  
   

As of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, the Company has recorded a temporary impairment loss within accumulated other comprehensive 
loss of $1.3 million and $1.6 million, respectively. The unrealized losses on the investments in ARS were caused by market declines as a result 
of the recent disruption in the credit markets. Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in market conditions and not credit 
quality, and the Company does not intend to sell nor likely be required to sell these investments prior to the recovery of the entire amortized 
cost basis, the Company does not consider the investments in ARS to be other-than temporarily impaired at June 25, 2010. The Company will 
continue to monitor the ARS investments in light of the current debt market environment and evaluate the accounting for these investments. As 
of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, the ARS has been in a continuous unrealized loss position for greater than twelve months.  

Realized gains or losses on sales of long-term investments were insignificant in all periods presented.  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments  

The following table sets forth the financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 25, 2010 (in thousands):  
   

The Company’s cash equivalents are classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy as they are valued using quoted market prices, 
broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Cash equivalents consist of money 
market funds and U.S. Treasuries.  
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Amortized 
 

Cost    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
Gain    

Gross  
Unrealized 

 
Loss     

Estimated Fair 
 

Value 

June 25, 2010             

Auction rate securities     $ 8,775    $ —      $ (1,300 )    $ 7,475 
                     

  

      

June 26, 2009             

Auction rate securities     $ 9,056    $ —      $ (1,640 )    $ 7,416 
                     

  

      

     Level 1    Level 2    Level 3    

Assets at  
fair  

value 

June 25, 2010              

Cash equivalents              

Money market funds     $ 1,493    $ —      $ —      $ 1,493 
Treasury bills       50,592      —        —        50,592 

Long-term investments              

Auction Rate Securities       —        —        7,475      7,475 
                            

Total     $ 52,085    $ —      $ 7,475    $ 59,560 
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The Company’s ARS are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as the fair value of ARS is estimated using an income 
(discounted cash flow) approach that incorporates both observable and unobservable inputs to discount the expected future cash flows.  

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the year ended June 25, 2010 were as follows (in thousands): 
   

The Company may also be required to measure certain assets or liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. The fair values of 
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximates their carrying values because of the short-term nature of these 
instruments. The fair value of investment in SGI Japan accounted for under the cost method is valued based on a combination of discounted 
cash flows and market transactions. As of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2010, the fair value of the investment in SGI Japan was $5.0 million.  

5. INVENTORIES  

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):  
   

6. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS  

Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following (in thousands):  
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     ARS   

Balance at December 29, 2007     $ —      
Transfers into Level 3       9,125    
Total unrealized losses included in other comprehensive income       (392 )  
Redemption at par value       (69 )  

       
  

Balance at January 3, 2009       8,664    
Total unrealized loss included in other comprehensive income       (1,248 )  

       
  

Balance at June 26, 2009       7,416    
Total unrealized gains included in other comprehensive income       334    
Redemption at par value       (275 )  

       
  

Balance at June 25, 2010     $ 7,475    
       

  

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Finished goods     $ 37,525    $ 56,343 
Work in process       13,875      21,347 
Raw materials       38,529      40,100 

              

Total inventories     $ 89,929    $ 117,790 
              

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Non-trade accounts receivable     $ 4,794    $ 7,935 
Prepaid income taxes       2,128      4,099 
Value-added tax receivable       5,272      2,659 
Deferred income taxes       463      2,511 
Other prepaid and current assets       3,310      8,553 

              

Total prepaid expenses and other current assets     $ 15,967    $ 25,757 
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7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET  

Property and equipment, net consist of the following (dollars in thousands):  
   

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007, and for the six months 
ended June 26, 2009 was $12.1 million, $3.2 million, $3.0 million, and $2.1 million, respectively.  

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET  

The following table details the Company’s intangible asset balance by major asset class (dollars in thousands).  
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Estimated 
Useful Life    

June 25,  
2010     

June 26,  
2009   

Land     N/A    $ 799      $ 799    
Building     30-32      11,062        10,704    
Computer equipment and software     2-6      17,830        16,855    
Manufacturing equipment     2-7      5,451        6,741    
Leasehold improvements     2-7      7,501        5,564    
Furniture and fixtures     2-7      1,532        1,648    
Vehicles     5      104        104    
Construction in progress     N/A      428        1,216    

          
  

      
  

        44,707        43,631    
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization          (16,535 )      (10,507 )  

          
  

      
  

Total property and equipment, net        $ 28,172      $ 33,124    
          

  

      

  

Intangible Asset Class 

   Weighted  
Average  

Useful Life 
 

(in Years)   

  At June 25, 2010 

     

Gross  
Carrying 
Amount    

Accumulated 
 

Amortization     Net 

Customer relationships     5      $ 6,900    $ (1,610 )    $ 5,290 
Purchased technology     4        5,300      (1,434 )      3,866 
Customer backlog     (a )      5,100      (3,517 )      1,583 
Trademark/ trade name portfolio     5        3,667      (849 )      2,818 
Patents & Other     2        200      (34 )      166 

                
  

      

Subtotal         21,167      (7,444 )      13,723 
In-process research & development costs not subject to amortization     (b )      2,500      —          2,500 

                
  

      

Total       $ 23,667    $ (7,444 )    $ 16,223 
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Intangible assets amortization expense was $6.3 million, $2.4 million, $4.4 million, and $1.2 million in the years ended June 25, 
2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007 and in the six months ended June 26, 2009, respectively.  

In the year ended January 3, 2009, the Company performed an impairment analysis of its intangible assets as events and circumstances 
indicated that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. As a result of the analysis, the Company recognized and charged to discontinued 
operations an impairment charge of $17.5 million as described in Note 19.  

In the six months ended June 26, 2009, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $2.5 million related to its tradename intangible 
asset. Upon the acquisition of Legacy SGI and the change in the Company’s name to Silicon Graphics International Corp., the Company 
determined that the tradename intangible asset of $3.5 million was impaired, primarily as it will be used for a product line only. The 
impairment charge was recorded as sales and marketing expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. Additionally, the 
Company determined that the remaining capitalized tradename intangible asset of $1.0 million, which was historically classified as an 
indefinite life asset, has a finite life of five years.  

No impairment of intangible assets was recorded in the year ended June 25, 2010 and December 29, 2007.  

As of June 25, 2010, expected amortization expense for all intangible assets is as follows (in thousands):  
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Intangible Asset Class 

   Weighted 
 

Average  
Useful  

Life  
(in 

Years)   

          

     At June 26, 2009 

     

Gross  
Carrying 
Amount    

Accumulated 
 

Amortization     Net 

Customer relationships     5      $ 6,900    $ (167 )    $ 6,733 
Purchased technology     4        5,000      (135 )      4,865 
Customer backlog     (a )      5,100      (740 )      4,360 
Trademark/ trade name portfolio     5        3,567      (104 )      3,463 

                
  

      

Subtotal         20,567      (1,146 )      19,421 
In-process research & development costs not subject to 

amortization     (b )      2,100      —          2,100 
                

  
      

Total       $ 22,667    $ (1,146 )    $ 21,521 
                

  

      

  
(a) The customer backlog intangible asset is amortized as all revenue recognition criteria is accomplished for a particular customer order, 

reflecting the use of the asset. 
(b) In-process research and development is accounted for as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until completion or abandonment of the 

associated research and development efforts. 

Fiscal Year    

Amortization 
 

Expense 

2011     $ 5,163 
2012       3,402 
2013       2,813 
2014       2,345 
2015 and thereafter       —   

       

Total amortization     $ 13,723 
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9. OTHER ASSETS  

Other assets consist of the following (in thousands):  
   

10. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Other current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  
   

11. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Other non-current liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):  
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June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Long-term service inventory     $ 16,135    $ 14,332 
Restricted pension plan assets       6,945      8,152 
Investment in SGI Japan       5,000      5,000 
Residual value of leased equipment       763      1,476 
Long-term refundable deposits       1,154      1,416 
Other assets       2,346      2,871 

              

Total other assets     $ 32,343    $ 33,247 
              

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Accrued warranty, current portion     $ 2,859    $ 5,920 
Accrued sales and use tax payable       8,083      3,562 
Income taxes payable       1,214      1,256 
Accrued restructuring       1,311      1,638 
Accrued professional services fees       1,874      1,694 
Royalty reserve       927      1,384 
Other       11,340      16,426 

              

Total other current liabilities     $ 27,608    $ 31,880 
              

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Pension liability     $ 7,012    $ 7,156 
Deferred income taxes       342      2,966 
Accrued warranty, non-current portion       1,527      2,652 
Deferred rent, non-current portion       981      1,082 
Other       2,424      1,090 

              

Total other non-current liabilities     $ 12,286    $ 14,946 
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12. WARRANTY RESERVE  

Activity in the warranty reserve, which is included in other current and non-current liabilities, is as follows (in thousands):  
   

13. RESTRUCTURING ACTIVITY  

On July 27, 2009, management approved restructuring actions to reduce the Company’s European workforce and vacate certain facilities 
in Europe. The total amount expected to be incurred in connection with the restructuring activity is $8.0 million. The expense related to these 
actions for the year ended June 25, 2010 was $4.6 million for employee severance and $0.6 million for vacating facilities. The Company 
expects employee severance to be substantially paid during fiscal year 2011 and the Company expects to substantially fulfill the remaining 
contractual obligations related to the facilities exit costs by fiscal year 2012. As of June 25, 2010, the total cost incurred in connection with the 
restructuring was $7.7 million.  
   

The restructuring liability balance of $1.6 million as of June 25, 2010 includes $1.3 million recorded in other current liabilities and $0.3 
million recorded in other non-current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. All costs accrued as of June 26, 2009 were 
substantially paid during the year ended June 25, 2010.  

14. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION  

Share-Based Benefit Plans  

In 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and its stockholders approved the Company’s 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“2005 
Plan”), 2005 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan and 2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2005 ESPP Plan”). As of June 25, 2010, 
the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for grant under each plan is 2,976,187, 70,333 and 748,995 shares, respectively. 
Each plan contains a provision that automatically increases the number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance on January 1 of each 
year. During the year ended January 3, 2009 the number of stock options authorized for issuance under  
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June 25,  

2010     
June 26, 

2009   

Balance at beginning of period     $ 8,572      $ 2,789    
Warranty accrual assumed in acquisition of Legacy SGI       —          6,367    
Current period accrual       1,548        970    
Warranty expenditures charged to accrual       (4,021 )      (1,554 )  
Changes in accrual for pre-existing warranties       (1,713 )      —      

       
  

      
  

Balance at end of period     $ 4,386      $ 8,572    
       

  

      

  

     
Employee  

Terminations     
Facilities  
Exit Costs     Total   

Balance at January 3, 2009     $ —        $ —        $ —      
Costs incurred       2,122        362        2,484    
Cash payments       (626 )      (163 )      (789 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Balance at June 26, 2009       1,496        199        1,695    
Costs incurred       4,590        630        5,220    
Cash payments       (4,818 )      (492 )      (5,310 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

Balance at June 25, 2010     $ 1,268      $ 337      $ 1,605    
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each Plan was increased by 1,180,516, 16,581 and 282,796, respectively. During the year ended June 25, 2010, the number of stock options 
authorized for issuance under each Plan was increased by 1,583,135, 68,703 and 364,923 shares, respectively. The Company’s Board of 
Directors adopted the 2006 New Recruit Equity Incentive Plan (“New Recruit Plan”) in January 2006 which allows the Company to grant non-
statutory stock awards for up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock to newly hired employees as an inducement to join the Company. No grants 
may be made under the New Recruit Plan to persons who are continuing employees or directors. The New Recruit Plan provides for the grant 
of the following stock awards: (i) non-statutory stock options, (ii) stock purchase awards, (iii) stock bonus awards, (iv) stock appreciation 
rights, (v) stock unit awards, and (vi) other stock awards. As of June 25, 2010, the number of shares of common stock available for grant under 
the 2006 Plan is 806,438. The total shares of common stock reserved for the New Recruit Plan was increased by 500,000 shares in August 2006 
and by another 500,000 shares in January 2007. The exercise price of each non-statutory stock option shall be not less than one hundred percent 
(100%) of the fair market value of the common stock subject to the option on the date the option is granted.  

Stock awards expire ten years from the date of grant, or such shorter period specified in the option agreement. The options generally vest 
at a rate of 25% per year over four years from the date the option is granted. The Company issues new shares of its common stock upon 
exercise of stock options, issuance of restricted stock awards (“RSA”), restricted stock units (“RSU”) and issuance of shares purchased under 
its 2005 ESPP. RSAs differ from RSUs in that RSAs result in issuance of common stock with all rights, including rights to vote and to receive 
dividends, upon grant, with the exception of the ability to sell the common stock. Common stock to be issued for grants of RSUs are not issued 
until the RSU vests and do not have rights of voting or to receive dividends.  

Tender Offer  

On June 11, 2007, the Company filed a tender offer on Schedule TO (“Tender Offer”) with the SEC under which holders of options with 
exercise prices greater than $16.00 per share could tender their options in exchange for restricted stock unit awards granted under the 2005 Plan 
based upon the following exchange ratios:  
   

The restricted stock unit awards are subject to vesting in equal quarterly installments through August 15, 2009 (if the grant date of the 
option being tendered was prior to October 1, 2006) or August 15, 2010 (if the grant date of the option being tendered was after October 1, 
2006). The tender offer provided that the option holder could and must submit their election to participate in the tender offer no later than 
July 10, 2007, and could amend their election up to that date. Furthermore, this tender offer was not available to the Company’s then current 
directors or named executive officers and the Company could at its sole discretion amend, extend or withdraw the tender offer at any time prior 
to closing.  

The Company completed the Tender Offer on July 10, 2007. As a result, the Company accepted for exchange options to purchase an 
aggregate of 2,238,883 shares of the Company’s common stock from 187 eligible participants, representing 87% of the shares subject to 
options that were eligible to be exchanged in the Offer to Exchange as of May 31, 2007. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth 
in the Tender Offer to Exchange, the Company issued restricted stock unit awards covering an aggregate of 893,828 shares of the Company’s 
common stock in exchange for the options surrendered pursuant to the Tender Offer to Exchange.  
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Exercise Price Range    

Stock Options Shares per 
 

Restricted Stock Unit 

$16.00 - $24.99     2 to 1 
$25.00 - $34.99     3 to 1 
$35.00 and above     3.5 to 1 
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The fair value of the restricted stock unit awards was measured as the total of the unrecognized compensation cost of the original options 
tendered and the incremental compensation cost of the restricted stock unit awards on July 10, 2007, the date of cancellation. The incremental 
compensation cost was measured as the excess of the fair value of the restricted stock unit awards over the fair value of the options 
immediately before cancellation based on the share price and other pertinent factors at that date. The incremental cost of the 893,828 restricted 
stock unit awards was approximately $145,000. The unrecognized compensation costs of the 2,238,883 options cancelled were $17.1 million. 
The total fair value of the restricted stock unit awards on July 10, 2007 was $17.2 million and these costs will be amortized over the service 
period of the restricted stock unit awards. The service period of the restricted stock unit awards is longer than the service period of the options 
tendered.  

Determining Fair Value  

The fair value of share-based awards was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average 
assumptions for the following periods:  
   

The computation of expected life is based on an analysis of the relevant industry sector post-vest termination rates and exercise factors. In 
the year ended June 25, 2010, expected volatility is based on the implied and historical volatility for the Company. The interest rate is based on 
the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent remaining term. Where the expected term of the 
Company’s share-based awards do not correspond with the terms for which interest rates are quoted, the Company performs a straight-line 
interpolation to determine the rate from the available term maturities. As share-based compensation expense recognized in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures 
are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimated.  
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   Year Ended    
Six  

months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009    

June 25,  
2010    

January 3, 
 

2009    

December 29, 
 

2007    

Option Plans Shares              

Risk-free interest rate       2.6%      2.9%      4.6%      1.9% 
Volatility       61.6%      59.0%      60.0%      63.7% 
Weighted average expected life (in years)       4.98       5.20       5.41       5.00  
Weighted average fair value     $ 3.09     $ 5.30     $ 9.04     $ 2.20  

ESPP Plan shares              

Risk-free interest rate       0.6%      2.2%      4.5%      0.7% 
Volatility       58.0%      50.0%      50.0%      68.0% 
Weighted average expected life (in years)       1.25       1.25       1.25       1.25  
Weighted average fair value     $ 2.55     $ 3.82     $ 4.97     $ 1.66  
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Share-Based Compensation Expense  

Total share-based compensation expense is as follows (in thousands):  
   

Stock Options and Restricted Stock Awards Activity  

Summary of stock option activity is as follows:  
   

   
88  

     Year Ended    
Six  

months 
ended  

June 26, 
 

2009        

June 25, 
 

2010     

January 3, 
 

2009    

December 29, 
 

2007    

Cost of revenue     $ 691      $ 1,120    $ 2,152    $ 423    
Research and development       767        1,811      3,160      524    
Sales and marketing       445        1,568      5,040      579    
General and administrative       2,924        4,653      10,731      1,689    

       
  

                    
  

Continuing operations       4,827        9,152      21,083      3,215    
Discontinued operations       (106 )      435      2,152      (111 )  

       
  

                    
  

Total share-based compensation expense     $ 4,721      $ 9,587    $ 23,235    $ 3.104    
       

  

                    

  

    Shares     

Weighted 
 

Average  
Exercise 

Price   

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining  
Contractual term 

 
in years   

Aggregate  
Intrinsic  

Value 

Balance at December 30, 2006    4,771,471          

Options granted (weighted average fair value of $9.04 per share)    3,410,081      $ 15.87     

Options exercised    (895,178 )      3.00     

Options cancelled    (4,393,894 )      25.63     
    

  
          

Balance at December 29, 2007    2,892,480        13.13     

Options granted (weighted average fair value of $5.30 per share)    1,158,873        9.83     

Options exercised    (75,884 )      7.06     

Options cancelled    (770,096 )      12.45     
    

  
          

Balance at January 3, 2009    3,205,373        12.24     

Options granted (weighted average fair value of $3.09 per share)    210,164        4.03     

Options exercised    (5,890 )      1.36     

Options cancelled    (523,487 )      10.51     
    

  
          

Balance at June 26, 2009    2,886,160        11.98     

Options granted (weighted average fair value of $ 3.09 per share)    1,656,500        5.80     

Options exercised    (152,787 )      5.81     

Options cancelled    (636,953 )      9.96     
    

  
          

Balance at June 25, 2010    3,752,920      $ 9.85   7.5   $ 4,135,773 
    

  

                

Vested and expected to vest at June 25, 2010    3,301,877      $ 10.25   7.4   $ 3,272,534 
    

  

                

Exercisable at June 25, 2010    1,824,264      $ 12.12   6.8   $ 916,593 
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Performance-based option grant  

On August 11, 2009, the Company’s CEO was granted a non-qualified stock option, with performance-based metrics, to purchase 40,000 
shares of the Company’s common stock. The stock option, which has a grant date fair value of approximately $0.1 million, was valued using 
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The stock option has an exercise price of $5.34 per share, a contractual term of ten years and a 
maximum of 10,000 shares vesting per annum depending on the attainment of performance-based metrics. Compensation expense for this 
award is recognized when it is determined that it is probable that the performance metrics will be achieved. Compensation expense related to 
this award was immaterial in the year ended June 25, 2010.  

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in the year ending June 25, 2010 was $0.5 million.  

As of June 25, 2010, there was $2.8 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options, which is 
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years.  
   

   
89  

    Options Outstanding   Options Exercisable 

Exercise Price 
Range   

Number of  
Outstanding 

 
Options   

Weighted Average 
 

Remaining  
Contractual Life  

(In Years)   

Weighted 
 

Average  
Exercise 

Price   

Number of  
Options  

Exercisable   

Weighted 
 

Average  
Exercise 

Price 

$  0.71-$  5.07   119,426     $ 4.00   37,508   $ 3.60 
$  5.34-$  5.34   1,225,618     $ 5.34   224,505   $ 5.34 
$  6.00-$  8.98   382,316     $ 7.53   118,769   $ 7.13 
$  9.00-$11.33   380,153     $ 9.95   197,292   $ 9.84 
$11.40-$12.82   487,348     $ 12.14   364,840   $ 12.26 
$13.15-$13.15   19,000     $ 13.15   12,665   $ 13.15 
$13.23-$13.23   700,000     $ 13.23   539,583   $ 13.23 
$13.44-$26.68   389,332     $ 15.63   283,024   $ 16.19 
$27.36-$35.94   37,895     $ 34.54   34,246   $ 34.50 
$37.91-$37.91   11,832     $ 37.91   11,832   $ 37.91 
                          

$  0.71-$37.91   3,752,920   7.5   $ 9.85   1,824,264   $ 12.12 
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The following table summarizes the Company’s restricted stock award (“RSA”) activity for the year ended June 25, 2010, the six month 
period ended June 26, 2009, the year ended January 3, 2009 and the year ended December 29, 2007.  
   

As of June 25, 2010, there was $0.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to RSA, which is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted average period of approximately 10 months.  

The following table summarizes the Company’s restricted stock units (“RSU”) activity for the year ended June 25, 2010.  
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Number of 
 

Shares     

Weighted  
Average  

Grant Date 
 

Fair Value 

Balance at December 30, 2006     120,000      $ 27.36 
Awarded     343,040        17.03 
Released     (69,128 )      18.82 
Forfeited     (154,378 )      25.82 

     
  

      

Balance at December 29, 2007     239,534        16.03 
Released     (59,531 )      15.28 
Forfeited     (51,877 )      20.03 

     
  

      

Balance at January 3, 2009     128,126        14.75 
Released     (27,186 )      14.95 

     
  

      

Balance at June 26, 2009     100,940        14.69 
Released     (54,375 )      14.95 
Forfeited     (5,313 )      18.07 

     
  

      

Balance at June 25, 2010     41,252      $ 13.91 
     

  

      

     
Number of  

Shares     

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining 
Contractual 

 
Life    

Aggregate  
Intrinsic  

Value 

Balance at December 30, 2006     —           

Awarded     996,953         

Released     (84,242 )       

Forfeited     (111,547 )       
     

  
     

Balance at December 29, 2007     801,164         

Awarded     1,137,600         

Released     (430,953 )       

Forfeited     (464,026 )       
     

  
     

Balance at January 3, 2009     1,043,785         

Released     (195,066 )       

Forfeited     (146,069 )       
     

  
     

Balance at June 26, 2009     702,650         

Awarded     10,000         

Released     (270,550 )       

Forfeited     (127,752 )       
     

  
     

Balance at June 25, 2010     314,348      0.9    $ 2,549,362 
     

  

           

Vested and expected to vest at June 25, 2010     264,942      0.8    $ 2,148,678 
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As of June 25, 2010, there was $2.6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to RSU, which is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted average period of 1.7 years.  

During the year ending June 25, 2010, 118,486 shares of common stock were delivered to the Company in payment of $0.86 million of 
withholding tax obligations arising from the release of RSA and RSU. The withholding tax obligations were based upon the fair market value 
of the Company’s common stock on the vesting date.  

At June 25, 2010, the total compensation cost related to options to purchase the Company’s common stock under the 2005 ESPP Plan not 
yet recognized was approximately $0.5 million. This cost will be amortized on a straight-line basis over approximately 1.6 years. The 
following table shows the shares issued, and their respective weighted-average purchase price per share, pursuant to the 2005 ESPP Plan during 
the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and the six months ended June 26, 2009.  
   

15. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  

Stock Repurchase  

In February 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $40.0 million of its common stock. 
Under the program, the Company was able to purchase shares of common stock through open market transactions and privately negotiated 
purchases at prices deemed appropriate by management. The program was suspended in April 2009, and no shares of outstanding common 
stock were repurchased during the year ended June 25, 2010. During the six months ended June 26, 2009, the Company repurchased 243,695 
shares of outstanding common stock which are being held in treasury at an average price of $4.19 per share, for a total of $1.0 million, 
including expenses. Such repurchases were accounted for at cost and reflected as treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets.  

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss  

The following table summarized the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and 
December 29, 2007 and as of June 26, 2009 (in thousands):  
   

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE  

Basic and diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing consolidated net loss by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing consolidated net income by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding and dilutive  
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     Year Ended    
Six  

months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009      

June 25,  
2010    

January 3, 
2009    

December 29, 
 

2007    

Shares issued       238,889      162,823      166,834      99,603 
Weighted-average purchase price per share     $ 3.78    $ 7.94    $ 11.04    $ 3.77 

     
June 25,  

2010     
January 3,  

2009     

December 29, 

 
2007     

June 26,  
2009   

Net unrealized gains/(losses) on investments     $   (1,357 )    $       (394 )   $         48     $   (1,587 )  
Cumulative translation adjustment       2        117        (59 )     2    
Gain/(loss) on pension assets       (548 )      —          —          10    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Accumulated other comprehensive loss     $ (1,903 )    $ (277 )   $   (11 )    $ (1,575 )  
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common stock equivalent shares outstanding during the period. For the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007, 
and the six months ended June 26, 2009, potentially dilutive shares, which include outstanding common stock options and restricted stock 
units, were not included in the computation of diluted net loss per common share as the result would be anti-dilutive. Such potentially dilutive 
shares are excluded when the effect would be to reduce a net loss per share. As the Company had a net loss in each of the periods presented, 
basic and diluted net loss per share are the same for each period presented.  

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, 
and December 29, 2007, and the six months ended June 26, 2009 (in thousands, except per share amount):  
   

The following table sets forth potential shares of common stock, which are excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share, as 
the result would be anti-dilutive (in thousands):  
   

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN  

Defined Benefit Plans  

The Company sponsors defined benefit plans covering certain of our international employees in the United Kingdom and Germany. 
These defined benefit plans were acquired as part of the acquisition of Legacy SGI in May 2009. No new employees are eligible to join these 
plans. Pension benefits associated with these plans generally are based on each participant’s years of service, compensation, and age at 
retirement or termination. The Company funds the pension plans in amounts sufficient to meet the minimum requirements of the local laws and 
regulations. Additional funding may be provided as deemed appropriate.  
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     Year ended     
Six  

months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Numerators:           

Loss from continuing operations, net of tax     $ (88,861 )    $ (31,287 )    $ (41,580 )    $ (14,191 )  
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax       409        (22,941 )      (27,977 )      (20 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net loss     $ (88,452 )    $ (54,228 )    $ (69,557 )    $ (14,211 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Denominator:           

Weighted-average common shares used in computing basic and 
diluted net loss per share       30,130        29,583        28,786        29,798    

       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Net loss per share, basic and diluted:           

Continuing operations     $ (2.95 )    $ (1.06 )    $ (1.45 )    $ (0.48 )  
Discontinued operations       0.01        (0.77 )      (0.97 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Basic and diluted net loss per share     $ (2.94 )    $ (1.83 )    $ (2.42 )    $ (0.48 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

     Year ended    Six months 
 

ended  
June  26,  

2009      

June 25, 

 
2010    

January 3, 

 
2009    

December 29, 
 

2007    

Potentially dilutive securities     4,067    3,205    2,892    2,886 
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The projected benefit obligation (PBO) and the assets of the United Kingdom plan have been transferred to an insurance company and the 
Company is not responsible for any additional contributions to the plan to fund the benefit payments to the employees. However, the Company 
continues to pay the annual administrative costs of the plan.  

German Plan  

The German plan is managed by an insurance company and the insurance company makes investment decisions with the guidelines set by 
the German regulation. The plan assets are invested as part of the insurance company’s general fund and the Company does not have control 
over the target allocation or visibility of the investment strategies of these investments.  

Following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets as 
of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009 (in thousands):  
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June 25,  

2010     
June 26,  

2009   

Projected Benefit Obligation       

Benefit obligation, beginning     $   10,023      $ —      
Business combinations       —          9,695    
Service Cost       126        20    
Interest Cost       589        84    
Actuarial gains and losses       436        (19 )  
Benefits paid       (316 )      (22 )  
Foreign exchange rate changes       (1,311 )      265    

       
  

      
  

Benefit Obligation, ending     $ 9,547      $   10,023    
       

  

      

  

     
June 25,  

2010     
June 26,  

2009   

Fair Value of Plan Assets       

Fair value of plan assets, beginning     $ 2,614      $ —      
Business combinations       —          2,542    
Expected return on plan assets       105        15    
Participant Contributions       37        —      
Actuarial gains and losses       (123 )      (10 )  
Benefit payments       (31 )      (2 )  
Foreign exchange rate changes       (343 )      69    

       
  

      
  

Fair value of plan assets, ending     $   2,259      $   2,614    
       

  

      

  

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Underfunded Status        

Projected benefit obligation     $ 9,547    $ 10,023 
Fair value of plan assets       2,259      2,614 

              

Underfunded status of plan     $   7,288    $ 7,409 
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The Company has life insurance policies with cash surrender values that have been earmarked by the Company to partly cover the 
underfunded status of the plan of $7.2 million and $8.2 million as of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, respectively. The cash surrender value 
of the life insurance plans is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  

The following table summarizes the amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009 (in 
thousands):  
   

The following table summarizes the amounts recorded to other comprehensive income loss (income) before taxes during the year ended 
June 25, 2010 and six months ended June 26, 2009 (in thousands):  
   

The Company does not expect any amortization from accumulated other comprehensive loss (income) into net periodic benefit cost 
during fiscal year 2011.  

The following table summarizes the amounts related to the pension plan with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets at 
June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009:  
   

The Company carries the interest and service cost of the plan. Actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the life of the plan.  

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for the German plan were as follows:  
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June 25, 
 

2010    

June 26, 
 

2009   

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets        

Non-current assets        

Accrued benefit cost        

Current liabilities     $ 276    $ 253    
Non-current liabilities     $ 7,012    $ 7,156    

Amounts recognized in the accumulated other comprehensive loss (income)        

Net actuarial loss (gain)     $ 548    $ (10 )  

     

June 25, 
 

2010    

June 26, 
 

2009   

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive loss (income)        

Net actuarial loss (gain)     $ 558    $ (10 )  
              

  

Total recognized in other comprehensive loss (income)     $ 558    $ (10 )  
              

  

(in thousands)    

June 25, 
 

2010    
June 26,  

2009 

Projected benefit obligation     $ 9,547    $ 10,023 
Accumulated benefit obligation     $ 8,479    $ 10,495 
Fair value of plan assets     $ 2,259    $ 2,614 

     

June 25, 
 

2010     

June 26, 
 

2009   

Discount rate     5.4 %    6.0 %  
Rate of compensation increase     2.0 %    2.0 %  
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Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the German plan were as follows:  
   

The discount rate reflects the current rate at which the associated liabilities could be effectively settled at the end of the year. The 
Company sets its rate to reflect the yield of a portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments that would produce cash flows sufficient 
in timing and amount to settle projected future benefits. Using this methodology, the Company determined a discount rate of 5.4% for the 
German plan as of June 25, 2010, which is a decrease of 0.6% from the rate used as of June 26, 2009  

Expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions for the German plan is determined using the projected long-term rate of return 
estimated by the insurance company for its general fund.  

The net periodic benefit cost of the German plan was comprised of the following components (in thousands):  
   

The Company does not expect to make any contributions to the German plan during the next fiscal year as contributions are not required 
by funding regulations or laws and the cash surrender value of the life insurance plan earmarked by the Company substantially covers the 
under-funded status of the German plan.  

Fair Value of Plan Assets  

The plan assets measured at fair value consisted of the following as of June 25, 2010 (in thousands):  
   

Level 2 assets include investments that are pooled with other investments held by the insurance company within its general fund. The 
investments held by the insurance company are valued by taking the percentage owned by the plan in the underlying net asset value of the 
insurance company’s general fund.  
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June 25, 
 

2010     

June 26, 
 

2009   

Discount rate     5.4 %    6.0 %  
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets     4.1 %    4.1 %  
Rate of compensation increase     2.0 %    2.0 %  

     

Year ended 
 

June 25,  
2010     

Six months 
 

ended  
June  26,  

2009   

Net periodic benefit cost       

Service cost     $ 126      $     20    
Interest expense       589        84    
Expected return on plan assets       (105 )      (15 )  

       
  

      
  

Net periodic benefit cost     $ 610      $ 89    
       

  

      

  

     Level 1    Level 2    Level 3    Total 

Investments held by an insurance company     $       —      $   2,259    $       —      $   2,259 
                            

Total assets measured at fair value     $ —      $ 2,259    $ —      $ 2,259 
                            



Table of Contents  

SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  
   

Future Employee Benefit Payments  

The following table provides the estimated pension payments that are payable from the German plan to participants (in thousands):  
   

Defined Contribution Plan  

Effective September 1, 2003, the Company established a 401(k) retirement plan covering substantially all employees. The plan provides 
for voluntary salary reduction contributions up to the maximum allowed under Internal Revenue Service rules. The Company can make annual 
contributions to the plan at the discretion of the Board of Directors. There were no contributions for the year ended June 25, 2010. The 
Company contributed $0.1 million, $0.2 million and $0.1 million during the six months ended June 26, 2009, the year ended January 3, 2009, 
and the year ended December 29, 2007, respectively.  

18. INCOME TAXES  

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 and the six months 
ended June 26, 2009 consisted of the following (in thousands):  
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Fiscal Year    
Future  

Payments 

2011     $ 364 
2012       525 
2013       402 
2014       414 
2015       465 
Following five years       3,208 

     Year ended     Six months 
 

ended  
June 26,  

2009        
June 25,  

2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Federal:           

Current     $ (4,923 )    $ (1,222 )    $ (2,446 )    $ 27    
Deferred       (482 )      1,539        13,167        (2,289 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     (5,405 )      317        10,721        (2,262 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

State:           

Current       (395 )      (4 )      (32 )      75    
Deferred       (59 )      (11 )      1,834        (279 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     (454 )      (15 )      1,802        (204 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Foreign:           

Current       1,915        74        8        224    
Deferred       (497 )      —          —          —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

     1,418        74        8        224    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Provision (benefit) for income taxes     $ (4,441 )    $ 376      $ 12,531      $ (2,242 )  
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The components of income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):  
   

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the effects of tax losses, credits, and the future income tax effects of temporary differences 
between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are measured 
using enacted tax rates that apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.  

As of June 25, 2010 and June 26, 2009, the significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities were (in 
thousands):  
   

The valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets increased from $98.4 million as of June 26, 2009 to $126.6 million as of June 25, 
2010 and increased from $50.9 million as of January 3, 2009 to $98.4 million as of June 26, 2009. The net deferred tax asset as of June 25, 
2010 is attributable to deferred tax assets of certain foreign subsidiaries which we believe are more likely than not of being realized.  

As of June 25, 2010, the Company has federal, state, and foreign tax net operating loss carry forwards of $103.5 million, $100.2 million, 
and $131.5 million, respectively. If not utilized, the net operating loss carry forwards will begin to expire in 2028, 2012, and 2011, 
respectively.  

As of June 25, 2010, the Company has federal and state Research and Development tax credits of $1.5 million and $1.9 million, 
respectively, and $5.3 million of foreign Investment Tax Credits. If not utilized, the federal and foreign tax credits will begin to expire in 2027 
and 2019, respectively. The state tax credits do not expire.  
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     Year ended     
Six  

months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Domestic sources     $ (50,733 )    $ (30,522 )    $ (29,096 )      (31,210 )  
Foreign sources       (42,569 )      (389 )      47        14,777    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ (93,302 )    $ (30,911 )    $ (29,049 )    $ (16,433 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

     
June 25,  

2010    
June 26,  

2009   

Deferred tax assets:        

Net operating losses and tax credit carry forwards     $ 78,887    $ 51,537    
Accrued liabilities and other reserves       458      5,549    
Stock based compensation       13,170      12,752    
Intangible and fixed assets       13,170      7,429    
Accounts receivable and inventory reserves       19,017      18,884    
Other       2,354      1,811    

              
  

Total deferred tax assets       127,056      97,962    
Less valuation allowance       126,559      98,417    

              
  

Deferred tax assets (liability), net of valuation allowance     $ 497    $ (455 )  
              

  

Net deferred tax assets (liability)     $ 497    $ (455 )  
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Amounts earned by foreign subsidiaries are generally subject to U.S. income taxation on repatriation to the U.S. The Company’s 
consolidated financial statements do not reflect any related deferred tax liability on undistributed earnings that may be repatriated from the 
Company’s foreign subsidiaries intended to be indefinitely reinvested in operations outside the U.S. U.S. income taxes have not been provided 
on net foreign cumulative loss of $41.4 million. It is not practicable to determine the income tax liability that might be incurred if these 
earnings were to be distributed.  

Tax attributes related to stock option windfall deductions should not be recorded until they result in a reduction of cash taxes payable. 
The amount of the Company’s unrealized federal net operating losses relating to stock options deductions as of June 25, 2010 was $1.6 million. 
The benefit of these net operating losses would be recorded to additional paid-in capital when they reduce cash taxes payable.  

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007 and 
for the six months ended June 26, 2009 is as follows:  
   

A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and penalties) from January 3, 2009 through June 25, 2010 are as 
follows (in thousands):  
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     Year ended     

Six months 
 

ended   

     

June 25, 
 

2010     

January 3, 
 

2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     
June 26,  

2009   

Federal statutory rate provision     35.0 %    35.0 %    35.0 %    35.0 %  
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit     0.8      2.0      3.0     (0.2 )  
Foreign taxes     (2.0 )    —        —        (8.4 )  
Stock based compensation     0.1      —        (4.0 )   (0.3 )  
Intangible asset impairment     —        —        —        —      
Goodwill impairment     —        —        (3.0 )   —      
Valuation allowance     (30.6 )    (35.0 )    (77.0 )    (21.0 )  
Losses carried back     5.3      —        —        —      
Other     (3.8 )    (3.0 )    3.0     1.1    

   —        —        —        —      
     

  
    

  
    

  
    

  

   4.8 %    (1.0 )%   (43.0 )%    6.2 % 
     

  

    

  

    

  

    

  

Balance at January 3, 2009     $ 95    
Increase (decrease) to current year position       8,162    
Increase (decrease) to prior year positions       0    
Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations       0    
Increase (decrease) due to settlements       0    

       
  

Balance at June 26, 2009     $ 8,257    
Increase (decrease) to current year positions       310    
Increase (decrease) to prior year positions       982    
Decrease due to lapse of statute of limitations       (17 )  
Increase (decrease) due to settlements       (197 )  

       
  

Balance at June 25, 2010     $ 9,335    
       

  



Table of Contents  

SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  
   

At June 25, 2010, the Company had approximately $9.3 million of gross unrecognized tax benefit of which $8.7 million, if recognized, 
will impact the effective tax rate. We do not expect that the total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease in the next 12 
months.  

The Company classifies interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as components of income tax expense. As of 
June 25, 2010, the Company has accrued interest and penalties of approximately $12.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively, on the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  

The Company’s U.S. federal tax returns for 2005 and prior years are no longer subject to examination. The Company’s state tax returns 
for years prior to 2004 are not subject to examination.  

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries file income tax returns in the countries in which they have operations. Generally, these countries 
have statutes of limitations ranging from 4 to 6 years. Tax years still open to examination by foreign tax authorities in the Company’s larger 
subsidiaries located in Canada, France, Germany, and the United Kingdom are tax years ending June 2005 through June 2010.  

19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  

In October 2008, the Company committed to a formal plan to abandon the Rapidscale product line, which was reviewed and approved by 
management with appropriate authority, and was communicated to the affected employees. The Company continues to honor service contracts 
with existing Rapidscale customers, but had no other significant continuing involvement in the operations of the Rapidscale product line 
subsequent to the abandonment.  

The results of operations of the Rapidscale product line were reclassified and included in “discontinued operations, net of tax”, within the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007, and for the 
six months ended June 26, 2009.  

The following summarizes the results of discontinued operations (in thousands):  
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     Year ended     Six  
months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 

 
2009     

December 29, 

 
2007     

Revenue     $       366      $ 730      $ 2,471      $       307    
Cost of revenue       72        133        743        132    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Gross profit       294        597        1,728        175    
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Operating expenses:           

Research and development       (106 )      8,436        12,480        (48 )  
Sales and marketing       (14 )      60        1,784        —      
General and administrative       10        251        351        32    
Impairment of long-lived assets       —          17,519        21,051        —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total operating expenses       (110 )      26,266        35,666        (16 )  
       

  
      

  
      

  
      

  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations       404        (25,669 )      (33,938 )      191    
Total other income (expense)       5        (227 )      (3 )      (211 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income tax benefit       409        (25,896 )      (33,941 )      (20 )  
Income tax benefit       —          (2,955 )      (5,964 )      —      

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Income (loss) from discontinued operations     $ 409      $ (22,941 )    $ (27,977 )    $ (20 )  
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In the year ended December 29, 2007, the Company recorded an increase to goodwill related to the Terrascale acquisition totaling $1.0 
million. In the fourth quarter of 2007, pursuant to the Company’s accounting policy, the Company performed the annual goodwill impairment 
analysis. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process. The first step of the impairment analysis compares the Company’s fair value to 
the Company’s net book value. In determining fair value, the accounting guidance allows for the use of several valuation methodologies, 
although it states quoted market prices are the best evidence of fair value. Due to the decline of the Company’s market capitalization in 
December 2007, the fair value was less than the net book value. If this occurs, the second step of the goodwill impairment analysis is 
conducted. The second step of the analysis compares the implied fair value of our goodwill to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of 
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, the Company recognizes an impairment loss equal to that excess amount. The determination of the fair 
value of the goodwill is determined by valuing all of the Company’s other tangible and intangible assets and using a residual approach to 
determine the fair value of goodwill. As a result of this analysis, the Company concluded that the carrying amounts of goodwill exceeded their 
implied fair values and recorded an impairment loss of approximately $23.9 million. Of the $23.9 million impairment charge recorded in 2007, 
$21.1 million relates to the Rapidscale product line and has been presented in the consolidated statement of operations as part of discontinued 
operations.  

In the year ended January 3, 2009, the Company performed an impairment analysis of its intangible assets as events and circumstances 
indicated that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. As a result of the analysis, the Company recognized and charged to discontinued 
operations an impairment charge of $17.5 million.  

20. SEGMENT INFORMATION  

As a result of the acquisition of the Legacy SGI assets, the Company reassessed its segment reporting based on the operating and 
reporting structure of the combined company. Historically, the Company concluded that it operated in a single operating segment. In 
connection with the acquisition of Legacy SGI, the Company changed its operating and reporting structure to operate in two operating 
segments, products and services. The years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 have not been presented to reflect the new operating 
segments as service revenue was immaterial in these periods.  

The Company’s operating segments are determined based upon several criteria including: the Company’s internal organizational 
structure; the manner in which the Company’s operations are managed; the criteria used by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), to evaluate segment performance; and the availability of separate financial information. The 
Company’s business is organized as two operating segments, products and services. Due to their similar economic characteristics, production 
processes, and distribution methods, the Company groups the product lines as the product operating segment and service offerings as the 
service operating segment. The Company’s CODM reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis, accompanied by 
disaggregated information about revenue by product and service for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. The 
products and services metrics are derived on a contractual basis.  
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Segment Results  

The following table presents revenues and gross margin for the Company’s products and services segments for the years ended June 25, 
2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007 and the six months ended June 26, 2009 (dollars in thousands):  
   

Revenue and cost of revenue is the only discrete financial information we have available for our segments. For this reason, we are not 
able to provide other financial results or assets by segment.  

Operating segments do not sell products to each other, and accordingly, there is no inter-segment revenue to be reported.  

The Company does not assess the performance of its geographic regions on other measures of income or expense, such as depreciation 
and amortization, operating income or net income. In addition, the Company’s assets are located primarily in the United States and are not 
allocated to any specific region. The Company does not produce reports for, or measure the performance of, its geographic regions on any 
asset-based metrics. Therefore, geographic information is presented only for revenues.  

Customer information  

For the year ended June 25, 2010, Amazon accounted for approximately 20% of our product revenues. For the year ended January 3, 
2009, Amazon and Microsoft accounted for approximately 35% and 14% of our product revenues, respectively. For the year ended 
December 29, 2007, Amazon, Microsoft and Yahoo! accounted for 16%, 36% and 12% of our product revenues, respectively. For the six 
months ended June 26, 2009, Amazon and Microsoft accounted for 30% and 13% of our product revenues, respectively. No other customers 
accounted for more than 10% of our revenue for years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2008 and the six months ended 
June 26, 2009  
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     Year ended     Six  
months  
ended  

June 26,  
2009        

June 25,  
2010     

January 3, 
2009     

December 29, 

 
2007     

Revenue           

Products     $ 256,007      $ 247,430      $ 350,684      $ 77,987    
Services       147,710        —          —          24,790    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ 403,717      $ 247,430      $ 350,684      $ 102,777    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Cost of revenue           

Products     $ 229,913      $ 217,992      $ 303,440      $ 78,132    
Services       84,215        —          —          16,868    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ 314,128      $ 217,992      $ 303,440      $ 95,000    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Gross profit:           

Products     $ 26,094      $ 29,438      $ 47,244      $ (145 )  
Services       63,495        —          —          7,922    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Total     $ 89,589      $ 29,438      $ 47,244      $ 7,777    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Gross margin:           

Products       10.2 %      11.9 %      13.5 %      (0.2 )%  
Services       43.0 %      —          —          32.0 %  
Total       22.2 %      11.9 %      13.5 %      7.6 %  
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Geographic Information  

Revenue from both domestic and international customers (based on the address of the customer on the invoice) was as follows (in 
thousands):  
   

No individual foreign country’s revenue was material for disclosure purposes.  

Approximately 91% and 88% of the Company’s property and equipment was located in the United States as of June 25, 2010 and 
June 26, 2009, respectively.  

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  

The Company owns approximately 10% of the outstanding stock of SGI Japan, which was acquired in the acquisition of Legacy SGI, and 
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer is a member of SGI Japan’s Board of Directors. The investment in SGI Japan of $5.0 million is 
accounted for under the cost method and is included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Product revenues and 
cost of product revenues from sales to SGI Japan are as follows (in thousands):  
   

Amounts receivable from and due to SGI Japan are as follows (in thousands):  
   

There were no transactions with SGI Japan during the years ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007 as the acquisition of Legacy 
SGI was finalized on May 8, 2009 (Note 3).  

22. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES  

The Company has issued financial guarantees to cover rent on leased facilities and equipment, to government authorities for VAT and 
other taxes, and to various other parties to support payments in advance of future delivery on goods and services. The majority of the 
Company’s financial guarantees have terms of one year or more. The maximum potential obligation under financial guarantees at June 25, 
2010 was $4.4 million for  
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     Year ended    Six months 

 
ended  

June 26,  
2009      

June 25,  
2010    

January 3, 
2009    

December 29, 
 

2007    

Domestic revenue     $ 301,837    $ 227,141    $ 330,958    $ 76,880 
International revenue       101,880      20,289      19,726      25,897 

                            

Total revenue     $ 403,717    $ 247,430    $ 350,684    $ 102,777 
                            

     

Year ended 
 

June 25,  
2010    

Six months 

 
ended  
June  

26, 2009 

Product revenue     $ 18,890    $ 145 
              

Cost of product revenue     $ 13,829    $ 95 
              

     

June 25, 
 

2010    

June 26, 

 
2009 

Amounts receivable from SGI Japan     $ 8,845    $ 349 
              

Amounts due to SGI Japan     $ 127    $ 109 
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which the Company has $3.9 million of assets held as collateral. The full amount of the assets held as collateral are included in short-term and 
long-term restricted cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheets.  

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

Leases  

The Company leases its facilities and office buildings under operating leases that expire at various dates through March 2017. Certain 
leases also contain escalation and renewal option clauses calling for increased rents. Where a lease contains an escalation clause or a 
concession such as a rent holiday, rent expense is recognized using the straight line method over the term of the lease. In addition to the 
minimum future lease commitments presented below, the leases generally require that the Company pay property taxes, insurance, maintenance 
and repair costs. Also, under certain leases, the Company is granted an option to early terminate the lease by providing an advance notice and 
paying an early termination fee. The Company does not intend early termination of the leases and hence the future minimum operating lease 
commitments disclosed herein consist of the total lease payments through the end of the initial lease terms.  

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows (in thousands):  
   

Rent expense for the years ended June 25, 2010, January 3, 2009, and December 29, 2007, and the six months ended June 26, 2009 was 
approximately $6.8 million, $2.5 million, $2.2 million, and $2.0 million, respectively.  

Purchase Commitments  

In connection with supplier agreements, the Company has agreements to purchase certain units of inventory and non-inventory items 
through 2010. As of June 25, 2010, these remaining non-cancelable commitments were approximately $16.9 million of which $15.0 million 
will be paid in the next 12 months.  

Future purchase commitments are as follows (in thousands):  
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Fiscal Year      

2011     $ 6,201 
2012       5,093 
2013       4,168 
2014       2,222 
2015       424 
2016 and thereafter       46 

       

Total     $ 18,154 
       

Fiscal Year      

2011     $ 14,994 
2012       1,871 

       

Total     $ 16,865 
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Indemnification Agreements  

The Company enters into standard indemnification agreements with its customers and certain other business partners in the ordinary 
course of business. These agreements include provisions for indemnifying the customer against any claim brought by a third party to the extent 
any such claim alleges that the Company’s product infringes a patent, copyright or trademark, or misappropriates a trade secret, of that third-
party. The agreements generally limit the scope of the available remedies in a variety of industry-standard methods, including, but not limited 
to, product usage and geography-based limitations, a right to control the defense or settlement of any claim, and a right to replace or modify the 
infringing products to make them non-infringing. The Company has not incurred significant expenses related to these indemnification 
agreements and no material claims for such indemnifications were outstanding as of June 25, 2010. As a result, the Company believes the 
estimated fair value of these indemnification agreements, if any, to be immaterial; accordingly, no liability has been recorded with respect to 
such indemnifications as of June 25, 2010.  

Contingencies  

The Company may, from time to time, be involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of 
business. The Company records a provision for a liability when management believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred 
and it can reasonably estimate the amount of the loss. The Company believes it has adequate provisions for any such matters. The Company 
reviews these provisions at least quarterly and adjusts these provisions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal 
counsel and other information and events pertaining to a particular case.  

On August 10, 2005, the Legacy SGI German subsidiary, Silicon Graphics GmbH, filed a lawsuit with the LG Munich, a Higher 
Regional Court in Germany, against T-Systems International GmbH (“TSI”), a systems integrator, relating to a dispute regarding whether 
acceptance criteria were met with regard to a Legacy SGI system delivered in the spring of 2003. The Company is seeking full payment for the 
system of €4.6 million ($5.6 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010). On September 21, 2005, TSI filed a counterclaim 
contesting Legacy SGI’s claim and alleging damages of €9.0 million ($11.0 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010), plus 
interest since April 2004, which exceeds the Company’s contractual limit of liability of €2.0 million ($2.5 million based on the conversion rate 
on June 25, 2010). On December 7, 2005, Legacy SGI responded to TSI’s counterclaim and filed a motion seeking an additional €3.8 million 
($4.7 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010) for lost profit relating to maintenance services. On August 9, 2005, the Legacy 
SGI German subsidiary, Silicon Graphics GmbH, filed a lawsuit with the District Court of Munich I (Landericht München I), a Regional Court 
in Germany, against Media Broadcast GmbH (formerly T-Systems International GmbH), a systems integrator, relating to a dispute regarding 
whether acceptance criteria were met with regard to a Legacy SGI system delivered in the spring of 2003. On April 16, 2010, the Company 
settled its dispute with Media Broadcast GmbH. Under the settlement agreement, Media Broadcast GmbH paid the Company €1.9 million 
(approximately $2.3 million) plus value-added tax on May 7, 2010. The Company recorded a benefit from this transaction in the year ending 
June 25, 2010 as acquisition-related gain on the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.  

In fiscal 2005, as a result of anonymous allegations and allegations by an ex-employee, Legacy SGI conducted an internal investigation 
into whether certain systems were delivered to an entity in China in possible violation of U.S. export laws. Legacy SGI voluntarily shared 
information with respect to the investigation with the U.S. Department of Commerce. The Company cannot be assured that the Department or 
other agencies of the U.S. government will not institute any proceedings against it in the future. In addition, from time to time, the Company 
receives inquiries from regulatory agencies informally requesting information or documentation. There can be no assurance in any given case 
that such informal review will not lead to further proceedings involving the Company in the future.  
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On May 1, 2007, Legacy SGI received a legal notice from counsel to Bharat Heavy Electricals Ltd. (“BHEL”), located in India, alleging 
delay in and failure to deliver products and technical problems with its hardware and software in relation to the establishment of a facility in 
Hyderabad. The Company assumed this claim in connection with its acquisition of Legacy SGI assets, and is currently engaged in arbitration. 
On January 21, 2008, BHEL filed its statement of claim against Silicon Graphics Systems (India) Pvt. Ltd. for a sum of Indian Rupee (“INR”) 
78,478,200 ($1.7 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010) plus interest and costs. On February 29, 2008, the Company filed its 
reply as well as a counter claim for a sum of INR 27,453,007 ($0.6 million based on the conversion rate on June 25, 2010) plus interest and 
costs. The proceeding has commenced but the hearing, scheduled for June 2010 could not take place and the next rescheduled hearing date is 
awaited from the Arbitor. The Company cannot currently predict the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a reasonable range of 
potential loss, if any.  

On January 16, 2009, the Company and certain of its former officers were sued in the United States District Court for the Northern 
District of California, in a matter captioned In Re Rackable Systems, Inc. Securities Litigation, Case No. C-09-0222-CW . On April 16, 2009, 
the Court appointed Elroy Whittaker as Lead Plaintiff and the Law Firm of Glancy Binkow & Goldberg LLP as Lead Plaintiff’s Counsel. Lead 
Plaintiff filed a consolidated amended complaint (the “Amended Complaint”) on June 15, 2009. The Amended Complaint asserts claims for 
violations of (i) Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, and (ii) Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. The 
allegations relate to the drops in the Company’s share price in early 2007 relating to its earnings reports for 2006 and Q4 2006. On August 13, 
2009, the Company and its former officers filed a Motion to Dismiss the Amended Complaint (the “Motion to Dismiss”), which Lead Plaintiff 
opposed. On January 13, 2010, the Court entered an order granting the Motion to Dismiss, which dismissed the Amended Complaint with leave 
to amend. On February 3, 2010, Lead Plaintiff filed a second amended complaint asserting the same claims as the amended complaint. On 
April 2, 2010, Lead Plaintiff filed a stipulated proposed order requesting leave to file a supplemental second amended complaint, which 
substituted new Lead Plaintiffs into the action but otherwise did not change the allegations of the second amended complaint. On April 5, 2010, 
the Court granted the stipulated order and entered the supplemental second amended complaint. On April 9, 2010, the Company and its former 
officers filed a Motion to Dismiss the Supplemental Second Amended Complaint. The Court granted the Motion to Dismiss with prejudice on 
August 27, 2010, and judgment was entered pursuant to the Court’s order on August 31, 2010. Plaintiffs have the right to appeal the order 
dismissing the action with prejudice until 30 days after the entry of judgment. The Company cannot currently predict the outcome of this 
dispute nor determine the amount or a reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  

On March 10, 2009, the Company and certain of its present and former directors and officers were sued in the Superior Court of the State 
of California for Alameda County, in a shareholder derivative lawsuit captioned Milo v. Barton, et al, Case No. R30944-0474 . The complaint 
alleges that the defendants engaged in various acts and omissions that resulted in the drops of our share price in early 2007, and asserts claims 
for alleged breaches of defendants’ fiduciary duties, waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment. The complaint seeks compensatory 
damages in an unspecified amount, unspecified equitable or injunctive relief, disgorgement of unspecified compensation earned by the 
defendants, and an award of an unspecified amount for plaintiff’s costs and attorneys fees. By stipulated order dated April 13, 2009, this action 
was stayed pending resolution of the pleadings in the federal class action. Because the federal class action was dismissed with prejudice, 
Plaintiff now has 60 days from the date of the dismissal to file an amended complaint or notify defendants that Plaintiff will not file an 
amended complaint. Defendants will then be required to move to dismiss or otherwise respond to the complaint or amended complaint, as 
applicable, within 40 days after an amended complaint is filed or notice is given that Plaintiff will not amend. The Company cannot currently 
predict the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  
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On December 3, 2009, the Company initiated an arbitration proceeding captioned Silicon Graphics Intl. Corp., f/k/a Rackable Systems, 
Inc. v. Thomas Weisel Partners Group, Inc., et al., FINRA Arb. No. 09-06849 , against its former investment advisor Thomas Weisel Partners 
LLC (“TWP”), as well as TWP’s parent company Thomas Wiesel Partners Group, Inc., to remedy TWP’s alleged mismanagement and 
wrongful advice pertaining to the Company’s investments in allegedly unsuitable and illiquid investments called “auction rate 
securities” (“ARS”). Due to market conditions, the ARS at issue are still held by the Company, as described elsewhere herein. The Company 
filed its arbitration claim with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), and asserts various causes of action including breach of 
fiduciary duty, unsuitability, and breach of contract. The Company is seeking remedies including rescission; restitution; disgorgement; and 
compensatory, consequential, and punitive damages, and requests a damages award in excess of $9.0 million, exclusive of punitive damages 
and other potential relief. TWP filed its Answer on February 4, 2010. The parties have commenced discovery and the arbitration is currently 
scheduled to commence in February 2011. The Company cannot currently predict the outcome of this dispute nor determine the amount or a 
reasonable range of potential loss, if any.  

Third parties in the past have asserted, and may in the future assert, intellectual property infringement claims against the Company, and 
such future claims, if proved, could require the Company to pay substantial damages or to redesign its existing products or pay fees to obtain 
cross-license agreements. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce or defend the Company’s intellectual property rights, to protect 
the Company’s trade secrets or to determine the validity and scope of its proprietary rights or the proprietary rights of others. Any such 
litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of management resources, either of which could harm the Company’s business, 
operating results and financial condition. Further, many of the Company’s current and potential competitors have the ability to dedicate 
substantially greater resources to enforcing and defending their intellectual property rights than the Company.  

The Company is not aware of any pending disputes, including those disputes and settlements described above, that would be likely to 
have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. However, litigation is subject to 
inherent uncertainties and costs and unfavorable outcomes could occur. An unfavorable outcome could include the payment of monetary 
damages, cash or other settlement, or an injunction prohibiting it from selling one or more products. If an unfavorable resolution were to occur, 
there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash flows 
of the period in which the resolution occurs or on future periods.  

Other  

During the six months ended June 26, 2009, the Company reached a settlement with a customer over a dispute on the terms of a statement 
of work under which this customer agreed to pay the Company $5.0 million.  
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24. TRANSITION PERIOD FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

The following table presents certain Consolidated Statement of Operations data for the six months ended June 26, 2009 and for the six 
months ended June 28, 2008 (unaudited) (in thousands except per share data):  
   

25. SUBSEQUENT EVENT  

On August 31, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the Company to resume its stock repurchase program previously 
authorized by the Board of Directors in February 2009. Under the program, the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $40.0 million of its 
common stock and the duration of the program is open ended. The program may be discontinued at any time by the Board of Directors. As of 
August 31, 2010, we have $39.0 million in remaining authorization for the stock repurchase program.  
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     For the six months ended   

     
June 26,  

2009     

June 28,  
2008  

(unaudited)   
Revenue     $ 102,777      $ 143,569    
Gross profit       7,777        24,410    
Loss from operations       (17,710 )      (9,500 )  
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes       (16,433 )      (6,624 )  
Income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations       (2,242 )      1,526    
Net loss from continuing operations       (14,191 )      (8,150 )  
Loss from discontinued operations       (20 )      (23,487 )  
Income tax benefit       —          (2,941 )  
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax       (20 )      (20,546 )  
Net loss     $ (14,211 )    $ (28,696 )  

       

  

      

  

Net loss per share, basic and diluted:       

Continuing operations     $ (0.48 )    $ (0.28 )  
Discontinued operations       —          (0.70 )  

       
  

      
  

Basic and diluted net loss per share     $ (0.48 )    $ (0.98 )  
       

  

      

  

Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share       29,798        29,429    
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26. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUD ITED)  

On June 19, 2009, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a change in the Company’s fiscal year end from the Saturday closest to 
December 31 of each year to the last Friday in June of each year. Accordingly, the financial periods presented are defined as follows: (i) the 
year ended June 25, 2010; (ii) the six months ended June 26, 2009; and (iii) the year ended January 3, 2009 (in thousands, except per share 
amounts).  
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   Fiscal Quarter Ended   

   
June 25,  
2010 (1)     

March 26,  
2010 (1)     

December 25, 
 

2009 (1)     

September 25, 
 

2009 (1)   

Revenue     $ 101,637      $ 107,820      $ 94,137      $ 100,123    
Gross profit       19,615        28,920        18,686        22,368    
Net loss from continuing operations       (27,670 )      (20,262 )      (23,127 )      (17,802 )  
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax       63        82        84        180    
Net loss     $ (27,607 )    $ (20,180 )    $ (23,043 )    $ (17,622 )  

       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:           

Continued operations     $ (0.91 )    $ (0.67 )    $ (0.77 )    $ (0.60 )  
Discontinued operations       —          —          —          0.01    

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net loss per share—basic and diluted     $ (0.91 )    $ (0.67 )    $ (0.77 )    $ (0.59 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Shares used in the calculation of net loss per share:           

Basic and diluted       30,121        30,097        29,952        29,893    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  

   Fiscal Quarter Ended   

   
June 26,  
2009 (1)     

April 4,  
2009   

Revenue     $ 58,419      $ 44,358    
Gross profit       5,078        2,699    
Net loss from continuing operations       (597 )      (13,594 )  
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax       (217 )      197    
Net loss     $ (814 )    $ (13,397 )  

       

  

      

  

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:       

Continued operations     $ (0.02 )    $ (0.46 )  
Discontinued operations       (0.01 )      0.01    

       
  

      
  

Net loss per share—basic and diluted     $ (0.03 )    $ (0.45 )  
       

  

      

  

Shares used in the calculation of net loss per share:       

Basic and diluted       29,794        29,787    
       

  

      

  

st 
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   Fiscal Quarter Ended   

   

January 3, 
 

2009     

September 27, 
 

2008     
June 28,  

2008     

March 29, 
 

2008   

Revenue     $ 38,764      $ 65,097      $ 75,768      $ 67,801    
Gross profit (loss)       (6,010 )      11,038        6,829        17,581    
Net loss from continuing operations       (18,172 )      (4,965 )      (10,759 )      2,609    
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax       (1,371 )      (1,024 )      (17,171 )      (3,375 )  
Net loss     $ (19,543 )    $ (5,989 )    $ (27,930 )    $ (766 )  

       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:           

Continued operations     $ (0.61 )    $ (0.17 )    $ (0.37 )    $ 0.09    
Discontinued operations       (0.05 )      (0.03 )      (0.58 )      (0.12 )  

       
  

      
  

      
  

      
  

Net loss per share—basic and diluted     $ (0.66 )    $ (0.20 )    $ (0.95 )    $ (0.03 )  
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Shares used in the calculation of net loss per share:           

Basic       29,790        29,502        29,419        29,352    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

Diluted       29,790        29,502        29,419        29,453    
       

  

      

  

      

  

      

  

  

(1) On May 8, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Legacy SGI, excluding certain assets 
unrelated to the ongoing business, including certain of Legacy SGI’s non-U.S. subsidiaries and operations and assumed certain liabilities. 



Table of Contents  

SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP.  

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
(In thousands)  

   

   
110  

     Year ended     
Six months  

ended June 26, 
 

2009      

June 25, 

 
2010     

January 3, 

 
2009     

December 29, 
 

2007     

Allowance for doubtful accounts:           

Beginning Balance     $ 859      $ 434      $ 328      $ 470 
Charges       844        66        299        389 
Reduction and Write-offs       (57 )      (30 )      (193 )      —   

       
  

      
  

      
  

      

Ending Balance     $ 1,646      $ 470      $ 434      $ 859 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  

None.  

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures  

Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), as of the close of the year ended June 25, 2010, we carried out an evaluation, under the 
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-15(e). Disclosure controls and 
procedures are controls and procedures designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and 
Exchange Commission rules and forms, including, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to 
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our 
management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As discussed in more detail below, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of June 25, 2010.  

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not 
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risks that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial 
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting based on the criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. In performing the assessment, our 
management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 25, 2010.  

The Company’s financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, 
independent registered public accounting firm, as indicated in their report on page 65. Deloitte & Touche LLP has also provided an attestation 
report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

There have been changes in our internal control over financial reporting in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 that have materially affected, 
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  
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Remediation of Material Weaknesses in Inventory Valuation  

During the year ended June 25, 2010, our management completed the corrective actions to remediate the material weakness in inventory 
valuation discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 3, 2009. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, our 
management’s testing of controls over inventory valuation indicated that the corrective actions put in place to remediate this material weakness 
have been implemented and are operating effectively. Therefore, we believe the previously reported material weakness related inventory 
valuation has been remediated as of June 25, 2010. In fiscal 2010, we completed the following remedial actions:  
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•   We automated the key components of our calculation for the provision for excess and obsolete inventory and purchase price 

variances;  
  •   We improved our review processes for various calculations relating to inventory valuation; and  

  
•   We improved the quality and timing of our accounting close process and financial reporting to allow for increased preparation and 

review time.  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of  
Silicon Graphics International Corp.  
Fremont, California  

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Silicon Graphics International Corp. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as 
of June 25, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial 
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal 
executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, 
management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.  

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 25, 2010, 
based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission.  

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended June 25, 2010 of the Company and 
our report dated September 8, 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial 
statement schedule.  

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, California  
September 8, 2010  
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Item 9B. Other Information  

On July 27, 2010 the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved a short term incentive plan (the “2011 Plan”) for our 
2011 fiscal year, to succeed the 2010 corporate bonus plan previously disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on 
August 10, 2009.  

The 2011 Plan is an integral part of compensation for our employees that are at the level of director or above, which includes our 
executive officers. The 2011 Plan provides that quarterly bonuses are payable, subject to the Compensation Committee’s discretion, based upon 
(1) achievement of certain non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin performance targets established by the Compensation Committee, 
and (2) target bonus amounts for each eligible individual established by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee 
established annual target bonus amounts, to be determined and paid on a quarterly basis, for the 2011 Plan, which include bonus amounts 
payable to the Company’s named executive officers (as defined in Item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission). The Committee established $450,000 as the annual target bonus amount for Mark Barrenechea, our Chief Executive 
Officer; $175,000 for James Wheat, our Chief Financial Officer; and $124,000 for Maurice Leibenstern, our Senior Vice President, General 
Counsel and Corporate Secretary.  

Quarterly bonus amounts under the 2011 Plan will be subject to the Compensation Committee’s discretion, and will depend on the 
specific levels of actual non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin attained. Such quarterly bonuses would be “earned” and payable 
within a range of respective percentages that includes a threshold requirement of 50% and a maximum payout cap of 150%. Failure to meet the 
threshold requirement would result in no quarterly bonus amount being paid.  

Further, at the end of fiscal year 2011, the Compensation Committee will compare the aggregate percentage of all quarterly bonus 
amounts paid during the fiscal year, with the actual non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin attained for the entire 2011 fiscal year, 
and determine whether a “true-up” payment is necessary to prevent the actual quarterly payouts from negatively impacting the annual payout 
had the plan been measured for the full year.  
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PART III  

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections tentatively entitled “Proposal 1—Election of 
Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Code of Conduct and Ethics” and “Information Regarding the 
Board of Directors and Corporate Governance” contained in our proxy statement for our 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy 
Statement”) provided however, that the information required by this Item with respect to our executive officers is contained in Item 1 of Part I 
of this Annual Report under the heading “Executive Officers.”  

Item 11. Executive Compensation  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the sections tentatively entitled “Compensation 
Committee” in “Proposal 1—Election of Directors,” and “Executive Compensation and Related Information,” of in the Proxy Statement.  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the section tentatively entitled “Security Ownership of 
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” of the Proxy Statement.  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the section tentatively entitled “Certain Relationships and 
Related Transactions” and “Proposal 1—Election of Directors” in the Proxy Statement.  

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services  

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference from the section tentatively entitled “Principal Accountant Fees 
and Services” in the Proxy Statement.  
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PART IV  

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules  

(a) 1. Financial Statements  

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Financial Statement Schedules  

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information is shown in 
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.  

3. Exhibits  

See the Exhibit Index which follows the signature page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.  
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SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

Dated: September 8, 2010  

POWER OF ATTORNEY  

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Mark J. 
Barrenechea , James D. Wheat and Maurice Leibenstern, and each of them, acting individually, as his or her attorney-in-fact, each with full 
power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all 
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do 
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith and about the premises, as fully to all 
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any 
of them, or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP. 

By:   /s/    J AMES D. W HEAT          

  
James D. Wheat  

Chief Financial Officer  

Signature    Title   Date 

/s/    M ARK J. B ARRENECHEA          
Mark J. Barrenechea     

Chief Executive Officer and Director  
(Principal Executive Officer)   

September 8, 2010 

/s/    J AMES D W HEAT          
James D. Wheat     

Chief Financial Officer  
(Principal Financial Officer)   

September 8, 2010 

/s/    T IMOTHY L. P EBWORTH          
Timothy L. Pebworth     

Vice President and Principal Accounting  
Officer  

(Principal Accounting Officer)   

September 8, 2010 

/s/    C HARLES M. B OESENBERG          
Charles M. Boesenberg     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 

/s/    G ARY A. G RIFFITHS          
Gary A. Griffiths     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 

/s/    M ICHAEL W. H AGEE          
Michael W. Hagee     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 

/s/    D OUGLAS R. K ING          
Douglas R. King     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 

/s/    H AGI S CHWARTZ          
Hagi Schwartz     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 

/s/    R ONALD D. V ERDOORN          
Ronald D. Verdoorn     

Director 
  

September 8, 2010 
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EXHIBIT INDEX  
   

   
118  

Exhibit 
Number   

   
Exhibit Description  

   Incorporated by Reference    
Filing Date 

   Filed  
Herewith       Form    Ex. No.    File No.       

  2.1    

   

Asset Acquisition Agreement, dated December 23, 2002, by and 
between GNJ, Inc. (f.k.a. Rackable Systems, Inc.) and 
Registrant    

S-1 

   

2.1 

   

333-122576 

   

2/4/2005 

   

  2.2    

   

Share Purchase Agreement dated as of August 29, 2006, by and 
among Rackable Systems, Inc., Rackable Systems Canada 
Acquisition ULC, Terrascale Technologies Inc. and the other 
parties identified on Schedule A thereto    

8-K 

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

8/30/2006 

   

  2.3    

   

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009, by and 
among Silicon Graphics, Inc., the subsidiaries of Silicon 
Graphics, Inc. listed on Schedule I thereto, and Rackable 
Systems, Inc.    

8-K 

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

4/1/2009 

   

  2.4    

   

Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 
31, 2009, by and among Silicon Graphics, Inc., the subsidiaries 
of Silicon Graphics, Inc. listed on Schedule I thereto, and 
Rackable Systems, Inc., dated as of April 30, 2009.    

8-K 

   

2.1 

   

000-51333 

   

5/5/2009 

   

  2.5    

   

Secured Creditor Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of 
February 23, 2010, by and between Silicon Valley Bank and 
Silicon Graphics International Corp.    

8-K 

   

2.5 

   

000-51333 

   

3/1/2010 

   

  3.1       Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation    10-Q    3.1    000-51333    8/12/2005    

  3.2       Amended and Restated Bylaws    8-K    3.2    000-51333    3/7/2008    

  3.3       Certificate of Ownership and Merger    8-K    3.3    000-51333    5/21/2009    

  4.1       Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3                

  4.2       Form of Specimen Stock Certificate    8-K    4.2    000-51333    5/21/2009    

10.1    

   

Amendment to Registration Agreement and Founder 
Repurchase and Rights Agreement, dated November 16, 2005, 
by and among Registrant, Rackable Investment LLC, Parthenon 
Investors II, L.P. and the founders named therein.    

S-1A/1 

   

10.7 

   

333-129573 

   

11/17/2005 

   

10.2 *  
   

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registrant with 
each of its directors and certain executive officers.    

S-1 
   

10.7 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.3 *     2002 Stock Option Plan and form of related agreements.    S-1    10.8    333-122576    3/30/2005    
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Exhibit 
Number   

   
Exhibit Description  

   Incorporated by Reference    
Filing Date 

   Filed  
Herewith       Form    Ex. No.    File No.       

10.4*       2005 Equity Incentive Plan.    S-1    10.9    333-122576    2/4/2005    

10.5*       2005 Non-Employee Directors’  Stock Option Plan.    S-1    10.10    333-122576    2/4/2005    

10.6*       2005 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.    S-1    10.11    333-122576    2/4/2005    

10.7    
   

Lease Agreement, dated as of November 27, 2001, by and between the 
Registrant and EOP-Industrial Portfolio, L.L.C.    

S-1 
   

10.12 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.8    
   

First Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated as of April 22, 2004, by and 
between the Registrant and EOP-Industrial Portfolio, L.L.C.    

S-1 
   

10.13 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.9    

   

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated October 26, 2005, by and 
between Registrant and RREEF America Reit II Corp. (as successor in 
interest to EOP-Industrial Portfolio, L.L.C.).    

S-1 

   

10.16 

   

333-129573 

   

11/9/2005 

   

10.10 *  
   

Employment Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2002, by and between 
the Registrant and Giovanni Coglitore.    

S-1 
   

10.17 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.11 *  
   

First Amendment to the Employment Agreement, dated November 16, 
2005, by and between Registrant and Giovanni Coglitore.    

S-1A/1 
   

10.27 
   

333-129573 
   

11/9/2005 
   

10.12 *     Executive Compensation Summary.    10-K    10.18    000-51333    3/19/2009    

10.13       Director Compensation Arrangements.    10-K    10.31    000-51333    2/28/2007    

10.14    
   

Promissory Note dated December 31, 2004, issued by the Registrant to 
Giovanni Coglitore.    

S-1 
   

10.29 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.15    
   

Stock Repurchase Agreement, dated February 2, 2005, between the 
Registrant and Giovanni Coglitore.    

S-1 
   

10.32 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.16 *     Offer letter, dated August 18, 2004, from the Registrant to Hagi Schwartz.    S-1    10.35    333-122576    2/4/2005    

10.17 *  
   

Offer letter, dated November 4, 2004, from the Registrant to Gary 
Griffiths.    

S-1 
   

10.37 
   

333-122576 
   

2/4/2005 
   

10.18 *  
   

Offer letter dated March 18, 2005, from the Registrant to Ronald D. 
Verdoorn.    

S-1A/2 
   

10.42 
   

333-122576 
   

5/2/2005 
   

10.19    

   

Stockholders’ Voting Agreement by and among the Registrant, Rackable 
Investment LLC, GNJ, Inc., and the founders named therein dated 
December 23, 2002.    

S-1 

   

10.40 

   

333-122576 

   

2/4/2005 

   

10.20 *  
   

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 New Recruit Equity 
Incentive Plan.    

8-K 
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

1/30/2006 
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Exhibit 
Number   

   
Exhibit Description  

   Incorporated by Reference    
Filing Date 

   Filed  
Herewith       Form    Ex. No.    File No.       

10.21    

   

Amendment to Registration Agreement, dated February 28, 2006, by 
and between Rackable Systems, Inc., Rackable Investment LLC, 
Parthenon Investors II, L.P. and the founders named therein.    

S-1/A1 

   

10.8 

   

333-131977 

   

3/1/2006 

   

10.22    
   

Net Lease Agreement dated June 26, 2006 by and among Rackable 
Systems, Inc. and Fremont Landing Investors, LLC.    

8-K 
   

10.62 
   

000-51333 
   

8/25/2006 
   

10.23 *     Amended and Restated 2006 New Recruit Equity Inventive Plan.    10-K    10.48    000-51333    2/28/2007    

10.24 *  
   

Executive Change in Control Benefit Plan and Form of Participation 
Notices.    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

9/5/2006 
   

10.25 *  
   

Form of Option Agreement and Grant Notices under the 2005 
Equity Incentive Plan.    

8-K 
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

9/5/2006 
   

10.26 *  
   

Form of Stock Bonus Award Agreement and Grant Notice under the 
2005 Equity Incentive Plan.    

8-K 
   

10.3 
   

000-51333 
   

9/5/2006 
   

10.27 *  
   

Form of Stock Option Agreement and Grant Notice with Outside 
Directors under the 2002 Stock Option Plan.    

10-Q 
   

10.10 
   

000-51333 
   

11/14/2006 
   

10.28 *  
   

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement under the 2005 
Non-Employee Directors’  Stock Option Plan.    

10-Q 
   

10.11 
   

000-51333 
   

11/14/2006 
   

10.29 *  
   

Retention Agreement, dated January 9, 2007, by and between 
Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni Coglitore.    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

1/11/2007 
   

10.30 *  
   

Retention Bonus Agreement, dated September 12, 2006, by and 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni Coglitore.    

8-K 
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

1/11/2007 
   

10.31 *  

   

First Amendment to Retention Bonus Agreement, dated January 9, 
2007, by and between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni 
Coglitore.    

8-K 

   

10.3 

   

000-51333 

   

1/11/2007 

   

10.32 *  
   

Offer Letter, dated August 21, 2006, by and between the Registrant 
and Charles Boesenberg.    

10-K 
   

10.6 
   

000-51333 
   

2/28/2007 
   

10.33 *  
   

Offer Letter, dated November 17, 2006, by and between the 
Registrant and Mark Barrenechea.    

10-K 
   

10.61 
   

000-51333 
   

2/28/2007 
   

10.34 *     Change in Control Severance Benefit Plan.    8-K    10.1    000-51333    10/6/2006    

10.35 *     Management Bonus Plan for the Second Half of 2007.    8-K    —      000-51333    9/8/2007    
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Exhibit  
Number   

   
Exhibit Description  

   Incorporated by Reference    
Filing Date 

   Filed  
Herewith       Form    Ex. No.    File No.       

10.36    
   

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 28, 2007, by 
and between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni Coglitore.    

10-Q 
   

10.7 
   

000-51333 
   

8/9/2007 
   

10.37    
   

Employment Agreement, dated August 22, 2007, by and between 
Rackable Systems, Inc. and Maurice Leibenstern    

10-Q 
   

10.5 
   

000-51333 
   

11/8/2007 
   

10.38    
   

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated September 19, 2007, 
by and between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Maurice Leibenstern    

10-Q 
   

10.6 
   

000-51333 
   

11/8/2007 
   

10.39    
   

Employment Agreement, dated May 24, 2007, between Rackable Systems 
Inc and Mark J. Barrenechea    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

5/30/2007 
   

10.40 *     Officer Compensation Changes in First Quarter 2007    8-K    —      000-51333    1/31/2007    

10.41 *  
   

Compensation arrangements in connection with April 29, 2007 
management changes    

8-K 
   

—   
   

000-51333 
   

5/1/2007 
   

10.42    
   

Separation Agreement dated May 23, 2007, between Rackable Systems, 
Inc. and Todd Ford    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

5/28/2007 
   

10.43 *  
   

Form of 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice 
and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

6/8/2007 
   

10.44 *     Cash compensation arrangements with the non-employee Directors    10-Q    10.6    000-51333    8/9/2007    

10.45 *  
   

Offer Letter, dated January 29, 2008, by and between the Registrant and 
Douglas R. King.                

X 

10.46 *  
   

Offer Letter, dated January 29, 2008, by and between the Registrant and 
Michael W. Hagee.                

X 

10.47 *  
   

Offer Letter made by Rackable Systems, Inc. to Jonathan J. Skoglund, 
dated October 14, 2008    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

11/28/08 
   

10.48 *  
   

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 31, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Mark J. Barrenechea    

8-K 
   

10.3 
   

000-51333 
   

1/6/09 
   

10.49 *  
   

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated November 17, 
2008, between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Maurice Leibenstern    

10-K 
   

10.67 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
   

10.50 *  
   

First Amendment to Retention Agreement, dated December 31, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni Coglitore    

8-K 
   

10.4 
   

000-51333 
   

1/6/09 
   

10.51 *  
   

Employment Agreement, dated March 31, 2008, between Rackable 
Systems, Inc. and James Wheat    

10-K 
   

10.69 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
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Exhibit 
Number   

  
Exhibit Description  

   Incorporated by Reference    Filing  
Date 

   Filed  
Herewith      Form    Ex. No.    File No.       

10.52 *  
  

Amendment #1 to Employment Agreement, dated December 31, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and James Wheat    

10-K 
   

10.70 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
   

10.53 *  
  

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 31, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and James Wheat    

8-K 
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

1/6/09 
   

10.54 *  
  

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated December 30, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Giovanni Coglitore    

8-K 
   

10.1 
   

000-51333 
   

1/6/09 
   

10.55 *  
  

Offer Letter made by Rackable Systems, Inc. to Anthony Carrozza, dated 
January 24, 2008.    

10-K 
   

10.73 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
   

10.56 *  
  

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 23, 2008 
between, between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Anthony Carrozza    

10-K 
   

10.74 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
   

10.57 *  
  

Third Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 23, 2008, 
between Rackable Systems, Inc. and Maurice Leibenstern    

10-K 
   

10.75 
   

000-51333 
   

3/19/09 
   

10.58 *    Corporate Bonus Plan.    8-K    5.02    000-51333    2/12/09    

10.59 *  
  

Offer Letter made by Rackable Systems, Inc. to Tim Pebworth, dated May 1, 
2009.    

8-K 
   

10.2 
   

000-51333 
   

5/14/09 
   

10.60 *    2010 Corporate Bonus Plan.    8-K    —      000-51333    8/14/09    

10.61 *    Director Compensation Arrangement.    10-Q    10.86    000-51333    11/4/09    

10.62 *  
  

Separation Agreement dated June 23, 2010, between Silicon Graphics 
International Corp. and Giovanni Coglitore.                

X 

10.63 *    2011 Short Term Incentive Plan                X 

10.64 *    Compensation arrangement with named executive officers    8-K    —      000-51333    2/4/10    

21.1      Subsidiaries of the Company.                X 

23.1      Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.                X 

24.1      Power of Attorney. (Included on the signature page hereto).                

31.1      Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).                X 

31.2      Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).                X 
32.1 **  

  

Certifications required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and Section 1350 
of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350)                

X 
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* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
** The certification attached as Exhibit 32.1 accompanies the Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 

Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed “filed” by Silicon Graphics International Corp. for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities 
Exchange 



Exhibit 10.45 

46600 Landing Parkway 
Fremont, California 94538 

P. 408.240.8300 
F. 408.321.0293 

www.rackable.com 

January 29, 2008  

Mr. Doug King  
   

Dear Doug:  

I am very happy to offer you a position on the Board of Directors of Rackable Systems (the “Board”).  

All members of Rackable Systems’ Board receive an annual cash retainer of $45,000 paid quarterly. Additional cash retainers are paid to 
Board members who serve as chairman or members of Board committees.  

In addition, upon appointment to the Board you will be granted a non-statutory stock option to purchase 30,000 shares of Rackable 
Systems’ common stock. This option will vest over a four year period commencing on the date of your appointment, with 1/48th vesting per 
month of service. In addition, all Board members are granted a stock option to purchase 2,833 shares of Rackable Systems’ common stock 
upon their re-election to Board at each year’s annual stockholders meeting.  

Rackable Systems will also reimburse you for your travel expenses in attending Board and committee meetings.  

If the terms of this letter are acceptable to you, please confirm to me your willingness to serve on Rackable Systems’ Board. Upon your 
agreement, I will submit your nomination to the Board for formal consideration. We look forward to your favorable reply.  
   

Re: Position on the Board of Directors of Rackable Systems, Inc. (“ Rackable Systems” ) 

Very truly yours, 

R ACKABLE S YSTEMS , I NC . 

By:   /s/    Gary Griffiths  
  Gary Griffiths 
  Chairman Nominating and Corporate 
  Governance Committee 



Exhibit 10.46 

46600 Landing Parkway 
Fremont, California 94538 

P. 408.240.8300 
F. 408.321.0293 

www.rackable.com 

January 29, 2008  

Mr. Mike Hagee  
   

Dear Mike:  

I am very happy to offer you a position on the Board of Directors of Rackable Systems (the “Board”).  

All members of Rackable Systems’ Board receive an annual cash retainer of $45,000 paid quarterly. Additional cash retainers are paid to 
Board members who serve as chairman or members of Board committees.  

In addition, upon appointment to the Board you will be granted a non-statutory stock option to purchase 30,000 shares of Rackable 
Systems’ common stock. This option will vest over a four year period commencing on the date of your appointment, with 1/48th vesting per 
month of service. In addition, all Board members are granted a stock option to purchase 2,833 shares of Rackable Systems’ common stock 
upon their re-election to Board at each year’s annual stockholders meeting.  

Rackable Systems will also reimburse you for your travel expenses in attending Board and committee meetings.  

If the terms of this letter are acceptable to you, please confirm to me your willingness to serve on Rackable Systems’ Board. Upon your 
agreement, I will submit your nomination to the Board for formal consideration. We look forward to your favorable reply.  
   

Re: Position on the Board of Directors of Rackable Systems, Inc. (“ Rackable Systems” ) 

Very truly yours, 

R ACKABLE S YSTEMS , I NC . 

By:   /s/    Gary Griffiths  
  Gary Griffiths 
  Chairman Nominating and Corporate 
  Governance Committee 



Exhibit 10.62 

June 15, 2010  

Giovanni Coglitore  

Dear Gio:  

This Separation Agreement (the “ Agreement ”) sets forth the terms of your separation from employment with Silicon Graphics International 
Corp. (the “ Company ”).  

1. E MPLOYMENT S TATUS AND F INAL P AYMENTS .  

(a) Separation Date. Your last day of work with the Company and your employment termination date will be June 25, 2010 (the “ 
Separation Date ”). The Company agrees that it will continue to pay your salary at its current rate, and continue to provide you with the 
level of benefits to which you are currently entitled, until the Separation Date. As of the Separation Date, your salary will cease, and any 
entitlement you have or might have under any Company-provided benefit plan, program, contract or practice (each a “ Benefit Program 
”) will terminate, except (i) as required by the terms of an applicable Benefit Program or any applicable federal or state law, or (ii) as 
otherwise described below.  

(b) Accrued Salary and PTO. On the Separation Date, the Company will pay you all accrued salary, and all accrued and unused 
paid time off (“ PTO ”) earned through the Separation Date, subject to standard payroll deductions and withholdings. You are entitled to 
these payments by law. As of the date of this Agreement set forth above, your accrued but unused PTO balance is 240 hours.  

(c) Expense Reimbursements. You shall submit expense reports to the Company seeking reimbursement for any business 
expenses incurred through the Separation Date by June 25, 2010. The Company will reimburse you for these business expenses, pursuant 
to its standard policies and practices, within fifteen (15) business days after the submission of your expense report.  

2. S EVERANCE B ENEFITS . If: (i) you timely sign, date and return this fully executed Agreement to the Company; and (ii) on or within 21 
days after the Separation Date, you sign, date and return the Separation Date Release attached hereto as Exhibit B; and (iii) you allow the 
releases contained herein and in the Separation Date Release to become effective; then the Company shall provide the following sole severance 
benefits (the “ Severance Benefits ”) to you:  

(a) Retention Bonus. The Company shall provide as severance a lump sum payment of one hundred twenty-five thousand dollars 
($125,000), which represents fifty percent (50%) of your 2010 full year retention bonus, subject to standard payroll deductions and 
withholdings (“ Severance ”). The Severance Payment will be paid in a lump sum within ten (10) days after the Effective Date of the 
Separation Date Release, provided you have fulfilled your obligation to return Company property under Paragraph 5 of this Agreement.  

(b) Health Insurance. To the extent provided by the federal COBRA law or, if applicable, state insurance laws (collectively, “ 
COBRA ”), and by the Company’s current group health insurance policies, you will be eligible to continue your group health insurance 
benefits at your own expense after the Separation Date. Later, you may be able to convert to an individual policy through the provider of 
the Company’s health insurance, if you wish. You will be provided with a separate notice describing your rights and obligations under the 
applicable state and/or federal insurance laws on or after the Separation Date. Although the Company is not otherwise obligated to do so, 
if you timely elect to continue group health coverage after the Separation Date pursuant to COBRA, the Company will reimburse your 
COBRA premium payments sufficient to continue your group health coverage at its current level (including dependant coverage, if 
applicable) for a maximum of six (6) months  



following the Separation Date; provided, however, that the Company’s obligation to reimburse your monthly premium payments ceases 
immediately if you become eligible for group health insurance coverage through a new employer at any time within six (6) months after 
the Separation Date. You must promptly notify the Company if you become eligible for group health insurance coverage through a new 
employer.  

3. E QUITY . Under the terms of your stock option agreement and the applicable plan documents, vesting of your stock options and 
restricted stock awards/units will cease as of the Separation Date. Your right to exercise any vested options or shares, and all other rights and 
obligations with respect to your stock options(s) and restricted stock awards, will be as set forth in your stock option agreement, grant notice, 
restricted stock purchase agreement, and applicable plan documents. For your convenience, a statement reflecting your equity holdings as of 
June 4, 2010 is attached as Exhibit C hereto.  

4. O THER C OMPENSATION OR B ENEFITS . You acknowledge that, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, you have not earned 
and will not receive from the Company any additional compensation (including base salary, bonus, incentive compensation, or equity), 
severance, or any other benefits before or after the Separation Date, with the exception of any vested right you may have under the express 
terms of a written ERISA-qualified benefit plan (e.g., 401(k) account) or any vested options.  

5. R ETURN O F C OMPANY P ROPERTY . By June 25, 2010, you agree to return to the Company all Company documents (and all copies 
thereof) and other Company property which you have in your possession or control, including, but not limited to, Company files, notes, 
drawings, records, plans, forecasts, reports, studies, analyses, proposals, agreements, financial information, research and development 
information, sales and marketing information, customer lists, prospect information, pipeline reports, sales reports, operational and personnel 
information, specifications, code, software, databases, computer-recorded information, tangible property and equipment (including, but not 
limited to, computers, facsimile machines, mobile telephones, servers), credit cards, entry cards, identification badges and keys; and any 
materials of any kind which contain or embody any proprietary or confidential information of the Company (and all reproductions thereof in 
whole or in part). You agree that you will make a diligent search to locate any such documents, property and information. If you have used any 
personally owned computer, server, or e-mail system to receive, store, review, prepare or transmit any Company confidential or proprietary 
data, materials or information, by June 25, 2010, you shall provide the Company with a computer-useable copy of such information and then 
permanently delete and expunge such Company confidential or proprietary information from those systems; and you agree to provide the 
Company access to your system as requested to verify that the necessary copying and/or deletion is done. Your timely compliance with this 
paragraph is a condition precedent to your receipt of the Severance Benefits provided under this Agreement.  

6. P ROPRIETARY I NFORMATION O BLIGATIONS . In exchange for the consideration of the Severance Benefits, you reaffirm your 
obligation to comply with the Employee Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement (the “ PIIA ”) you previously signed (attached 
hereto as Exhibit A).  

7. N ONDISPARAGEMENT . You agree not to disparage the Company, its officers, directors, employees, shareholders, and agents, and the 
Company (through its officers and directors) agrees not to disparage you, in any manner likely to be harmful to his/its business, business 
reputation, or personal reputation; provided that you and Company will respond accurately and fully to any question, inquiry or request for 
information when required by legal process.  

8. C OOPERATION AND A SSISTANCE . You agree that you will not voluntarily provide assistance, information or advice, directly or 
indirectly (including through agents or attorneys), to any person or entity in connection with any claim or cause of action of any kind brought 
against the Company, nor shall you induce or encourage any person or entity to bring such claims. However, it will not violate this Agreement 
if you testify truthfully when required to do so by a valid subpoena or under similar compulsion of law. Further, you agree that through and 
until December 31, 2010, you will voluntarily cooperate with the Company, for up to a maximum of three (3) hours per month without further 
compensation, if you have knowledge of facts relevant to any threatened or pending litigation against the Company for interviews with the 
Company’s counsel, for preparing for and providing deposition testimony, and for preparing for and providing trial testimony.  



9. N O A DMISSIONS . You understand and agree that the promises and payments in consideration of this Agreement shall not be construed 
to be an admission of any liability or obligation by the Company to you or to any other person, and that the Company makes no such 
admission.  

10. C ONFIDENTIALITY . The provisions of this Agreement will be held in strictest confidence by you and the Company and will not be 
publicized or disclosed in any manner whatsoever; provided, however, that: (a) you may disclose this Agreement in confidence to your 
immediate family; (b) the parties may disclose this Agreement in confidence to their respective attorneys, accountants, auditors, tax preparers, 
and financial advisors; (c) the Company may disclose this Agreement as necessary to fulfill standard or legally required corporate reporting or 
disclosure requirements; and (d) the parties may disclose this Agreement insofar as such disclosure may be necessary to enforce its terms or as 
otherwise required by law. In particular, and without limitation, you agree not to disclose the existence or terms of this Agreement to 
any current or former Company employee, contractor or consultant.  

11. R ELEASE OF C LAIMS .  

(a) General Release . In exchange for good and valuable consideration to which the parties hereto would not otherwise be entitled, 
the parties below hereby generally and completely release each other (and in the case of Silicon Graphics International Corp. (the “ 
Company ”), its directors, officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, successors, parent and subsidiary 
entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, collectively, the “ Company Released Parties ”) of and from any and all claims, liabilities and 
obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions occurring prior to 
or on June 25, 2010 (collectively, the “ Released Claims ”).  

(b) Scope of Release. The Released Claims include, but are not limited to: (a) all claims arising out of or in any way related to your 
employment with the Company, or the termination of that employment; (b) all claims related to your compensation or benefits from the 
Company, including salary, bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, stock 
options, or any other ownership interests in the Company; (c) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach of the 
implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (d) all tort claims, including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and 
discharge in violation of public policy; and (e) all federal, state, and local statutory claims, including claims for discrimination, 
harassment, retaliation, attorneys’ fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended), the federal 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the federal Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) (the “ ADEA ”), the 
California Labor Code (as amended), and the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended).  

(c) Excluded Claims. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following are not included in the Released Claims (the “ Excluded 
Claims ”): (a) any rights or claims for indemnification you may have pursuant to any written indemnification agreement with the 
Company to which you are a party, the charter, bylaws, or operating agreements of the Company, or under applicable law; (b) any rights 
which are not waivable as a matter of law; or (c) any claims arising from the breach of this Agreement. In addition, nothing in this 
Agreement prevents a party from filing, cooperating with, or participating in any proceeding before the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission, the Department of Labor, or the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing, except that each party hereby 
waives the right to any monetary benefits in connection with any such claim, charge or proceeding. Each party hereby represents and 
warrants that, other than the Excluded Claims, each party is not aware of any claims it may have or might have against any of the 
Released Parties that are not included in the Released Claims.  

(d) ADEA Waiver. You hereby acknowledge that you are knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights you may 
have under the ADEA, and that the consideration given for the waiver and release you have given in this Agreement is in addition to 
anything of value to which he was already entitled. You further acknowledge that you have been advised by this writing, as required by 
the ADEA, that: (a) his waiver and release does not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Employee signs this 
Separation Date Release; (b) You should consult with an attorney prior to signing this Separation Date Release (although you may 
voluntarily decide not to do so); (c) You have twenty-one (21) days to consider this Separation Date Release (although you may choose 
voluntarily to sign this Separation Date Release sooner); (d) you have seven (7) days following the date you signs this Separation Date 
Release to revoke it (in a written revocation sent to and received  



by the Company’s Human Resource Director); and (e) this Separation Date Release will not be effective until the date upon which the 
revocation period has expired, which will be the eighth day after you sign this Separation Date Release (the “ Effective Date ”).  

(e) Section 1542 Waiver. In giving the release herein, which includes claims which may be unknown to a party at present, the parties 
acknowledge that they have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads as follows:  

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of 
executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”  

Each party hereby expressly waives and relinquishes all rights and benefits under that section and any law of any other jurisdiction of similar 
effect with respect to the release of claims herein, including but not limited to each party’s release of unknown claims.  

12. R EPRESENTATIONS . You hereby represent that you have been paid all compensation owed and for all hours worked, have received all 
the leave and leave benefits and protections for which you are eligible pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act, the California Family 
Rights Act, or otherwise, and have not suffered any on-the-job injury for which you have not already filed a workers’ compensation claim.  

13. D ISPUTE R ESOLUTION . To ensure rapid and economical resolution of any disputes regarding this Agreement, the parties hereby 
agree that any and all claims, disputes or controversies of any nature whatsoever arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement, or its 
interpretation, enforcement, breach, performance or execution, your employment with the Company, or the termination of such employment, 
shall be resolved, to the fullest extent permitted by law, by final, binding and confidential arbitration in San Jose, CA conducted before a single 
arbitrator by JAMS, Inc. (“ JAMS ”) or its successor, under the then applicable JAMS arbitration rules. Company agrees to bear all of the 
arbitration fees and any other type of expense or costs that you would not be required to bear if you were free to bring such claims or disputes 
in court or any other proceeding as well as any other expenses or costs that are unique to arbitration. The parties shall each pay their own 
attorneys’ fees unless a statute or contract in issue in the dispute authorizes the award of attorneys’ fees to the prevailing party, in which case, 
the arbitrator shall have the authority to make an award of attorneys’ fees as required or permitted by applicable law. If there is a dispute as to 
whether Company or you is the prevailing party in the arbitration, the arbitrator shall decide that issue. The parties each acknowledge that by 
agreeing to this arbitration procedure, they waive the right to resolve any such dispute, claim or demand through a trial by jury or 
judge or by administrative proceeding. You will have the right to be represented by legal counsel at any arbitration proceeding. The 
arbitrator shall: (i) have the authority to compel adequate discovery for the resolution of the dispute and to award such relief as would 
otherwise be available under applicable law in a court proceeding; and (ii) issue a written statement signed by the arbitrator regarding the 
disposition of each claim and the relief, if any, awarded as to each claim, the reasons for the award, and the arbitrator’s essential findings and 
conclusions on which the award is based. The arbitrator, and not a court, shall also be authorized to determine whether the provisions of this 
paragraph apply to a dispute, controversy, or claim sought to be resolved in accordance with these arbitration procedures. Nothing in this 
Agreement is intended to prevent either you or the Company from obtaining injunctive relief in court to prevent irreparable harm pending the 
conclusion of any arbitration.  

14. M ISCELLANEOUS . This Agreement, including its Exhibits A, B and C, constitutes the complete, final and exclusive embodiment of 
the entire Agreement between you and the Company with regard to its subject matter, and supersedes all other agreements, understandings or 
arrangements, including, without limit, any employment, retention or other agreements entered into between the Company and you, unless 
expressly referred to herein. It is entered into without reliance on any promise or representation, written or oral, other than those expressly 
contained herein, and it supersedes any other such promises, warranties or representations, including without limitation any promises or 
representations regarding severance benefits or any compensation or benefits. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in a 
writing signed by both you and a duly authorized officer of the Company. This Agreement will bind the heirs, personal representatives, 
successors and assigns of both you and the Company, and inure to the benefit of both you and the Company, their heirs, successors and  



assigns. If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, this determination will not affect 
any other provision of this Agreement and the provision in question will be modified so as to be rendered enforceable. This Agreement will be 
deemed to have been entered into and will be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard to 
conflict of laws principles. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall not be construed against either party as the drafter. Any waiver of a breach 
of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any successive breach. This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts and facsimile signatures will suffice as original signatures.  

If this Agreement is acceptable to you, please sign below and return the Company’s Vice President of Human Resources. You have twenty-one 
(21) calendar days to decide whether you would like to accept this Agreement, and the Company’s offer contained herein will automatically 
expire if you do not sign it within this timeframe and return the fully signed Agreement promptly thereafter.  

We wish you the best in your future endeavors.  
   

I HAVE READ , UNDERSTAND AND AGREE FULLY TO THE FOREGOING A GREEMENT :  
   

   

Sincerely, 

/ S /    J ENNIFER P RATT         

Jennifer Pratt, SVP Human Resources  
Silicon Graphics International Corp.  

/ S /    G IOVANNI C OGLITORE 

Giovanni Coglitore 

June 23, 2010 
Date 



E XHIBIT A  
P ROPRIETARY I NFORMATION AND I NVENTIONS A GREEMENT  

RACKABLE SYSTEMS, INC.  

EMPLOYEE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND INVENTIONS AGR EEMENT  

In consideration of my employment by Rackable Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation (formerly known as Rackable Corporation)
(together, with my former employer, Rackable Systems, Inc. and its predecessors, the “Company”), I hereby agree to the following with respect 
to my use and development of information and technology of the Company, as more fully set out below.  

1. Proprietary Information.  

(a) Confidential Restrictions . I agree to hold in strict confidence and in trust for the sole benefit of the Company all 
Proprietary Information (as defined below) that I may have access to during the course of my employment with the Company and will not 
disclose any Proprietary Information, directly or indirectly, to anyone outside of the Company, or use, copy, publish, summarize, or remove 
from Company premises such information (or remove from the premises any other property of the Company) except (i) during my employment 
to the extent necessary to carry out my responsibilities as an employee of the Company or (ii) after termination of my employment, as 
specifically authorized by the President of the Company. I further understand that the publication of any Proprietary Information through 
literature or speeches must be approved in advance in writing by the President of the Company. “Proprietary Information” shall mean all 
information and any idea in whatever form, tangible or intangible, whether disclosed to or learned or developed by me, pertaining in any 
manner to the business of the Company (or any affiliate of it that might be formed) or to the Company’s customers, suppliers, licensors and 
other commercial partners unless: (i) the information is or becomes publicly known through lawful means; (ii) the information was rightfully in 
my possession or part of my general knowledge prior to my employment by the Company; or (iii) the information is disclosed to me without 
confidential or proprietary restriction by a third party who rightfully possesses the information (without confidential or proprietary restriction) 
and did not learn of it, directly or indirectly, from the Company.  

(b) Third Party Information . I recognize that the Company has received and in the future will receive from third parties their 
confidential or proprietary information subject to a duty on the Company’s part to maintain the confidentiality of such information and to use it 
only for certain limited purposes. I agree that I owe the Company and such third parties, during the term of my employment and thereafter, a 
duty to hold all such confidential or proprietary information in the strictest confidence and not to disclose it to any person, firm, or corporation 
(except as necessary in carrying out my work for the Company consistent with the Company’s agreement with such third party) or to use it for 
the benefit of anyone other than for the Company or such third party (consistent with the Company’s agreement with such third party) without 
the express written authorization of the President of the Company.  

(c) Interference with Business . I hereby acknowledge that pursuit of the activities forbidden by this Section 1(c) would 
necessarily involve the use or disclosure of Proprietary Information in breach of Section 1, but that proof of such breach would be extremely 
difficult. To forestall such disclosure, use, and breach, I agree that for the term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year after 
termination of my employment with the Company, I shall not, for myself or any third party, directly or indirectly (i) divert or attempt to divert 
from the Company (or any affiliate of it that might be formed) any business of any kind in which it is engaged, including, without limitation, 
the solicitation of or interference with any of its suppliers or customers; (ii) employ, solicit for employment, or recommend for employment 
any person employed by the Company (or by any affiliate of it that might be formed) during the period of such person’s employment and for a 
period of one (1) year thereafter; or (iii) engage in any business activity that is or may be competitive with the Company (or any affiliate of it 
that might be formed). I understand that none of my activities will be prohibited under this Section 1(c) if I can prove that the action was taken 
without the use in any way of Proprietary Information.  



2. Inventions .  

(a) Defined; Statutory Notice . I understand that during the term of my employment, there are certain restrictions on my 
development of technology, ideas, and inventions, referred to in this Agreement as “Invention Ideas.” The term Invention Ideas means any and 
all ideas, processes, trademarks, service marks, inventions, technology, computer programs, original works of authorship, designs, formulas, 
discoveries, patents, copyrights, and all improvements, rights, and claims related to the foregoing that are conceived, developed, or reduced to 
practice by me alone or with others except to the extent that California Labor Code Section 2870 lawfully prohibits the assignment of rights in 
such ideas, processes, inventions, etc. I understand that Section 2870(a) provides:  

Any provision in an employment agreement which provides that an employee shall assign, or offer to assign, any of his or her rights 
in an invention to his or her employer shall not apply to an invention that the employee developed entirely on his or her own time 
without using the employer’s equipment, supplies, facilities, or trade secret information except for those inventions that either:  

(1) Relate at the time of conception or reduction to practice of the invention to the employer’s business, or actual or 
demonstrably anticipated research or development of the employer.  

(2) Result from any work performed by the employee for the employer.  

(b) Records of Invention Ideas . I agree to maintain adequate and current written records on the development of all Invention 
Ideas and to disclose promptly to the Company all Invention Ideas and relevant records, which records will remain the sole property of the 
Company. I further agree that all information and records pertaining to any idea, process, trademark, service mark, invention, technology, 
computer program, original work of authorship, design, formula, discovery, patent, or copyright that I do not believe to be an Invention Idea, 
but is conceived, developed, or reduced to practice by me (alone or with others) during my period of employment or during the one-year period 
following termination of my employment, shall be promptly disclosed to the Company (such disclosure to be received in confidence). The 
Company shall examine such information to determine if in fact the idea, process, or invention, etc., is an Invention Idea subject to this 
Agreement.  

(c) Assignment . I agree to assign to the Company, without further consideration, my entire right, title, and interest 
(throughout the United States and in all foreign countries), free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, in and to each Invention Idea, which 
shall be the sole property of the Company, whether or not patentable. In the event any Invention Idea shall be deemed by the Company to be 
patentable or otherwise registrable, I will assist the Company (at its expense) in obtaining letters patent or other applicable registrations thereon 
and I will execute all documents and do all other things (including testifying at the Company’s expense) necessary or proper to obtain letters 
patent or other applicable registrations thereon and to vest the Company with full title thereto. Should the Company be unable to secure my 
signature on any document necessary to apply for, prosecute, obtain, or enforce any patent, copyright, or other right or protection relating to 
any Invention Idea, whether due to my mental or physical incapacity or any other cause, I hereby irrevocably designate and appoint the 
Company and each of its duly authorized officers and agents as my agent and attorney-in-fact, to act for and in my behalf and stead, to execute 
and file any such document, and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the prosecution, issuance, and enforcement of patents, 
copyrights, or other rights or protections with the same force and effect as if executed and delivered by me.  

(d) Exclusions . Except as disclosed in Exhibit A , there are no ideas, processes, trademarks, service marks, inventions, 
technology, computer programs, original works of authorship, designs, formulas, discoveries, patents, copyrights, or improvements to the 
foregoing that I wish to exclude from the operation of this Agreement.  

(e) Post-Termination Period . I acknowledge that because of the difficulty of establishing when any idea, process, invention, 
etc., is first conceived or developed by me, or whether it results from access to Proprietary Information or the Company’s equipment, facilities 
and data, I agree that any idea, process, trademark, service mark, invention, technology, computer program, original work of authorship, 
design, formula, discovery, patent, copyright, or any improvement, rights, or claims related to the foregoing shall be presumed to be  



an Invention Idea if it is conceived, developed, used, sold, exploited, or reduced to practice by me or with my aid within one (1) year after my 
termination of employment with the Company. I can rebut the above presumption if I prove that the invention, idea, process, etc., is not an 
Invention Idea as defined in paragraph 2(a) . I hereby acknowledge that pursuit of the activities forbidden by this Section 1(e) would 
necessarily involve the use or disclosure of Proprietary Information in breach of Section 1 , but that proof of such breach would be extremely 
difficult. To forestall such disclosure, use, and breach, I agree that for the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after 
termination of my employment with the Company, I shall not, for myself or any third party, directly or indirectly (i) divert or attempt to divert 
from the Company (or any affiliate of it that might be formed) any business of any kind in which it is engaged, including, without limitation, 
the solicitation of or interference with any of its suppliers or customers; (ii) employ, solicit for employment, or recommend for employment 
any person employed by the Company (or by any affiliate of it that might be formed) during the period of such person’s employment and for a 
period of one (1) year thereafter; or (iii) engage in any business activity that is or may be competitive with the Company (or any affiliate of it 
that might be formed). I understand that none of my activities will be prohibited under this Section 1(e) if I can prove that the action was taken 
without the use in any way of Proprietary Information.  

I understand that nothing in this Agreement is intended to expand the scope of protection provided me by Sections 2870 through 2872 of the 
California Labor Code.  

3. Former or Conflicting Obligations . During my employment with the Company, I will not disclose to the Company, or use, or 
induce the Company to use, any proprietary information or trade secrets of others. I represent that my performance of this Agreement will not 
breach any agreement to keep in confidence proprietary information acquired by me in confidence or in trust prior to my employment by the 
Company. I certify that I have no outstanding agreement or obligation that is in conflict with any of the provisions of this Agreement, or that 
would preclude me from complying with the provisions hereof. I further certify that during the term of my employment with the Company, I 
will not engage in any other employment, occupation, consulting or other business activity directly related to the business in which the 
Company is now involved or becomes involved during the term of such employment.  

4. Notification Rights of the Company . I further agree that the Company shall have the right at all times to notify any New 
Employer (at the Company’s sole discretion) of the existence of this Employee Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement, its terms 
and my obligations hereunder, as well as the existence of any other agreement entered into by me and the Company that imposes certain 
obligations to me after termination of employment with the Company.  

5. Government Contracts . I understand that the Company has or may enter into contracts with the government under which certain 
intellectual property rights will be required to be protected, assigned, licensed, or otherwise transferred and I hereby agree to execute such other 
documents and agreements as are necessary to enable the Company to meet its obligations under any such government contracts.  

6. Termination . I hereby acknowledge and agree that all personal property, including, without limitation, all books, manuals, 
records, models, drawings, reports, notes, contracts, lists, blueprints, and other documents or materials or copies thereof, Proprietary 
Information, and equipment furnished to or prepared by me in the course of or incident to my employment, belong to the Company and will be 
promptly returned to the Company upon termination of my employment with the Company. Following my termination, I will not retain any 
written or other tangible material containing any Proprietary Information or information pertaining to any Invention Idea. I understand that my 
obligations contained herein will survive the termination of my employment. In the event of termination of my employment, I agree to sign and 
deliver to the Company a Termination Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B .  

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.  

(a) Assignment . I agree that the Company may assign to another person or entity any of its rights under this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, any successor in interest to the Company or its business operations. This Agreement shall be binding upon me 
and my heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, and shall inure to the benefit of the Company’s successors and assigns.  



(b) Governing Law; Severability . The validity, interpretation, enforceability, and performance of this Agreement shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. If any provision of this Agreement, or application thereof to 
any person, place, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, unenforceable, or void, the remainder of this 
Agreement and such provisions as applied to other persons, places, and circumstances shall remain in full force and effect.  

(c) Entire Agreement . The terms of this Agreement are the final expression of my agreement with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the 
complete and exclusive statement of its terms and no extrinsic evidence whatsoever may be introduced in any judicial, administrative, or other 
legal proceeding involving this Agreement.  

(d) Application of this Agreement . I hereby agree that my obligations set forth in Sections 1 and Section 2 hereof and the 
definitions of Proprietary Information and Invention Ideas contained therein shall be equally applicable to Proprietary Information and 
Invention Ideas relating to any work performed by me for the Company prior to the execution of this Agreement.  

[The remainder of this page left intentionally blank; signature pages follow.]  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Employee Proprietary and Inventions Agreement to be duly executed 
as of the date hereof.  
   

EXHIBIT A  

Employee’s Prior Inventions  

Except as set forth below, there are no ideas, processes, trademarks, service marks, inventions, technology, computer programs, 
original works of authorship, designs, formulas, discoveries, patents, copyrights, or any claims, rights, or improvements to the foregoing that I 
wish to exclude from the operation of this Agreement:  

[write NONE if there are none]  

None  
   

Date: 12/19/02     /s/    Giovanni Coglitore 
    Signature 

      Giovanni Coglitore 
    Printed Name 

Date: 12/19/02     /s/    Giovanni Coglitore 
    Signature 

      Giovanni Coglitore 
    Printed Name 



EXHIBIT B  

TERMINATION CERTIFICATE CONCERNING  
PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND INVENTIONS  

This is to certify that I have returned all personal property of the Company, including, without limitation, all books, manuals, 
records, models, drawings, reports, notes, contracts, lists, blueprints, and other documents and materials, Proprietary Information, and 
equipment furnished to or prepared by me in the course of or incident to my employment with the Company, and that I did not make or 
distribute any copies of the foregoing.  

I further certify that I have reviewed the Employee Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement signed by me and that I have 
complied with and will continue to comply with all of its terms, including, without limitation, (i) the reporting of any invention, process, or 
idea, etc. conceived or developed by me and covered by the Agreement and (ii) the preservation as confidential of all Proprietary Information 
pertaining to the Company. This certificate in no way limits my responsibilities or the Company’s rights under the Agreement.  

On termination of my employment with the Company, I will be employed by                      [name of new employer] 
________________________________________________ [in the ________ division] and I will be working in connection with the following 
projects:  

[generally describe the projects]  

______________________________________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________________________________  
______________________________________________________________________________________________________  

Dated: ____________________  
   

    
Signature 

    
Printed Name 



Exhibit B  
Separation Date Release  

In exchange for good and valuable consideration to which the parties hereto would not otherwise be entitled, including, without limit, the 
Severance Benefits under the Agreement, the parties below hereby generally and completely release each other (and in the case of Silicon 
Graphics International Corp. (the “Company”), its directors, officers, employees, shareholders, partners, agents, attorneys, predecessors, 
successors, parent and subsidiary entities, insurers, affiliates, and assigns, collectively, the “ Company Released Parties ”) of and from any and 
all claims, liabilities and obligations, both known and unknown, that arise out of or are in any way related to events, acts, conduct, or omissions 
occurring prior to or on June 25, 2010 (collectively, the “ Released Claims ”).  

The Released Claims include, but are not limited to: (a) all claims arising out of or in any way related to the employment of Giovanni Coglitore 
(“Employee”) with the Company, or the termination of that employment; (b) all claims related to Employee’s compensation or benefits from 
the Company, including salary, bonuses, commissions, vacation pay, expense reimbursements, severance pay, fringe benefits, stock, stock 
options, or any other ownership interests in the Company; (c) all claims for breach of contract, wrongful termination, and breach of the implied 
covenant of good faith and fair dealing; (d) all tort claims, including claims for fraud, defamation, emotional distress, and discharge in violation 
of public policy; and (e) all federal, state, and local statutory claims, including claims for discrimination, harassment, retaliation, attorneys’ 
fees, or other claims arising under the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended), the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the 
federal Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (as amended) (the “ ADEA ”), the California Labor Code (as amended), and the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act (as amended).  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following are not included in the Released Claims (the “ Excluded Claims ”): (a) any rights or claims for 
indemnification Employee may have pursuant to any written indemnification agreement with the Company to which Employee is a party, the 
charter, bylaws, or operating agreements of the Company, or under applicable law; (b) any rights which are not waivable as a matter of law; or 
(c) any claims arising from the breach of this Agreement. In addition, nothing in this Agreement prevents a party from filing, cooperating with, 
or participating in any proceeding before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Department of Labor, or the California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing, except that each party hereby waives the right to any monetary benefits in connection with any 
such claim, charge or proceeding. Each party hereby represents and warrants that, other than the Excluded Claims, each party is not aware of 
any claims it may have or might have against any of the Released Parties that are not included in the Released Claims.  

Employee hereby acknowledges that he is knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights he may have under the ADEA, and that 
the consideration given for the waiver and release Employee has given in this Agreement is in addition to anything of value to which he was 
already entitled. Employee further acknowledges that he has been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (a) his waiver and 
release does not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the date Employee signs this Separation Date Release; (b) Employee should 
consult with an attorney prior to signing this Separation Date Release (although Employee may voluntarily decide not to do so); (c) Employee 
has twenty-one (21) days to consider this Separation Date Release (although he may choose voluntarily to sign this Separation Date Release 
sooner); (d) Employee has seven (7) days following the date he signs this Separation Date Release to revoke it (in a written revocation sent to 
and received by the Company’s Human Resource Director); and (e) this Separation Date Release will not be effective until the date upon which 
the revocation period has expired, which will be the eighth day after Employee signs this Separation Date Release (the “ Effective Date ”).  

In giving the release herein, which includes claims which may be unknown to a party at present, the parties acknowledge that they have read 
and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads as follows:  

“A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of 
executing the release, which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor.”  



Each party hereby expressly waives and relinquishes all rights and benefits under that section and any law of any other jurisdiction of similar 
effect with respect to the release of claims herein, including but not limited to each party’s release of unknown claims.  
   

   

   

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO:       

Silicon Graphics International Corp.     Giovanni Coglitore   

By:   /s/    Jennifer L. Pratt   6/25/10     /s/    Giovanni Coglitore   6/25/10 
Signature   Date     Signature   Date 

Jennifer L. Pratt         

Name         

SVP Human Resources         

Title         



Exhibit C  
Equity  

   

   

Silicon Graphics International Corp.    PERSONNEL SUMMARY       Page:    1 
   AS OF 6/4/2010       File:    Persnl 
         Date:    6/8/10 
   Report Type:    All       Time:    12:55:30 PM 
   ID is equal to 47038          

Name   ID   
Grant  

Number    
Grant  
Date   Plan/Type    Shares   Price   

Exercised/ 
 

Released   Vested   Cancelled   Unvested   

Outstanding/ 
 

Unreleased   

Exercisable/ 
 

Releasable 

Coglitore, Giovanni    47038   00001842   8/11/09   2005/NQ   27,500   $ 5.34   0   5,156   0   22,344   27,500   5,156 
    00000561   9/1/06   2005/RSA   5,000   $ 0.00   4,375   4,375   0   625   625   0 
    00000846   2/6/07   2005/RSA   25,000   $ 0.00   20,312   20,312   0   4,688   4,688   0 
    00000973   7/11/07   2005/RSU   25,000   $ 0.00   22,916   22,916   0   2,084   2,084   0 
    00001225   7/11/07   2005/RSU   5,000   $ 0.00   5,000   5,000   0   0   0   0 
    00001297   7/31/07   2005/RSA   1,630   $ 0.00   1,630   1,630   0   0   0   0 
    00001425   2/11/08   2005/RSU   75,000   $ 0.00   42,187   42,187   0   32,813   32,613   0 

Name: Coglitore, Giovanni            164,130     96,420   101,576   0   62,554   67,710   5,156 
      TOTALS     164,130     96,420   101,576   0   62,554   67,710   5,156 



Exhibit 10.63 

On July 27, 2010 the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors approved a short term incentive plan (the “2011 Plan”) for our 
2011 fiscal year, to succeed the 2010 corporate bonus plan previously disclosed in a Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on 
August 10, 2009.  

The 2011 Plan is an integral part of compensation for our employees that are at the level of director or above, which includes our 
executive officers. The 2011 Plan provides that quarterly bonuses are payable, subject to the Compensation Committee’s discretion, based upon 
(1) achievement of certain non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin performance targets established by the Compensation Committee, 
and (2) target bonus amounts for each eligible individual established by the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee 
established annual target bonus amounts, to be determined and paid on a quarterly basis, for the 2011 Plan, which include bonus amounts 
payable to the Company’s named executive officers (as defined in Item 402(a)(3) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission). The Committee established $450,000 as the annual target bonus amount for Mark Barrenechea, our Chief Executive 
Officer; $175,000 for James Wheat, our Chief Financial Officer; and $124,000 for Maurice Leibenstern, our Senior Vice President, General 
Counsel and Corporate Secretary.  

Quarterly bonus amounts under the 2011 Plan will be subject to the Compensation Committee’s discretion, and will depend on the 
specific levels of actual non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin attained. Such quarterly bonuses would be “earned” and payable 
within a range of respective percentages that includes a threshold requirement of 50% and a maximum payout cap of 150%. Failure to meet the 
threshold requirement would result in no quarterly bonus amount being paid.  

Further, at the end of FY2011, the Compensation Committee will compare the aggregate percentage of all quarterly bonus amounts paid 
during the fiscal year, with the actual non-GAAP revenue and non-GAAP gross margin attained for the entire 2011 fiscal year, and determine 
whether a “true-up” payment is necessary to prevent the actual quarterly payouts from negatively impacting the annual payout had the plan 
been measured for the full year.  



Exhibit 21.1 

SUBSIDIARIES OF SILICON GRAPHICS INTERNATIONAL CORP .  

Silicon Graphics (Canada) Inc.  

Silicon Graphics Limited (Canada)  

Silicon Graphics International, LTD (Cayman Islands)  

Silicon Graphics International Corp. (Delaware)  

Silicon Graphics Federal, Inc. (Delaware)  

SGI International, Inc. (Delaware)  

Rackable Systems Limited (Ireland)  

Rackable Asia Pacific Ltd. (Hong Kong)  

Rackable Systems Holding Corp. (Delaware)  

Rackable Systems Canada Acquisition ULC (Alberta)  

Terrascale Technologies ULC (Alberta)  

Rackable Systems Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (PRC)  

Rackable Systems Holding Corp. (Delaware)  

Cray Foreign Sales Corporation Ltd. (Jamaica)  

Silicon Graphics Pty Ltd. (Australia)  

Silicon Graphics Computer Engineering & Technology (China) Co., Ltd (Beijing)  

Silicon Graphics Limited (Hong Kong)  

Silicon Graphics Systems (India) Limited  

Silicon Graphics Sdn Bhd (Malaysia)  

Silicon Graphics Limited (New Zealand)  

Silicon Graphics Pte Ltd. (Singapore)  

Korea Silicon Graphics Ltd (South Korea)  

Silicon Graphics Limited (Taiwan)  

Silicon Graphics SA/NV (Belgium)  

Alias/Wavefront NV (Belgium)  

Silicon Graphics s.r.o (Czech Republic)  



Silicon Graphics A/S (Denmark)  

Silicon Graphics SA (France)  

Silicon Graphics GmbH (Germany)  

Silicon Graphics AE (Greece)  

Silicon Graphics Computer Systems Limited (Israel)  

Silicon Graphics Biomedical (1995) Ltd. (Israel)  

Cray Research Israel  

Silicon Graphics SpA (Italy)  

Silicon Graphics BV (Netherlands)  

Silicon Graphics World Trade BV (Netherlands)  

Silicon Graphics Europe Trade BV (Netherlands)  

Silicon Graphics A/S (Norway)  

Silicon Graphics (Pty) Ltd. (South Africa)  

Silicon Graphics SA (Spain)  

Silicon Graphics AB (Sweden)  

Silicon Graphics S.A. (Switzerland)  

Silicon Graphics Finance S.A. (Switzerland) - formerly Silicon Graphics Manufacturing S.A.  

Silicon Graphics Trading Sarl (Switzerland)  

Silicon Graphics Limited (UK)  

Rackable Systems UK Limited (UK)  

Silicon Graphics SA (Argentina)  

Silicon Graphics Comercio E Servicos Limitada (Brazil)  

Silicon Graphics SA (Chile)  

Silicon Graphics S.A. de C.V. (Mexico)  

Silicon Graphics SA (Venezuela)  



Exhibit 23.1 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING  FIRM  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 333-165847, 333-160464, 333-150102, 333-125760, 333-
131976, 333-132564, 333-135677, 333-137250 and 333-140994 on Form S-8 of our reports dated September 8, 2010, relating to the 
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Silicon Graphics International Corp. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the 
“Company”), and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
of the Company for the year ended June 25, 2010.  

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

San Jose, California  
September 8, 2010  



Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION  

I, Mark J. Barrenechea, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

   

Date: September 8, 2010  

/s/    M ARK J. B ARRENECHEA          
Mark J. Barrenechea  
CEO and President  



Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION  

I, James D. Wheat, certify that:  

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp.;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:  

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and  

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions):  

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal control over financial reporting.  

   

Date: September 8, 2010  

/s/    J AMES D. W HEAT          
James D. Wheat  

Chief Financial Officer  



Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO  
18 U.S.C. §1350,  

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002  

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Silicon Graphics International Corp. (the “Company”) for the year ended June 25, 
2010, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Mark J. Barrenechea, Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company, and James D. Wheat, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, each hereby certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, 
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:  

(1) The Report, to which this Certification is attached as Exhibit 32.1, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and  

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company.  

Dated: September 8, 2010  
   

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and 
is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Silicon Graphics International Corp. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (whether made before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general 
incorporation language contained in such filing.  

/s/    M ARK J. B ARRENECHEA              /s/    J AMES D. W HEAT          
Mark J. Barrenechea  

President and Chief Executive Officer      
James D. Wheat  

Chief Financial Officer  


